
 

 

 

 
At: Aelodau’r  Pwyllgor Craffu 

Cymunedau 
Dyddiad: 

 
Dydd Iau, 12 Hydref 2023 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824 712554 

 ebost: democrataidd@sirddinbych.gov.uk 

 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, DYDD IAU, 19 
HYDREF 2023 am 10.00 am yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, NEUADD Y SIR, RHUTHUN A 
THRWY GYNHADLEDD FIDEO 
 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
 
G Williams 
Swyddog Monitro 
 
AGENDA 
 
RHAN 1 – GWAHODDIR Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD I FOD YN BRESENNOL YN Y 
RHAN HON O’R CYFARFOD 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD  (Tudalennau 5 - 6) 

 Aelodau i ddatgan unrhyw gysylltiad personol neu sy’n rhagfarnu ag unrhyw 
fusnes a nodwyd i’w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn.  

 

3 MATERION BRYS Y CYTUNWYD ARNYNT GAN Y CADEIRYDD   

 Hysbysiad o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel materion brys yn unol ag Adran 100B(4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.  

 

4 COFNODION (Tudalennau 7 - 12) 

 Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau a gynhaliwyd ar 
[dyddiad] (copi ynghlwm).  
 

 

 

 

 
 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 

5 ADOLYGU TARIFFAU MEYSYDD PARCIO  (Tudalennau 13 - 42) 

 Ystyried adroddiad (ynghlwm) gan y Rheolwr Traffig, Parcio a Diogelwch y 
Ffyrdd ar y newidiadau arfaethedig i bolisi tariffau meysydd parcio’r Cyngor a 
strwythurau tariff cysylltiedig. 
 

10:15 – 11:00 

          EGWYL 11:00 - 11:15 
 
6 ASESIAD O ANGHENION LLETY SIPSIWN A THEITHWYR  

(Tudalennau 43 - 138) 

 Ystyried adroddiad (ynghlwm) gan y Rheolwr Prosiect Corfforaethol ar yr 
Asesiad o Anghenion Llety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr diwygiedig cyn ei gyflwyno i 
Lywodraeth Cymru. 
 

11:15 – 11:45 
 

7 Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM BROSIECT AILFODELU’R 
GWASANAETH GWASTRAFF (Tudalennau 139 - 160) 

 Cael adroddiad diweddaru (ynghlwm) gan y Rheolwr Gwastraff ac Ailgylchu 
yn ymwneud â chyflwyno’r gwasanaeth newydd. 
 

11:45 – 12:15 
 

8 RHAGLEN WAITH CRAFFU (Tudalennau 161 - 180) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cydlynydd Craffu (copi ynghlwm) yn gofyn am 
adolygiad o raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol y pwyllgor a rhoi’r wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf i’r aelodau am faterion perthnasol. 

 

9 ADBORTH GAN GYNRYCHIOLWYR PWYLLGOR   

 Cael y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf gan gynrychiolwyr y Pwyllgor ar Fyrddau a 
Grwpiau amrywiol y Cyngor 

 

 
AELODAETH 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Y Cynghorydd Huw Williams 
(Cadeirydd) 
 

Y Cynghorydd Karen Anne Edwards (Is-
Gadeirydd) 

Michelle Blakeley-Walker 
James Elson 
Jon Harland 
Carol Holliday 
Alan James 
 

Brian Jones 
Delyth Jones 
Merfyn Parry 
Cheryl Williams 
 



 

 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 
 
 
DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 2000 

 

 

 
Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau 
 

DATGELU A CHOFRESTRU BUDDIANNAU 
 
  

Rwyf i, 
(enw) 

  

  

*Aelod /Aelod cyfetholedig o 
(*dileuer un) 

Cyngor Sir Ddinbych   

 
 

 

YN CADARNHAU fy mod wedi datgan buddiant *personol / personol a 
sy’n rhagfarnu nas datgelwyd eisoes yn ôl darpariaeth Rhan III cod 
ymddygiad y Cyngor Sir i Aelodau am y canlynol:- 
(*dileuer un) 

Dyddiad Datgelu:   

   

Pwyllgor (nodwch):   

   

Agenda eitem   

   

Pwnc:   

   

Natur y Buddiant: 

(Gweler y nodyn isod)* 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

Llofnod    

   

Dyddiad   

 

Noder: Rhowch ddigon o fanylion os gwelwch yn dda, e.e. 'Fi yw perchennog y tir sy’n gyfagos i'r cais 
ar gyfer caniatâd cynllunio a wnaed gan Mr Jones', neu 'Mae fy ngŵr / ngwraig yn un o weithwyr y 
cwmni sydd wedi gwneud cais am gymorth ariannol'. 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Agenda 2



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau a gynhaliwyd yn SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, 
NEUADD Y SIR, RHUTHUN A THRWY FIDEO GYNADLEDDA ddydd Iau, 7 Medi 2023 
am 10.00am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Karen Edwards (Is–gadeirydd), James Elson, Jon Harland, Alan James, 
Brian Jones, Delyth Jones, Merfyn Parry, Cheryl Williams a Huw Williams (Cadeirydd) 
 
Aelod Arweiniol – Roedd Aelod Arweiniol Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol, y Cynghorydd 
Elen Heaton 
yn bresennol ar wahoddiad y Pwyllgor ar gyfer eitem 5 ar y rhaglen. 
 
Arsylwyr – y Cynghorydd Mark Young. 
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 

 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: Gwasaneathau Cymdeithasol Ac Addysg (NS), Prif Reolwr - 
Gwasanaethau Gweithredol (DS), Cydlynwyr Craffu (KE a RE) a Gweinyddwyr y Pwyllgor 
(SJ a RTJ). 
 

 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd Michelle Blakeley-
Walker. 
 

2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT  
 
Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw gysylltiad personol na chysylltiad personol oedd yn peri 
rhagfarn.  
 

3 MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD  
 
Ni thynnwyd sylw’r Cadeirydd na’r Cydlynydd Craffu at unrhyw faterion brys cyn 
dechrau’r cyfarfod.  
 

4 COFNODION  
 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau a gynhaliwyd ar 29 
Mehefin 2023.  
 
Materion yn codi - Darparodd y Cynghorydd Elson ddiweddariad ar lafar i’r Pwyllgor 
ar gofnodion y Grŵp Craffu Cyfalaf blaenorol a gynhaliwyd ar 7 Mehefin 2023.  
Hysbysodd yr aelodau bod y grŵp wedi derbyn diweddariad ar gyllid gan Bennaeth 
Cyllid.    
Trafododd y Grŵp y Cynnig Cyfalaf mewn perthynas â’r Warchodfa Natur yn Fferm 
Green Gates yn Llanelwy.  Byddai’n cael ei ariannu yn bennaf gan Grantiau SPF. 

Tudalen 7

Eitem Agenda 4



Cyflwynwyd adroddiad hefyd ar y Cymunedau Cynaliadwy ar gyfer Dysgu a oedd 
yn darparu gwybodaeth gefndirol ar gyfer aelodau.   
Trafododd y Grŵp Ffyniant Bro a’r Cronfeydd Ffyniant Gyffredin, a rhestrwyd 8 
achos busnes, ni ofynnwyd cwestiynau ar yr achosion hynny.   
 
Dyma’r Cadeirydd yn diolch i’r swyddogion am drefnu a chwrdd ag aelodau ar yr 
orsaf trosglwyddo gwastraff newydd yn Ninbych.  Teimlai bod yr ymweliad safle 
wedi bod yn hynod o ddiddorol ac yn fuddiol i’w weld gyda llygaid ei hun.  Roedd yr 
aelodau'n edrych ymlaen at ymweliad yn y dyfodol i weld y safle ar waith. 
 
Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Merfyn Parry am ddiweddariad ar y Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen 
Llifogydd, dywedodd y Cydgysylltydd Craffu bod cais yn cael ei wneud ar hyn o 
bryd ym mhob Grŵp Ardal Aelod i enwebu cynrychiolydd i sefydlu'r grŵp a threfnu 
cyfarfodydd y grŵp gorchwyl a gorffen. 
 
Tynnodd y Cydlynydd Craffu sylw at yr adolygiad o Asesiad Llety Sipsiwn a 
Theithwyr a oedd ar fin cael ei gyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor yn y cyfarfod hwn ond roedd 
rhaid ei ohirio i gyfarfod y pwyllgor nesaf yn Hydref 2023.    
 
Felly: 
 
PENDERFYNODD y Pwyllgor, yn amodol ar yr uchod, bod cofnodion y cyfarfod a 
gynhaliwyd ar ddydd Iau, 29 Mehefin 2023 yn cael eu cymeradwyo fel cofnod cywir 
o’r achos. 
 

5 YMGYSYLLTU Â FFORWM GOFAL CYMRU A DARPARWYR GOFAL YN SIR 
DDINBYCH  
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Arweiniol Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol adroddiad (a 
ddosbarthwyd o flaen llaw), gan atgoffa aelodau bod yr adroddiad yn dilyn i fyny ar 
yr adroddiad brys ar benderfyniad y Cabinet i dderbyn argymhelliad y grŵp ar gyfer 
Ffi Ranbarthol Gogledd Cymru ar gyfer 2023/24 yn Rhagfyr 2022.  Roedd y 
Pwyllgor wedi cwrdd i drafod y penderfyniad yn gynharach yn y flwyddyn a 
gofynnwyd am adroddiad yn diweddaru gan Ofal Cymdeithasol i Oedolion a 
Gwasanaethau Digartrefedd ar eu hymrwymiad gyda Fforwm Gofal Cymru a 
Darparwyr Gofal yn Sir Ddinbych. 
 
Nododd yr Aelod Arweiniol bod yr adroddiad yn gryno am fod y broses gosod ffi ar 
gyfer 2024/24 dal yng nghamau cynnar y broses. Yn ei barn hi roedd yr adroddiad 
yn tynnu sylw at ymrwymiad yr Awdurdod i annog perthnasau tryloyw a chyd-
gynhyrchiol gyda darparwyr yn Sir Ddinbych. 
 
Byddai'r gwasanaeth yn parhau i weithio'n agos gyda'r holl ddarparwyr ar gyfer y 
broses gosod ffioedd ar gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol nesaf. 
 
Pwysleisiwyd i'r aelodau mai pwrpas yr adroddiad oedd trafod y pryderon a godwyd 
yn flaenorol ynghylch ymgysylltu â Fforwm Gofal Cymru a darparwyr gofal lleol. 
 
Diolchodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: Cymunedau i’r Aelod Arweiniol am y 
cyflwyniad a pharhaodd drwy bwysleisio bod ymgysylltu â darparwyr yn rhan o rôl y 

Tudalen 8



swyddog o ddydd i ddydd. Roedd cyfathrebu cyson rhwng yr Awdurdod a 
darparwyr. Ar draws Gofal Cymdeithasol i Oedolion a Digartrefedd roedd yr 
awdurdod yn gweithio ochr yn ochr â nifer o ddarparwyr ac yn comisiynu 
amrywiaeth o wasanaethau i gefnogi anghenion dinasyddion Sir Ddinbych ac yn 
aml unigolion sy'n byw y tu allan i'r awdurdod. 
 
Darparodd yr adroddiad trosolwg o’r ymrwymiad ychwanegol yr oedd swyddogion 
wedi’i gael gyda darparwyr yn dilyn yr adroddiad cynharach yn y flwyddyn.  Roedd 
yr adroddiad yn canolbwyntio ar y darparwyr hynny sy’n cynnig gofal preswyl a 
gofal cartref.   
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd yr Aelod Arweiniol a’r Swyddogion am y cyflwyniad a’r 
adroddiad manwl.  
 
Mewn ymateb i gwestiynau’r aelodau rhoddodd y swyddogion a’r cynrychiolwyr fwy 
o fanylion am y canlynol:   

 Roedd y pryder yr oedd aelodau wedi'i godi'n flaenorol yn ymwneud â diffyg 
ymgysylltu gan ddarparwyr i drafod ffioedd a chostau. Pwysleisiodd 
swyddogion fod y gwasanaeth wedi ymgysylltu â darparwyr ynghylch y 
ffioedd, roedd swyddogion yn siomedig â nifer y darparwyr a oedd wedi 
ymgysylltu'n ffurfiol â'r adran yn y broses. Roedd swyddogion wedi ymrwymo 
i geisio cynyddu ymgysylltiad â darparwyr gofal wrth symud ymlaen. 
Clywodd yr aelodau fod swyddogion yn gweithio gyda darparwyr yn 
rhanbarthol gan fod nifer o ddarparwyr yn cynnig gwasanaethau ar draws 
nifer o awdurdodau. 

 Roedd ymateb ymgysylltu gan ddarparwyr yn hanesyddol isel, ac roedd 
ceisio data ariannol yn aml yn gwaethygu'r mater. 

 Yn yr adroddiad, amlygwyd bod y Prif Reolwr - Gwasanaethau Gweithredol 
wedi bod yn rhan o drafodaethau gyda Fforwm Gofal Cymru. Dywedodd fod 
y cyfarfodydd a fynychodd wedi bod yn addysgiadol a chadarnhaol. 
Pwysleisiwyd bod y Prif Weithredwr ynghyd â'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol: 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ac Addysg wedi cyfarfod â Fforwm Gofal 
Cymru. Cafodd yr Awdurdod ddeialog agored gyda Fforwm Gofal Cymru ac 
roedd yn awyddus i feithrin perthynas dda a chadarnhaol.  

 Yn ystod y pandemig Covid, bu swyddogion ar draws yr Awdurdod yn 
ymladd dros ddarparu offer amddiffynnol personol (PPE), brechiadau, ac 
ystyriaethau eraill ar gyfer gweithwyr gofal. Roedd trafodaethau gyda 
Llywodraeth Cymru, Bwrdd Comisiynu Cenedlaethol a FfGC, ar achosion o’r 
fath ac wedi parhau yn dilyn llacio’r cyfyngiadau.  Mae’r achos i barhau gyda 
darpariaeth PPE i ddarparwyr gofal cymdeithasol am barhau ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn ariannol bresennol.  Y sefyllfa angenrheidiol oedd bod y 
ddarpariaeth yn cael ei hariannu’n gywir.  Yn y trafodaethau hynny cafodd ei 
wneud yn glir fod Awdurdodau Lleol angen cyllid yn llawn er mwyn storio a 
dosbarthu PPE. Fel awdurdod y farn oedd pe bai’r cyllid yn dod i ben yna’n 
anffodus byddai’r ddarpariaeth yn dod i ben hefyd.  Ni allai Awdurdodau Lleol 
ariannu’r adnoddau ychwanegol.  Ar ran y Gymuned, dyma’r Cadeirydd yn 
diolch i’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol am ei holl ymdrechion i gael gafael ar 
PPE i Sir Ddinbych ac awdurdodau ar draws Cymru. 

 Roedd aelodau yn falch o weld y cynnydd wrth wneud cyswllt â darparwyr 
gwasanaeth ac roedd y broses yn ei le i wella ymrwymiad.  

Tudalen 9



 Mae’r sefyllfa o bolisi llyfr agored bob tro wedi cael ei gynnal gan yr 
awdurdod.  Anogwyd awdurdodau i gysylltu â swyddogion gydag unrhyw 
ofynion penodol ychwanegol ac i egluro’r angen am unrhyw gyllid 
ychwanegol.   

 Mae nifer o ddarparwyr yn Sir Ddinbych yn ddarparwyr gofal bychain ac yn 
aml iawn, roedd y gwaith i’r darparwyr hyn i ddarparu’r wybodaeth fanwl ar 
gostau a ffioedd ychwanegol yn cymryd llawer o’u hamser ac yn gymhleth.  
Y Prif Reolwr - Roedd Gwasanaethau Gweithredol yn awyddus i gynnig 
cefnogaeth i ddarparwyr i helpu darparwyr allu cynnig gwybodaeth  

 • Ystyriwyd bod y dylai darparwyr eraill ymgysylltu yn dilyn yr ymarfer gosod 
ffioedd yn gadarnhaol. Hoffai swyddogion weld ymgysylltu pellach a 
phwysleisiwyd y byddai gwaith ymgysylltu pellach yn parhau.  

 Atgoffwyd aelodau mai rhan fach yn unig o’r broses gosod ffioedd oedd y 
broses ranbarthol.  Yn aml trafodwyd ffioedd ar sail achos i achos.   

 Unwaith y cyhoeddwyd y gyfradd ddangosol, cysylltodd swyddogion â phob 
darparwr gwasanaeth i roi gwybod iddynt am gyfraddau dangosol y flwyddyn 
ganlynol. Fe'u gwahoddwyd i gysylltu â swyddogion a chynnig adborth a 
darparu tystiolaeth o unrhyw achosion a allai fod angen costau ychwanegol.  

 Mae adborth gan ddarparwyr gwasanaeth bob tro yn cael ei annog.  Mae 
gan yr Awdurdod berthynas drysau agored gyda darparwyr gwasanaeth ac 
yn cynnig cefnogaeth pan yn bosib. 

 Roedd y berthynas gyda FfGC yn newid yn aml yn dibynnu ar y broblem ar y 
pryd.  Byddai anghytuno ar feysydd penodol fel sy’n bodoli mewn unrhyw 
berthynas waith yn cael eu hwynebu a’u trafod.  Roedd trafodaethau ar sail o 
ddydd i ddydd yn gadarnhaol.   

 Roedd enillion ar fuddsoddiad yn rhan bwysig o’r broses gosod ffi ddangosol 
a oedd yn parhau trwy’r ymarfer llyfr agored.   

 Dyma aelodau yn llongyfarch y swyddogion am y cynnydd a wnaed yn dilyn 
trafodaeth yn  y cyfarfod Pwyllgor blaenorol.   

 
Dangosodd y Cadeirydd ei werthfawrogiad i’r holl swyddogion am eu gwaith 
parhaus o ymgysylltu darparwyr Gofal a chynnig diolch i bawb oedd yn bresennol 
am y drafodaeth fanwl.  
 
Ar ddiwedd trafodaeth gynhwysfawr ac ar ôl ystyried yr adroddiad daeth y Pwyllgor 
i’r casgliad: 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: 

I. Cadarnhau ei fod wedi darllen, deall a chymryd i ystyriaeth yr adroddiad 
gyda’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ac 

II. Wedi gofyn am adroddiad diweddaru pellach i’w gyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor Craffu 
Cymunedau ymhen chwe mis. 

    
6 RHAGLEN WAITH ARCHWILIO  

 
Arweiniodd y Cydlynydd Craffu yr Aelodau trwy’r adroddiad Rhaglen Gwaith i’r 
Dyfodol Craffu Pwyllgorau (a ddosbarthwyd ymlaen llaw).  
 
Roedd y cyfarfod nesaf wedi’i drefnu ar gyfer 19 Hydref 2023, yn cynnig tair eitem 
ar gyfer y rhaglen. 

Tudalen 10



I. Adroddiad Cynnydd ar y Model Gwasanaeth Gwastraff Newydd;  
II. Rhaglen Adfywio a Llywodraethu Y Rhyl ac 

III. Adolygiad o Asesiad Llety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr. 
 
Anogodd y Cydlynydd Craffu aelodau os oedd ganddyn nhw unrhyw broblemau neu 
bryderon eu bod nhw’n cwblhau a dychwelyd Ffurflen Cynnig Aelodau (Atodiad 2) 
i’w trafod yn y cyfarfod Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion Craffu nesaf ar 3 Hydref 
2023.   
 
Atodiad 3 oedd Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol y Cabinet petai’r Pwyllgor eisiau craffu 
ar unrhyw faterion sydd ar ddod. 
 
Felly, dyma’r Pwyllgor yn: 
  
PENDERFYNU: derbyn yr adroddiad a chadarnhau Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y 
Pwyllgor, fel y nodir yn Atodiad 1 o’r adroddiad.  
 

7 ADBORTH GAN GYNRYCHIOLWYR PWYLLGOR  
 
Darparodd y Cynghorydd James Elson adborth ar gyfarfod Grŵp Caffael Cyfalaf a 
gynhaliwyd ar 27 Gorffennaf 2023.  Trafododd y grŵp 4 neu 5 eitem wahanol gan 
gynnwys eitem oedd yn adolygu llifogydd ym mynwent Rhuddlan gyda’r grŵp yn 
gofyn am ymgynghoriad pellach.  Darparodd y Cynghorydd Elson aelodau gyda 
disgrifiad byr o adroddiadau eraill a gyflwynwyd i’r grŵp.  Hysbysodd aelodau fod 
pont Llannerch ar gyfnod 2 - cam cynllunio, ac roedd yn braf clywed bod 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cytuno i gefnogi’r datblygiad hwn dros y 2 flynedd nesaf.   
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Elson wrth yr aelodau fod trafodaeth wedi bod ynglŷn â 
gwaith atgyweirio wal ardd Nantclwyd y Dre. Roedd y prosiect wedi gorwario a 
byddai’n golygu gwaith atgyweirio a fyddai o bosib yn costio £650,000 ac fe 
awgrymodd y byddai’n bwnc y dylai Caffael ei drafod.  Cytunodd i lenwi ffurflen 
cynnig gan aelodau i Graffu.   
 
Cododd y Cynghorydd Cheryl Williams bryderon am y rhaglen chwynnu sy’n cael ei 
wneud ar hyn o bryd.  Cynghorodd y Cadeirydd i’r Cynghorydd Williams i ysgrifennu 
at y swyddog priodol a gofyn am adroddiad i’w Grŵp Ardal yr Aelodau. 
 
 
 

Dyma’r Cadeirydd yn diolch i’r Swyddogion am y gefnogaeth a’u presenoldeb yn y 
cyfarfod gan ddod â’r cyfarfod i ben.  
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 10.55am. 

 

Tudalen 11



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau 

Dyddiad y cyfarfod 19 Hydref 2023 

Swyddog / Aelod Arweiniol   Aelod Arweiniol yr Amgylchedd a Chludiant / Pennaeth 

Cynllunio, Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a Gwasanaethau Cefn 

Gwlad  

Awdur yr Adroddiad Rheolwr Traffig, Parcio a Diogelwch ar y Ffyrdd 

Teitl Adolygu prisiau ac oriau gweithredol meysydd parcio 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1. Mae’r adroddiad yn egluro’r cynnydd arfaethedig mewn prisiau ym meysydd 

parcio’r Cyngor, newidiadau i gyfnodau codi tâl yn y meysydd parcio a’r 

posibilrwydd o gyflwyno ffioedd mewn rhai meysydd parcio sydd am ddim ar 

hyn o bryd. 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1. Rhoi dealltwriaeth fanwl i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau o’r newidiadau a gynigir 

a’r rhesymeg y tu ôl i’r newidiadau hyn. 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

3.1. Bod y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau yn nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad ac yn gwneud 

sylwadau am y cynnydd arfaethedig yn y prisiau parcio a’r newidiadau eraill a 

gynigir. 

4. Manylion yr adroddiad 

Cefndir 

4.1. Mae’r Cyngor yn gweithredu 47 maes parcio cyhoeddus ac mae 40 o’r rhain yn 

feysydd parcio talu ac arddangos. 

Tudalen 13

Eitem Agenda 5



 
 

4.2. Cafodd ein prisiau parcio eu cynyddu ddiwethaf ym mis Ebrill 2016. Yn ôl 

ffigurau Mynegai Prisiau Defnyddwyr Banc Lloegr, yn ystod y cyfnod hwnnw, 

mae cost nwyddau a gwasanaethau yn y DU wedi codi 31% yn sgil chwyddiant. 

Erbyn mis Ebrill 2024, rhagwelir y bydd hyn wedi cynyddu i bron i 35% uwchben 

lefelau Ebrill 2016. 

4.3. Rydym wedi gwrthsefyll y costau cynyddol hyn ers peth amser, ond mae angen 

i ni bellach gynyddu ein prisiau parcio. Er bod Banc Lloegr yn rhagweld y bydd 

chwyddiant yn gostwng i 5% erbyn 2024, bydd angen i ni gyflwyno elfen o 

“ddiogelu ar gyfer y dyfodol” wrth bennu prisiau arfaethedig ein meysydd parcio 

er mwyn caniatáu ar gyfer cynnydd mewn chwyddiant yn y dyfodol. Rhaid 

gwneud hyn am nad ydym ond yn cynyddu ein ffioedd bob ychydig o 

flynyddoedd fel arfer, oherwydd cost ail-raglennu ein peiriannau talu ac 

arddangos, newid arwyddion meysydd parcio a chostau cyfreithiol. Ar y cyfan, 

mae’r costau hyn yn cyrraedd cyfanswm o tua £15,000. Rhestrir prisiau newydd 

arfaethedig y meysydd parcio yn Atodiad A. 

4.4. Mae’r pris rydym yn ei godi yn ein meysydd parcio yn dibynnu ar y math o faes 

parcio. Mae ein meysydd parcio wedi’u dynodi’n rhai “Arhosiad Byr”, “Arhosiad 

Hir” neu “Traeth”. Mae’r gwahanol brisiau ar gyfer pob math o faes parcio yr un 

fath, waeth ym mha dref y mae'r maes parcio. Bu i ni ystyried tybed a ddylai’r 

prisiau amrywio rhwng trefi, ond cafodd hyn ei ddiystyru ar y sail na chafodd 

cynnig tebyg gefnogaeth gan yr aelodau etholedig pan gafodd ei drafod yn y 

Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau yn y cyfnod cyn cynyddu prisiau’r meysydd parcio 

ym mis Ebrill 2016. 

4.5. Wrth ystyried cynyddu’r prisiau parcio, rydym wedi ystyried y prisiau y mae 

Cynghorau Sir eraill Gogledd Cymru yn eu codi, a’r chwyddiant rhwng 2016 a 

2023, gan gynnwys lwfans “diogelu ar gyfer y dyfodol” ar gyfer lefelau 

chwyddiant uchel parhaus. Mae gwybodaeth am y prisiau parcio y mae 

Cynghorau eraill Gogledd Cymru yn eu codi i’w gweld yn Atodiad B. Er nad yw 

wedi’i adlewyrchu yn ffigurau awdurdodau eraill Gogledd Cymru, mae’n debygol 

y bydd rhai ohonynt hwythau yn ystyried codi’r prisiau ymhellach ym mis Ebrill 

2024. 

4.6. Cafodd prisiau ein Meysydd Parcio eu cynyddu ddiwethaf ym mis Ebrill 2016, 

ac ym mis Ebrill 2009 cyn hynny. Roedd cynnydd Ebrill 2016 yn cynnwys 

Tudalen 14



 
 

ymrwymiad i gynyddu buddsoddiad yn ein meysydd parcio, yn dilyn 

blynyddoedd o fuddsoddiad annigonol. Rheolwyd y buddsoddiad hwnnw drwy 

gyflwyno Cynllun Buddsoddi mewn Meysydd Parcio, ac rydym wedi gwario’n 

sylweddol ar seilwaith ein meysydd parcio ers 2016. Rydym yn cynnig datblygu 

Cynllun Buddsoddi tebyg ar gyfer y cyfnod 5 mlynedd o Ebrill 2024 ymlaen. 

4.7. Mae prisiau ein meysydd parcio’n weithredol rhwng 8am a 5pm ar hyn o bryd. 

Cynigir ein bod yn ymestyn y cyfnod hwn fel bod angen talu rhwng 8am ac 

11pm. Mae’r newid hwn yn adlewyrchu bod ein meysydd parcio yn asedau sy’n 

cael eu defnyddio am fwy na dim ond 9 awr y diwrnod, a bod angen eu cynnal a 

chadw. Nid yw talu am barcio gyda’r nos yn anarferol yn siroedd eraill Gogledd 

Cymru a thu hwnt, gweler Atodiad B. Mae ffioedd parcio Cyngor Bwrdeistref 

Sirol Conwy yn weithredol 24 awr y diwrnod, ond gyda chyfraddau rhatach dros 

nos (rhwng 6pm ac 8am). Ar Ynys Môn, mae’r ffioedd llawn yn weithredol rhwng 

8am ac 8pm. Yng Ngwynedd, mae ffioedd 24 awr yn weithredol yn 37 o’u 59 

maes parcio talu ac arddangos, ac mae angen talu rhwng 10am a 4.30pm yn y 

22 maes parcio arall. Yn Sir y Fflint, mae’r ffioedd yn weithredol rhwng 9am a 

5pm. Yn Wrecsam, mae menter yn cael ei chynnal sy’n cynnig parcio am ddim 

ar ôl 11am (h.y. mae angen talu rhwng 8am ac 11am). 

4.8. Gallai codi tâl am barcio gyda’r nos arwain at wrthwynebiad gan rai trigolion 

lleol sy’n defnyddio’r meysydd parcio i barcio dros nos ar hyn o bryd. Fodd 

bynnag, gall trigolion ddewis prynu trwydded barcio Arhosiad Hir, sy’n costio 

£120 y flwyddyn ar hyn o bryd, er y cynigir codi’r pris hwnnw fel y manylir ym 

mharagraff 4.10. Bydd unigolion dros 60 oed yn parhau i allu prynu trwydded 

ratach, sy’n costio ychydig dros hanner pris trwydded Arhosiad Hir safonol. 

4.9. Mae gennym ni nifer fechan o feysydd parcio cyhoeddus y gellir eu defnyddio 

am ddim. Rydym wrthi’n adolygu a oes yna achos i gyflwyno ffioedd yn rhai, 

neu bob un o’r meysydd parcio am ddim hyn. Mae rhestr o’r meysydd parcio am 

ddim i’w gweld yn Atodiad C.  

4.10. Cynigir cynyddu pris trwyddedau parcio fel y manylir yn Atodiad D. Mae Atodiad 

D hefyd yn dangos bod pris ein trwydded ni yn rhad iawn o’i gymharu ag 

awdurdodau cyfagos. Arhosodd prisiau ein trwyddedau yr un fath o 2009 tan 

ddechrau’r flwyddyn ariannol bresennol, ac mae hyn yn amlwg o weld pa mor 

rhad ydyn nhw o’u cymharu ag awdurdodau eraill Gogledd Cymru. 

Tudalen 15



 
 

4.11. Rydym yn bwriadu parhau i gynnig ein hamrywiol fentrau parcio am ddim. Mae’r 

rhain yn cynnwys parcio am ddim ar ôl 3pm ym mhob un o’n meysydd parcio 

talu ac arddangos canol tref o ddiwedd Tachwedd tan 31 Rhagfyr bob 

blwyddyn. Bydd yr ychydig fannau parcio am ddim am gyfnodau byr sydd i’w 

gweld yn rhai o’n meysydd parcio talu ac arddangos hefyd yn parhau. Yn olaf, 

byddwn yn parhau i gynnig 5 diwrnod parcio am ddim bob blwyddyn ym mhob 

Dinas, Tref a Phentref y mae gennym ni feysydd parcio talu ac arddangos 

ynddyn nhw. Y Cynghorau Dinas, Tref a Chymuned perthnasol sy’n dewis pryd i 

ddefnyddio eu 5 diwrnod am ddim. 

5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau 
Corfforaethol?  

5.1. Nid yw’r cynigion yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol ar y cyfan, ar 

wahân i rai buddion yn sgil defnyddio llai o ynni mewn meysydd parcio. 

6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar 
wasanaethau eraill? 

6.1. Bydd cynyddu prisiau meysydd parcio yn costio tua £15,000 oherwydd cost ail-

raglennu peiriannau talu’r meysydd parcio, newid arwyddion a chostau 

cyfreithiol. 

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les? 

7.1. Bydd Asesiad cynhwysfawr o Effaith ar Les yn cael ei gynnal cyn i’r Pennaeth 

Cynllunio, Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a Gwasanaethau Cefn Gwlad wneud 

penderfyniad, er mwyn ei helpu i ddod i’r penderfyniad hwnnw. 

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau sydd wedi’u cynnal gyda Chraffu ac 
eraill? 

8.1. Y gofyniad statudol ar gyfer newid prisiau meysydd parcio ac ymestyn cyfnodau 

codi tâl yw bod rhaid gosod hysbysiad cyhoeddus ym mhob maes parcio ac 

mewn papur newydd lleol, sy’n dangos y ffioedd presennol a’r ffioedd 

arfaethedig.  

8.2. Mae angen Gorchymyn Traffig a elwir yn Orchymyn Parcio oddi ar y Stryd er 

mwyn cyflwyno ffioedd mewn meysydd parcio a oedd yn arfer bod am ddim. 

Tudalen 16



 
 

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

9.1. Mae’r polisi ffioedd a thaliadau’n nodi y dylid eu hadolygu’n flynyddol pan fo 

hynny’n ymarferol er mwyn cwrdd â’r pwysau chwyddiant y mae’r Cyngor yn eu 

hwynebu. Cydnabyddir nad yw hynny bob amser yn bosib a bod angen cynnal 

adolygiadau cyfnodol weithiau. Mae’n dda bod hyn wedi’i wneud ar adeg pan 

fo’r Cyngor yn wynebu pwysau cyllidebol a chyfyngiadau cyllido difrifol. Caiff y 

cynigion yn yr adroddiad hwn eu cefnogi’n llawn. 

10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 
lleihau? 

10.1. Y risg fwyaf fydd gwrthwynebiad gan drigolion a siopwyr canol tref. Bydd angen 

cyfathrebu’n glir pam fod angen gwneud y newidiadau. 

11. Pŵer i wneud y penderfyniad 

11.1. Paragraff 8.50 Atodiad 3 i Adran 13 Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor. 

11.2. Adran 35C Deddf Rheoleiddio Traffig Ffyrdd 1984. Rheoliad 25 Rheoliadau 

Gorchmynion Traffig Awdurdodau Lleol (Gweithdrefn) (Cymru a Lloegr) 1996. 

Tudalen 17



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Appendix A 

 

Short Stay Car Parks 

Duration Existing Tariff Proposed Tariff 

1 hour £1.00 £1.50 

3 hours £2.00 £3.00 

All day £7.00 £8.00 

   

 

 

Long Stay Car Parks 

Duration Existing Tariff Proposed Tariff 

1 hour £1.00 £1.50 

3 hours £1.50 £2.50 

All day £3.50 £4.00 

   

 

 

Beach Car Parks 

Duration Existing Tariff Proposed Tariff 

1 hour £1.00 £1.50 

4 hours £3.00 £4.00 

All day £4.50 £5.00 

   

 

Tudalen 19



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Appendix B1 – Short Stay Car Parks 

Car Park Tariffs charged by other North Wales Authorities 

Parking Duration Proposed 
Denbighshire CC 

Cost 

Anglesey CC cost Conwy CBC cost Wrexham CC cost Flintshire CC cost Gwynedd CC cost 

30 mins 
 

Will no longer be 
offered/available 

Not offered Not offered Not offered Not offered Not offered 

1 hour 
 

£1.50 £1.00 £1.60 £1.00 30p £1.00 

2 hours 
 

 £3.00 £3.30 £1.80 50p £2.00 

3 hours 
 

£3.00     £3.00 

4 hours 
 

 £6.00 £6.50   £7.00 

All day (daytime) 
 

£8.00 £10.00     

Evening 
 

      

24 hours 
 

      

Charging hours 0800-2300 0800-2000 24 hours 0800-1100 0800-1700 
 

1000-1630 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 21



 

Appendix B2 – Long Stay Car Parks 

Car Park Tariffs charged by other North Wales Authorities in comparison with Denbighshire CC 

Parking Duration Proposed 
Denbighshire CC 

Cost 

Anglesey CC cost Conwy CBC cost Wrexham CC cost Flintshire CC cost Gwynedd CC cost 

30 mins 
 

Will no longer be 
offered/available 

Not offered Not offered Not offered Not offered Not offered 

1 hour 
 

£1.50 £1 £1.40 £1.00   

2 hours 
 

 £1.50 £2.30 £1.80 50p  

3 hours 
 

£2.50      

4 hours 
 

 £2.00 £3.80   £2.20 

All day (daytime) 
 

£4.00 £3.00   £1.50 £4.40 

Evening 
 

      

24 hours 
 

     £5.50 

Charging Hours 0800-2300 0800-2000 24 hours 0800-1100 0800-1700 
 

24 hours 

 

T
udalen 22



Appendix C 

 

Car Parks that are currently free but for which we will consider the potential for introducing charging 

Town Car Park Comments 

Rhuddlan Vicarage Lane  

Meliden Ffordd Talargoch  

Rhyl Marine Lake  

Rhyl Quay St Currently closed until 2025 

Corwen Bridge Road  

Denbigh Townsend  

Denbigh Mount Pleasant  

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 23



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Appendix D 

Existing and Proposed Car Park Permit Costs 

Type of Permit Existing 
Denbighshire CC 

Cost 

Proposed 
Denbighshire CC 

Cost 

Conwy CBC cost Wrexham CC cost Flintshire CC cost Gwynedd CC cost 

Long Stay Car Park 
(12 month duration) 

 

£120 £140 £243 for County-
wide 

(£115-144 for 
selected car 

parks) 

£600 for 
Waterworld CP 

£400 for 
Crescent Rd CP 

£200 £140 

Long Stay Car Park 
(6 month duration) 

 

£65 £80 Not offered £300 for 
Waterworld CP 

£200 for 
Crescent Rd CP 

Not offered £70 

Long Stay Car Park 
(3 month duration) 

 

£35 £50 Not offered Not offered Not offered Not offered 

Long Stay Car Park - 
Concessionary for aged 

60 and over 
(12 month duration) 

 

£65 £80 Not offered Not offered Not offered Not offered 

Beach Car Park £65 £80 Not offered Not applicable Not offered Not offered 

Beach Car Park 
(Concessionary for aged 

60 and over) 

£35 £50 Not offered Not applicable Not offered Not offered 

Resident Permit £25.54 £35 £63 for first 
vehicle. 

£84 for second 
vehicle 

Not offered £25 £60 for first 
vehicle. 

£90 for second 
vehicle 

Resident Visitor Permit £5 for book of 10 £6 for book of 10 £5.80 for 
book of 10 

Not offered £5 for book of 10 £5 for book of 10 

 

T
udalen 25



M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



Car Park Tariff Review:
Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental and

cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 1271

Brief description: Proposal to increase car park tariffs across all our pay and display car parks,

extension of charging hours, introduction of charging in some car parks that are currently free, and

increase in parking permit charges.

Date Completed: 10/10/2023 19:15:44 Version: 3

Completed by: Mike Jones

Responsible Service: Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services

Localities affected by the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by the proposal? Anyone who uses our car parks. Local retailers. Residents

affected by displaced parking. Operators of tourist attractions.

Was this impact assessment completed as a group? No

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 1 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 27



Summary and Conclusion

Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider how

the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in a

manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability

of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

2 out of 4 stars

Actual score : 18 / 36.

Summary for each Sustainable Development principle

Long term

A Car Park Investment Plan will be developed over the coming months, to prioritise and plan future

investment in our car parks over the next five years. It is suggested that the Investment Plan itself and

future monitoring of progress against the Plan should be brought back to a future meeting of

Communities Scrutiny Committee.

Prevention

It's possible that increased car parking charges might discourage some people from using their car,

but any such impact is likely to be negligible, hence the proposal is considered to have a neutral

impact.

Integration

The proposal will not directly contribute to other Well-being goals, nor the delivery of the LDP.

Collaboration

When this WBIA is reviewed and updated in the coming weeks, this will be undertaken by staff from

across a number of different teams and services in order to bring a range of skills, experience and

perspectives.

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 2 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 28



Involvement

There is no statutory requirement to consult upon increasing parking tariffs. The only requirement is to

display public notices in the press and affected car parks to list the existing and proposed car park

tariffs.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals Overall Impact

A prosperous Denbighshire Neutral

A resilient Denbighshire Neutral

A healthier Denbighshire Negative

A more equal Denbighshire Negative

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Positive

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language Neutral

A globally responsible Denbighshire Positive

Main conclusions

There are more negative impacts, than positive, owing to the potential financial impact upon

individuals. However, this needs to be considered against the fact that the proposed increases are

in-line with amount that the cost of goods and services have increased by, due to inflation, since the

last tariff increase in 2016.

There are some positive impacts resulting from the increased income enabling us to continue to

invest in our car parks.

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 3 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 29



The likely impact on Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for impact

Small potential gains resulting from people choosing not to park, are likely to be countered by

concerns about a negative impact upon High Street retail performance, albeit there is little evidence

to show that increased parking tariffs do actually harm retail performance.

There will be strong concerns about evening charging and the potential impact upon the night-time

economy. However, evening charging is fairly commonplace in other North Wales local authorities.

Further actions required

Communication with local business groups will be important to explain the changes and listen to their

views.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Increased parking tariffs may possibly encourage some people to walk, cycle or use public transport

rather than using their car. However, any such impact is likely to be fairly negligible in an area like

Denbighshire where there is high reliance on the car.

Quality communications, infrastructure and transport

It would enable car park income to be reinvested into improving the quality of car parks and related

services, such as highways and traffic infrastructure.

Economic development

Although there will be very strong concerns about the impact on town centre footfall, there is very little

evidence from research that supports that view.

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 4 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 30



It should also be noted that the proposed changes to car park tariffs are broadly in-line with inflation

when considering prices since April 2016 (when our car park tariffs were last increased) to April

2024 when the increased tariffs are likely to be introduced.

Quality skills for the long term

N/A

Quality jobs for the long term

N/A

Childcare

N/A

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society

[TEXT HERE]

Quality communications, infrastructure and transport

[TEXT HERE]

Economic development

There is likely to be strong opposition to increasing car park tariffs from retailers, business groups

and residents.

Continuing pressures for High Street retailers, including online competition, have seen well-

established retailers fold, such as the recent demise of Wilko. There will thus be concern that

increased tariffs will be a further deterrent to people visiting town centres. 

Evening charging may have a detrimental impact upon some businesses, especially the "night-time"

economy.

Quality skills for the long term

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 5 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 31



N/A

Quality jobs for the long term

N/A

Childcare

N/A

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for impact

No impact as the proposals relate to increased parking costs, charging for longer periods, and the

charging in some car parks that are currently free.

Further actions required

Not applicable

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the natural environment

No impact as the proposals relate to increased parking costs, charging for longer periods, and the

charging in some car parks that are currently free.

Biodiversity in the built environment

No impact

Reducing waste, reusing and recycling

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 6 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 32



No impact

Reduced energy/fuel consumption

No impact

People’s awareness of the environment and biodiversity

No impact

Flood risk management

No impact

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the natural environment

No impact

Biodiversity in the built environment

No impact

Reducing waste, reusing and recycling

No impact

Reduced energy/fuel consumption

No impact

People’s awareness of the environment and biodiversity

No impact

Flood risk management

No impact

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 7 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 33



A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Negative

Justification for impact

Increased parking costs might possibly impact upon some people's decision-making, when deciding

where to shop or whether to take part in certain leisure activities.

Further actions required

The proposed increase in parking tariffs are broadly in line with inflation, since the last car park tariff

increase in April 2016. Any negative impacts should be fairly short-lived.

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical environment that encourage and support health and well-being

No impact as the proposals relate to increased parking costs, charging for longer periods, and the

charging in some car parks that are currently free.

Access to good quality, healthy food

[TEXT HERE]

People’s emotional and mental well-being

[TEXT HERE]

Access to healthcare

[TEXT HERE]

Participation in leisure opportunities

[TEXT HERE]

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 8 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 34



Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical environment that encourage and support health and well-being

No impact

Access to good quality, healthy food

It is possible that increased parking charges may affect where some people choose to undertake

their food shopping, if they currently do some of their food shopping in town centres. This may

possibly lead to some of these people choosing to shop in supermarkets where parking is free.

People’s emotional and mental well-being

The proposals may possibly have a detrimental impact on the emotional and well-being of people

who are more directly affected by the proposals. For example, some business owners might be

worried about what the long-term impact upon their business might be.

Access to healthcare

It is possible that if the only available parking for a healthcare facility is within a public car park, then

there is a small possibility that increased costs might dissuade some people from visiting a

healthcare provider.

Participation in leisure opportunities

As some leisure activities may be viewed as "nice to haves" more than essentials; increased

parking costs might possibly discourage some people from partaking in leisure opportunities.

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Negative

Justification for impact

Increased parking costs may potentially have a greater impact upon those who have less disposable

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 9 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 35



income available, or who are car-dependant.

Further actions required

Raise awareness of areas where blue badge holders can park for free, such as the free parking

areas in some car parks, on-street pay and display (in Rhyl). Also consider a campaign to remind

blue badge holders that they have an additional hour to park in our car park blue badge bays

("disabled bays"), as this can sometimes mean not needing to pay for the next higher tariff, resulting

in a cost saving for the individual.

Promote resident permit as this is a cheaper option.

Positive impacts identified:

Improving the well-being of people with protected characteristics. The nine protected
characteristics are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage or civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation

[TEXT HERE]

People who suffer discrimination or disadvantage

No likely impact

People affected by socio-economic disadvantage and unequal outcomes

[TEXT HERE]

Areas affected by socio-economic disadvantage

[TEXT HERE]

Negative impacts identified:

Improving the well-being of people with protected characteristics. The nine protected
characteristics are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage or civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation

According to the Equality and Human Rights Commission, those with a work-limiting disability are

more likely to be experience a pay gap in comparison to those without this type of disability.

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 10 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 36



Increased parking charges may, therefore, have a greater impact upon people with less disposable

income. Please note that holders of Blue badges pay standard parking fees in Denbighshire CC car

parks, but do receive an additional hour of parking on top of the standard tariff duration. This

additional hour is provided because some blue badge holders may requite additional time to enter or

leave their vehicle, or to travel to their destination.

People who suffer discrimination or disadvantage

No likely impact

People affected by socio-economic disadvantage and unequal outcomes

When viewed in proportion to overall income, increased parking costs are likely to have a greater

impact upon those with less disposable income available. This is especially likely to be the case in

terms of the Cost-of-Living Crisis.

Areas affected by socio-economic disadvantage

Rural areas such as much of Denbighshire, typically results in greater car-dependency. This means

that increased parking charges can potentially have a more significant impact on such communities

where other travel options may not be available.

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

Increasing tariffs broadly in-line with inflation means that it we will be able to continue investing

appropriately in our car parks.

Further actions required

Prioritise and plan investment through the implementation of a car park investment plan.

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 11 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 37



Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities and individuals

Increasing car park tariffs in-line with inflation means that we will continue to be able to invest in our

car parks, to keep them safe in terms of investing in and maintaining lighting, CCTV, and fire and

ventilation systems in Rhyl Central Car Park and Denbigh Multi-Storey Car Park.

Community participation and resilience

No impact as the proposals relate to increased parking costs, charging for longer periods, and the

charging in some car parks that are currently free.

The attractiveness of the area

Increasing car park tariffs in-line with inflation means that we will continue to be able to invest in our

car parks, to keep them well-maintained and tidy.

Connected communities

Well-managed car parks, are an important part of the transport network.

Rural resilience

[TEXT HERE]

Negative impacts identified:

Safe communities and individuals

[TEXT HERE]

Community participation and resilience

[TEXT HERE]

The attractiveness of the area

[TEXT HERE]

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 12 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 38



Connected communities

[TEXT HERE]

Rural resilience

In rural areas where there is often greater car-dependency, the impact of increased parking charges

is likely to be greater.

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for impact

Not likely to have an impact

Further actions required

Not applicable

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Not likely to have an impact

Promoting the Welsh language

Not likely to have an impact

Culture and heritage

Not likely to have an impact

Negative impacts identified:

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 13 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 39



People using Welsh

[TEXT HERE]

Promoting the Welsh language

[TEXT HERE]

Culture and heritage

[TEXT HERE]

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

Use of local supply chains.

Further actions required

Continue to use local supplier and contractors wherever possible, whilst ensuring continued

compliance with the Council's Procurement Rules (Contract Procedure Rules).

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national, international supply chains

Continuing investment in car parks, will generate works for a number of local contractors and

suppliers

Human rights

Not likely to have an impact

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 14 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 40



Broader service provision in the local area or the region

Not likely to have an impact

Reducing climate change

It is possible that increased car park charges might encourage some people to leave their car at

home, and use alternative forms of transport such as the bus, cycling or walking. However, such

impact is likely to be negligible given that tariffs are being increased in-line with inflation.

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national, international supply chains

[TEXT HERE]

Human rights

[TEXT HERE]

Broader service provision in the local area or the region

[TEXT HERE]

Reducing climate change

[TEXT HERE]

Car Park Tariff Review

Page 15 of 15 Printed on 10/10/2023Tudalen 41



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Saesneg.  This document is available in English. 

 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau 

Dyddiad y cyfarfod 19 Hydref 2023 

Aelod/Swyddog Arweiniol Y Cyng. Win-Mullen James - Aelod Arweiniol Datblygu Lleol a 

Chynllunio 

 Y Cynghorydd  Peter Scott - Cadeirydd – Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen 

Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr 

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth  Emlyn Jones 

 Pennaeth Cynllunio, Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a Gwasanaethau 

Cefn Gwlad 

Awdur yr adroddiad Kimberley Mason (Rheolwr Prosiect Corfforaethol) 

Teitl Adolygiad o Asesiad Llety Teithwyr a Sipsiwn Sir Ddinbych 

(2023) - adroddiad yn ôl i Graffu Cymunedau o’r Grŵp Tasg a 

Gorffen 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1. Mae Deddf Tai (Cymru) 2014 yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i gynnal a chyflwyno asesiad o 

anghenion llety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr i Lywodraeth Cymru (LlC) bob 5 mlynedd.  

Cyflawnodd y Cyngor yr asesiad rhwng Awst a Hydref 2021, a chafodd ei gyflwyno i 

LlC ar 24 Rhagfyr 2021.   

1.2. Yn dilyn cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet a chyflwyniad yr Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a 

Theithwyr blaenorol i LlC, roedd teulu gydag angen, a oedd wedi gwrthod cymryd 

rhan yn flaenorol, wedi cysylltu â’r Cyngor i ofyn am gael eu cynnwys. 

1.3. Yn dilyn adroddiad i Friffio’r Cabinet ar 9 Ionawr 2023, sefydlwyd Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen 

er mwyn cefnogi’r gwaith ar yr asesiad newydd. Mae’r Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen bellach 

Tudalen 43

Eitem Agenda 6



 
 

wedi gorffen ei waith ac mae adroddiad terfynol gan y Grŵp wedi’i atodi fel Atodiad 1. 

Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn darparu casgliadau gwaith y Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen. 

1.4. Mae’r adroddiad hwn hefyd yn cyflwyno drafft diwygiedig o’r Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a 

Theithwyr, wedi’i atodi fel Atodiad 2 i’w ail-gyflwyno i LlC yn dilyn cymeradwyaeth y 

Cabinet. 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1 Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw diweddaru’r Pwyllgor Craffu ar waith y Grŵp Tasg a 

Gorffen. Mae gwaith ar yr Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr diwygiedig bellach wedi’i 

gwblhau  a bydd casgliadau’r Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen yn helpu i hysbysu ystyriaethau 

Craffu o’r Asesiad diwygiedig drafft.   

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

3.1. Bod Craffu yn cefnogi casgliadau’r Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen fod methodoleg LlC wedi cael 

ei gymhwyso’n briodol i’r dadansoddiad o angen. 

3.2. Bod Craffu yn cadarnhau cefnogaeth ar gyfer y dull cadarn a fabwysiadwyd i ddarparu 

Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr Sir Ddinbych a’i fod yn unol â chanllawiau LlC.   

3.3. Bod Craffu yn argymell i’r Cabinet fod yr Asesiad diwygiedig drafft yn cael ei 

gymeradwyo i gael ei ail-gyflwyno i LlC. 

3.4. Bod y Pwyllgor yn cadarnhau ei fod wedi darllen, deall ac ystyried yr Asesiad o Effaith 

ar Les, sydd wedi’i atodi fel Atodiad 3 fel rhan o’i ystyriaethau.   Cafodd hyn ei gwblhau 

cyn cyflwyno’r asesiad cyntaf yn 2021 ac wedi’i adolygu yn 2023.  

4. Manylion yr adroddiad 

Cefndir 

4.1. Mae Deddf Tai (Cymru) 2014 yn rhoi dyletswydd gyfreithiol ar Awdurdodau Lleol i 

asesu anghenion llety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr (Adran 101) ac yna diwallu’r anghenion 

hynny (Adran 103). Mae gofyniad cyfreithiol (Deddf Tai (Cymru) 2014) i gyflawni 

Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr bob 5 mlynedd o leiaf.  Mae Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn 

a Theithwyr diweddaraf hefyd yn ofynnol ar gyfer y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol (CDLl) 

newydd. Y dyddiad cau i gyflwyno Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr i Lywodraeth 

Cymru oedd 24 Chwefror 2022, ond mae caniatâd i awdurdodau lleol gyflwyno Asesiad 

Tudalen 44



 
 

o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr diwygiedig tan derbyn cymeradwyaeth LlC.  O fis Medi 

2023, nid oedd LlC wedi darparu unrhyw adborth i unrhyw awdurdod lleol yng Nghymru 

heb unrhyw ddynodiad clir o ran pryd fuasai hyn yn debygol o ddigwydd chwaith. 

4.2. Mae LlC wedi cyhoeddi canllawiau statudol manwl ‘Cyflawni Asesiadau o Lety Sipsiwn 

a Theithwyr’1 a bydd yn asesu’r Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr sydd wedi’i 

gwblhau yn erbyn y fethodoleg hon.  

4.3. Cafodd dull rheoli prosiectau cadarn ei fabwysiadu drwy ailsefydliad Bwrdd Prosiect o 

dan arweiniad Aelod yn 2022, gyda’r Aelod Arweiniol yn gweithio gydag Uwch 

Swyddogion i gyfeirio’r gwaith i sicrhau ymgysylltiad Aelodau, agoredrwydd a 

thryloywder. 

Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen 

4.4. Diben y Grŵp oedd i sicrhau bod y camau a gymerwyd i ddarparu’r Asesiad o Lety 

Sipsiwn a Theithwyr diwygiedig yn cydymffurfio â methodoleg LlC a bod adborth 

blaenorol o ran cyfranogiad Aelodau a chymuned yn cael ei gymryd i ystyriaeth o fewn 

y ddogfen yn unol â gofynion Craffu.  

4.5. Mae Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen wedi cwrdd tair gwaith ers Mawrth 2023. Maent wedi 

adolygu cynnydd ar yr asesiad a chanfyddiadau’r adroddiad o Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn 

a Theithwyr diwygiedig drafft. Mae’r Aelod Arweiniol, y Cynghorydd Win Mullen-James 

hefyd wedi mynychu cyfarfodydd fel aelod o’r grŵp.  Mae’r adroddiad llawn ynghlwm 

fel Atodiad 1 . 

4.6. Cafodd canfyddiadau’r Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr diwygiedig drafft eu 

cyflwyno i’r Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen yn ei gyfarfod ar 21 Medi a chytunodd y grŵp eu bod 

yn fodlon fod methodoleg LlC wedi cael ei gymhwyso’n briodol i’r dadansoddiad o 

angen. 

                                            

1 https://www.llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/cynnal-asesiadau-o-anghenion-llety-sipsiwn-
a-theithwyr.pdf  

Tudalen 45

https://www.llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/cynnal-asesiadau-o-anghenion-llety-sipsiwn-a-theithwyr.pdf
https://www.llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/cynnal-asesiadau-o-anghenion-llety-sipsiwn-a-theithwyr.pdf


 
 

Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr Drafft Sir Ddinbych 

4.7. Defnyddiwyd ystod eang o ddulliau i godi ymwybyddiaeth o’r Asesiad ac i ymgysylltu 

â chymunedau Sipsi, Roma a Theithwyr yn unol â’r Cynllun Cyfathrebu ac Ymgysylltu 

â Budd-ddeiliaid, pan gyflawnwyd y gwaith dechreuol yn 2021. 

4.8. Ar gyfer yr asesiad diwygiedig, cysylltodd yr ymgynghorwyr, Opinion Research 

Services (ORS), a gyflawnodd yr asesiad yn 2021 ar gyfer Sir Ddinbych, â’r teulu 

ychwanegol er mwyn eu cynnwys yn yr adroddiad, gan asesu eu hanghenion gan 

ddefnyddio’r holiadur arolwg a ddarparwyd o fewn methodoleg LlC.  Cysylltodd ORS 

gyda’r teuluoedd presennol hefyd a gyfwelwyd yn 2021 er mwyn sicrhau nad oedd eu 

hamgylchiadau wedi newid a bod eu gwybodaeth yn cael ei ddiweddaru.   

4.9. Mae gwaith ar yr Asesiad bellach wedi’i gwblhau ac mae Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a 

Theithwyr diwygiedig drafft wedi’i atodi yn Atodiad 2.  

4.10. Casgliad Asesiad o Anghenion Llety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr diwygiedig drafft Sir 

Ddinbych oedd: 

Yn seiliedig ar y dystiolaeth a gyflwynwyd yn astudiaeth ORS, y ddarpariaeth llain 

ychwanegol amcangyfrifedig sydd ei angen ar gyfer Sipsiwn a Theithwyr yn Sir 

Ddinbych am 5 mlynedd gyntaf y cyfnod astudiaeth (2023/24 - 2028/29) yw ar gyfer 16 

llain breswyl barhaol. 

Yn seiliedig ar yr angen erbyn 2033, diwedd cyfnod CDLl Newydd Sir Ddinbych, bydd 

angen 2 lain preswyl parhaol pellach ar gyfer twf aelwyd yn y dyfodol.  

Mae hyn yn rhoi cyfanswm angen ar gyfer y cyfnod cyfan ar draws Sir Ddinbych am 

18 o leiniau preswyl parhaol sy’n gynnydd o 6 llain breswyl barhaol o’r Asesiad 

blaenorol a gwblhawyd yn 2021. 

I gadarnhau, mae 1 llain yn bodloni anghenion 1 aelwyd. 

Nid oes tystiolaeth o’r angen am safle tramwy parhaol oherwydd niferoedd isel 

gwersylloedd diawdurdod, natur tymor byr y math yma o wersylloedd a'r ffaith nad 

oedd cyfweliadau gyda’r gymuned Sipsiwn a Theithwyr wedi dynodi’r angen am 

ddarpariaeth dramwy barhaol yn lleol.  

Tudalen 46



 
 

4.11. Bydd trafodaethau yn y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei adrodd i’r Cabinet ar 21 Tachwedd 

2023 a’r bwriad yw ceisio cymeradwyaeth yn y cyfarfod i gyflwyno’r Asesiad diwygiedig 

drafft i LlC ar gyfer cymeradwyaeth.  

5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at Gynllun 
Corfforaethol 2022 i 2027: Y Sir Ddinbych a Garem? 

5.1. Bydd cwblhad yr Asesiad yn cyfrannu at Amcan Lles a Chydraddoldeb Sir Ddinbych: 

Sir Ddinbych â thai o ansawdd sy’n bodloni anghenion pobl trwy ganfod anghenion 

llety’r gymuned Sipsiwn a Theithwyr. 

6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar 
wasanaethau eraill? 

6.1. Cafodd yr ymgynghorwyr eu caffael ar y cyd â Chyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy er 

mwyn cyflawni’r Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr.  Mae ymrwymiad Sir Ddinbych 

o £5,500 wedi’i ddiwallu o gyllideb CDLl.  Bydd unrhyw gostau a ysgwyddir o’r gwaith 

ychwanegol yn cael ei ariannu trwy’r comisiwn gwreiddiol a chyllideb CDLl. 

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les? 

7.1. Cyflawnwyd Asesiad o’r Effaith ar Les ar gyfer y prosiect yn 2021 a’i adolygu yn 2023 

ar gyfer y gwaith ychwanegol hwn, ac wedi’i atodi fel Atodiad 3 .  Mae hyn yn golygu 

bod yr effaith cyffredinol yn gadarnhaol ac yn parhau felly.   

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau sydd wedi’u cynnal gyda Chraffu ac 
eraill? 

8.1. Mae’r Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen wedi cwrdd tair gwaith ers ail-ymgynnull ym Mawrth 2023 

ac roedd y trafodaethau yn llywio gwaith y rhaglen er mwyn i ORS gwblhau’r Asesiad 

diwygiedig. 

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

9.1. Fel y nodir yn Adran 6 nid oes yna gostau uniongyrchol sy’n ymwneud â gwaith y 

Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen a chroesawir bod costau cychwynnol ymgynghorwyr wedi’i 

gymryd i ystyriaeth o fewn cyllidebau presennol. 

Tudalen 47



 
 

10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 
lleihau? 

10.1. Mae nifer o risgiau i’r prosiect wedi cael eu canfod a chawsant eu cynnwys yn yr 

asesiad risg achos busnes y prosiect llawn.  Canfuwyd bod diffyg cefnogaeth 

wleidyddol yn risg sylweddol a arweiniodd at ymgysylltiad yr Aelod Arweiniol yn y 

prosiect o’r dechrau, yn ogystal ag ymgysylltiad yr Arweinydd yn ystod y gwaith a 

gwblhawyd yn 2021.  Bydd sefydlu Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen ac adroddiadau i Graffu yn 

sicrhau mwy o gyfraniad gan Aelodau yn y prosiect o’r dechrau.  

11. Pŵer i wneud y penderfyniad 

Adran 101 - Deddf Tai (Cymru) 2014  

Adran 21 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 

Adran 7.4.1 ac Adran 7.4.2 (d) o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor 

Atodiadau 

Atodiad 1 - Adroddiad Grŵp Tasg a Gorffen Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr Hydref 

2023 

 

GTAA - T & F Group 

report FINAL.pdf  

Atodiad 2 - Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr Diwygiedig 2023 ar gyfer Sir 

Ddinbych 

 [insert link] 

Atodiad 3 - Asesiad o’r Effaith ar Les Asesiad o Lety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr 2021 

(adolygwyd yn 2023) 

WBIA Assessment 

GTAA 2023 revision.pdf 

 

Tudalen 48

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/cy/anaw/2014/7/section/101/welsh
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/cy/ukpga/2000/22/section/21
file://///Southfs01/data9$/GT%20Accommodation/1.%20GTAA%20New/1.%20Meetings,%20Reports,%20Briefings/Scrutiny%20T&F%20group/denbighshire-county-council-constitution-may-2023.pdf


Appendix 1 

Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) 

Task and Finish Group Report October 2023 

1. Purpose of the Group  

The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 requires that an assessment of accommodation needs of 

Gypsies and Travellers must be undertaken and submitted to Welsh Government (WG) 

every 5 years.  The Council undertook the assessment between August and October 2021 

and a Task and Finish Group (T&F) was established to work on the initial Gypsy & 

Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA).  The GTAA was submitted to WG on 24 

December 2021. 

 

Following Cabinet approval and WG submission of the previous GTAA, a family with an 

existing need who had previously declined to participate, contacted the Council, and asked 

to now be included.   

 

Following a report to Cabinet Briefing on 9 January 2023, it was acknowledged that the 

previous T&F group had worked well in supporting the initial assessment, therefore it was 

agreed to re-establish this group to support work on the new assessment. The T&F Group 

has now concluded its work and this report provides the conclusions from the work of the 

group.  This report provides an update on the work and presents the findings and 

recommendations of the T&F Group. 

Welsh Government (WG) have published detailed statutory guidance ‘Undertaking Gypsy 

and Traveller Accommodation Assessments’.1 This forms the basis for undertaking the 

GTAA and WG will assess the completed GTAA against this methodology. 

The purpose of the T&F Group has been to provide quality assurance by ensuring that the 

approach taken to deliver the revised GTAA has complied with the WG methodology and 

 

1 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/undertaking-gypsy-and-traveller-accommodation-
assessments.pdf  
 

Tudalen 49

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/undertaking-gypsy-and-traveller-accommodation-assessments.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/undertaking-gypsy-and-traveller-accommodation-assessments.pdf


 

 2 

Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA)                

Task and Finish Group Report (October 2023) 

that previous feedback has been considered within the new document in line with Scrutiny 

requirements. In addition, the group has monitored progress and advised as necessary on 

the delivery of the Assessment. 

2. GTAA Project structure and management 

The WG GTAA methodology requires that a project Steering Group is established. There 

has however been a more comprehensive and robust project structure developed for 

managing the Denbighshire GTAA, including establishment of a member-led Project Board 

and a T&F Group.  This is above the requirements set out within the methodology and has 

included a role for Elected Members within the project structure through a T&F Group. 

     2.1 Project Board 

This is a project management requirement and is a not a requirement of the WG GTAA 

methodology.  A Project Board was originally established with the purpose of ensuring that 

this piece of work is Member-led through inclusion of the Leader of the Council and the Lead 

Member.  The Board reconvened in late 2022 to complete the revised Assessment, at this 

point the Leader agreed with the Board that it was not imperative for them to attend for the 

additional work.  The role of the Project Board has been to manage the delivery of the 

project, secure resources for the project, and ensure communication about the project.  

     2.2 Task and Finish (T&F) Group 

This is not a requirement of the WG GTAA methodology.  The role of the Task and Finish 

Group as defined in the agreed Terms of Reference has been to monitor adherence to the 

methodology and report to Communities Scrutiny Committee.  

     2.3 Consultants 

The WG methodology allows for external consultants to be engaged to undertake the 

Accommodation Needs Assessment. Opinion Research Services (ORS) were 

commissioned to undertake the assessment on behalf of Denbighshire County Council and 

Conwy County Borough Council. Separate reports have been developed for each authority 

and they have carried out the additional work at this time for Denbighshire. 

Tudalen 50



 

 3 

Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA)                

Task and Finish Group Report (October 2023) 

     2.4 Membership of the Task and Finish (T&F) Group 

The T&F Group comprises one elected Member appointed by each of the Council’s Member 

Area Groups (MAG), to ensure geographical spread. The group has been chaired by 

Councillor Peter Scott and has been supported by the Strategic Planning and Housing 

Manager and the Corporate Project Manager. The Lead Member, Councillor Win Mullen-

James has also been part of the group.  The group has met three times since reconvening 

in March 2023 and discussions have included all aspects of the Welsh Government 

methodology, project structure, data sources, engagement and communications, data 

analysis and draft revised GTAA findings. 

A summary of the issues discussed at each group meeting is set out below:  

Summary of Task and Finish Group meetings  

 
 
Meeting 1 -   
2 March 2023 

• Reviewed and agreed Terms of Reference for the group 

• Reviewed background, context, and statutory requirements 

• Reviewed and agreed Project Structure and management 

• Discussed timetable for GTAA and future group meetings 

 

 
Meeting 2 – 
14 April 2023 

• Discussed the work programme and progress 

• Reviewed the governance process for GTAA resubmission 

 

 
 
 
Meeting 3 – 
21 September 
2023 

• Reviewed the draft revised GTAA 

• Reviewed and agreed draft report to Communities Scrutiny providing 

an update of the work of the T&F Group, seeking Scrutiny 

endorsement of the revised GTAA 

• Agreed the Group would attend Scrutiny with Chair Cllr. Peter Scott 

presenting the report 

 

 

 

Tudalen 51



 

 4 

Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA)                

Task and Finish Group Report (October 2023) 

3. Review of GTAA summary findings 

A summary of the GTAA analysis and findings for residential and transit needs were 

presented to the T&F Group at its meeting on 21 September 2023. The findings conclude 

that: 

• Based upon the evidence presented in ORS’ study the estimated additional pitch 

provision needed for Gypsies and Travellers in Denbighshire for the first 5 years of 

the study period (2023/24 - 2028/29) is for 16 permanent residential pitches. 

 

• Based on the need by 2033, the end of the Denbighshire replacement LDP period, is 

for a further 2 permanent residential pitches for future household growth.  

 

• This gives a total need for the whole period across Denbighshire for 18 permanent 

residential pitches which is an increase of 6 permanent residential pitches from 

the previous GTAA completed in 2021. 

 

• To clarify, 1 pitch will meet the needs of 1 household. 

 

• There is no evidence of need for a permanent transit site, due to the low numbers 

of unauthorised encampments, short term nature of these encampments and the fact 

that interviews with Gypsies and Travellers did not identify there was a need for 

permanent transit provision locally.  

The Task and Finish Group reviewed the GTAA data analysis and summary findings 

at its meeting on 21 September 2023 and agreed that they were satisfied that the WG 

methodology had been applied appropriately to the analysis of need.   

The T&F Group concluded that the arrangements and process undertaken by the group 

had worked well and requested that the same group membership be involved in the site 

selection for pitches, when required, in the next phase of this project. 

 

Tudalen 52



 

 5 

Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA)                

Task and Finish Group Report (October 2023) 

4. Conclusion 

At its meeting on 21 September 2023 the T&F Group requested that comments and 

conclusions from the group should inform a report to Communities Scrutiny Committee on 

19 October 2023, presented by the Chair of the T&F Group, Cllr. Peter Scott. It was agreed 

Members of the group could also attend Communities Scrutiny Committee meeting.  

This report summarises the detailed in-depth discussions undertaken by the group and 

presents the key conclusions: 

The Task and Finish Group reviewed the GTAA data analysis and summary findings at its 

meeting on 21st September 2023 and agreed that they were satisfied that the WG 

methodology had been applied appropriately to the analysis of need in the revision of the 

GTAA. 

 

Tudalen 53



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Denbighshire County Council 

Gypsy and Traveller 

Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) Update 
 
 

 
Final Report 

October 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Opinion Research Services | The Strand • Swansea • SA1 1AF | 01792 535300  | www.ors.org.uk  | info@ors.org.uk Tudalen 55

http://www.ors.org.uk/
mailto:info@ors.org.uk
http://www.ors.org.uk/


Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Note: This GTAA Report updates the one that was published in November 2021 due to changes to the 

circumstances on a number of sites and additional interviews that have now been completed with 

households living in bricks and mortar and households living on unauthorised encampments. 

Opinion Research Services, The Strand, Swansea, SA1 1AF 

Steve Jarman and Michael Bayliss 

Enquiries: 01792 535300 - info@ors.org.uk - www.ors.org.uk 

 

 
© Copyright October 2023 

May contain public sector information licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0 

May contain OS Data © Crown Copyright (2023) 

 

Tudalen 56

mailto:info@ors.org.uk
http://www.ors.org.uk/


Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 3 

 

 

Contents 

1. Executive Summary ......................................................................................................................... 6 

Introduction and Methodology ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Pitch Needs – Gypsies and Travellers .............................................................................................................. 6 

Plot Needs - Travelling Showpeople ............................................................................................................... 7 

Transit Recommendations .............................................................................................................................. 7 

2. Background and Policy Context ........................................................................................................ 9 

The Study ........................................................................................................................................................ 9 

Legislation and Guidance ................................................................................................................................ 9 

Welsh Government Circular 005/2018 ........................................................................................................... 9 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 .................................................................................... 10 

Housing (Wales) Act 2014 ............................................................................................................................. 10 

Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013................................................................................................................... 11 

Welsh Government Designing and Managing Gypsy and Traveller Sites Guidance ..................................... 12 

Denbighshire Local Development Plan (2006-2021), Adopted 2013 ............................................................ 12 

Definition of Key Terms ................................................................................................................................. 13 

3. Analysis of Existing Data ................................................................................................................ 14 

Current and Previous GTAAs ......................................................................................................................... 14 

Denbighshire GTAA 2021 .............................................................................................................................. 14 

Caravan Count Data ...................................................................................................................................... 15 

Sites and Yards in Denbighshire .................................................................................................................... 17 

4. Methodology ................................................................................................................................ 18 

GTAA Project Steering Group ........................................................................................................................ 18 

GTAA Project Board ...................................................................................................................................... 19 

Task & Finish Group ...................................................................................................................................... 19 

Stakeholder Engagement .............................................................................................................................. 20 

Identify and Analyse Existing Data ................................................................................................................ 21 

Publicise the Accommodation Assessment................................................................................................... 21 

Conducting the Accommodation Assessment Surveys ................................................................................. 22 

Household Interviews ................................................................................................................................... 22 

Bricks and Mortar Interviews ........................................................................................................................ 22 

Calculate the Accommodation Needs of Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople ........................... 22 

Current Residential Supply ........................................................................................................................... 23 

Current Residential Demand ......................................................................................................................... 23 

Tudalen 57



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 4 

 

 

Future Demand ............................................................................................................................................. 23 

Final Outcomes ............................................................................................................................................. 24 

Transit Provision ........................................................................................................................................... 24 

Compliance with Engagement Checklist ....................................................................................................... 24 

5. Survey Findings ............................................................................................................................. 26 

Background ................................................................................................................................................... 26 

Interview Log ................................................................................................................................................. 26 

Overview and Demographics of Residents ................................................................................................... 27 

Interview Summary ....................................................................................................................................... 27 

6. Assessing Accommodation Needs ...................................................................................................... 28 

Current Residential Supply ........................................................................................................................... 28 

Current Residential Demand ......................................................................................................................... 28 

Future Demand ............................................................................................................................................. 29 

Current Authorised Residential Supply ......................................................................................................... 29 

Current Residential Demand ......................................................................................................................... 30 

Current Unauthorised Sites ........................................................................................................................... 30 

Concealed Households and Over-Crowded Pitches ...................................................................................... 30 

Conventional Housing ................................................................................................................................... 30 

New Households to Arrive ............................................................................................................................ 31 

Additional Pitch Provision: Future Need ....................................................................................................... 31 

Population and Household Growth .............................................................................................................. 31 

Overall Need for Gypsies and Travellers in Denbighshire ............................................................................. 33 

Transit Recommendations ............................................................................................................................ 35 

Need for Travelling Showpeople Plots .......................................................................................................... 36 

7. Conclusions ...................................................................................................................................... 37 

Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Need .................................................................................................................... 37 

Travelling Showpeople Plot Need ................................................................................................................. 37 

Transit Sites ................................................................................................................................................... 37 

Addressing Identified Need ........................................................................................................................... 37 

Appendix A: Definition of Key Terms ..................................................................................................... 38 

Appendix B: Sites and Yards in Denbighshire (August 2023) ................................................................... 42 

Appendix C: Interview Log .................................................................................................................... 43 

Appendix D: Household Interview Summary .......................................................................................... 44 

Appendix E: Interview Summary – Travelling Ahead .............................................................................. 46 

Appendix F: Publicity Examples ............................................................................................................. 48 

Appendix G: Technical Note on Household Formation and Growth Rates ............................................... 54 

Tudalen 58



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 5 

 

 

1. Executive Summary 

Introduction and Methodology 

1.1 The primary objective of this (2023) Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) Update is to 

provide a robust assessment of current and future need for Gypsy and Traveller1 accommodation in 

Denbighshire. 

1.2 The reasons for the update are that it has been brought to the attention of the Council that there have been 

changes to the occupation status on some of the sites that were included in the previous GTAA, and an 

extended family who declined to take part in an interview previously have now agreed to be interviewed. 

The update is only to the fieldwork and overall assessment of need. 

1.3 The GTAA provides a robust and credible evidence base which can be used to aid in the understanding of, and 

the provision of, Gypsy and Traveller pitches and plots, and potential transit provision, for the Denbighshire 

Local Development Plan (LDP) period to 2033. The outcomes of this GTAA will replace the outcomes of the 

previous GTAA that was published in November 2021 and submitted to Welsh Government for approval in 

December 2021 as it now included a more up-to-date assessment of need. 

1.4 The GTAA has sought to understand the accommodation needs of the Gypsy and Traveller population in 

Denbighshire through a combination of desk-based research, stakeholder engagement and engagement with 

members of the Travelling Community. In addition, during the preparation of the GTAA that was published 

in November 2021 a range of local stakeholders were invited to sit on a Project Steering Group; a wider GTAA 

Project Group was established; and a Task and Finish Group was established. An online survey was also 

distributed to all Elected Members, and City, Town, and Community Councils. 

1.5 Following preliminary engagement with the Council, a total of 15 interviews were completed with Gypsies 

and Travellers living on unauthorised sites, unauthorised encampments, and living in bricks and mortar in 

Denbighshire. This represents a response rate of 100% of identified households. No Travelling Showpeople 

yards were identified in Denbighshire. Engagement was completed with neighbouring local authorities and 

other stakeholders during the preparation of the 2021 GTAA to discuss potential need for transit provision. 

In addition, the Gypsy, Roma, Traveller Liaison Officer sought to engage with households living on 

encampments. 

1.6  The baseline date for the revised GTAA is August 2023. 

 

Pitch Needs – Gypsies and Travellers 

1.7 The Welsh Government Guidance requires 2 assessments of need – for the first 5 years of the GTAA period 

(2023/24 - 2027/28), and for the full LDP period to 2033. 

1.8 Based upon the evidence presented in this study the estimated additional pitch provision needed for Gypsies 

and Travellers in Denbighshire for the first 5 years of the GTAA Study period to 2027/28 is for 16 pitches and 

need for the remainder of the LDP period to 2033 is for a further 2 pitches. This gives a total need to the end 

of the LDP period to 2033 for 18 pitches. These figures should be seen as the projected amount of provision 

 

1 See Chapter 2 for the planning definition of a Traveller in Wales. 

Tudalen 59



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 6 

 

 

 
which is necessary to meet the statutory obligations towards identifiable needs of the population arising in 

the area. These figures are made up from a combination of unauthorised pitches; unauthorised 

encampments; concealed/doubled-up households; movement from bricks and mortar; and new household 

formation. 

1.9 A detailed breakdown which sets out the components that make up this identified need, together with any 

other issues that have been taken into consideration can be found in Chapter 6 of this report. 

 

Plot Needs - Travelling Showpeople 

1.10 There were no Travelling Showpeople identified living in Denbighshire so there is no current or future need 

for plots over the LDP period to 2033. The Council should however monitor any future approaches for 

planning permission from Travelling Showpeople and have in place appropriate Criteria-Based LDP policies 

to deal with any future applications. 

 

Transit Recommendations 

1.11 Discussions with local stakeholders, neighbouring local authorities, and analysis of records of unauthorised 

encampments, confirmed that there are instances of unauthorised encampments in Denbighshire, but that 

these are normally Travellers passing through for work purposes given that the area is on the main A55 

travelling corridor across North Wales for Travellers coming to and from Ireland on the ferry from Holyhead. 

This is also evidenced by anecdotal information of repeat visits from the same households at similar times of 

the year. 

1.12 There have been other localised instances of Travellers temporarily visiting Denbighshire to attend weddings 

or other events, but no further evidence of any long-term or permanent accommodation needs were 

identified. 

1.13 The outcomes from the household interviews and discussions with stakeholders did not identify that there 

was a need for permanent transit provision locally, although there were discussions about a need for more 

transit provision across Wales. 

1.14 It is understood that the Council have recently invested in employing a Gypsy, Roma, Traveller Liaison Officer 

post as well as formalising a more co-ordinated process for the management of unauthorised encampments. 

This is understood to be to ensure early engagement with families travelling through Denbighshire, and to 

provide a coordinated approach to ensure that welfare checks and facilities such as bins and toilets are 

provided. This resulted in engagement with a total of 5 households living on encampments during the GTAA 

fieldwork period and none expressed a specific need for formal transit provision. This role is also intended to 

build better relations between the Council and the Travelling Community. Discussions with the Council have 

concluded that this approach could be developed further to form the basis of a more comprehensive 

managed approach to include considerations of options such as negotiated stopping. 

1.15 Despite the 2016 GTAA identifying a need for transit pitches in Denbighshire, more recent evidence suggests 

that this is no longer the case and that alternative approaches should be considered. As such it is 

recommended that there is not a need at this time for the Council to provide a transit site in Denbighshire 

due to the low numbers of unauthorised encampments, and the short-term transient nature of these 

encampments. 

Tudalen 60



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 7 

 

 

 
1.16 It is also recommended that the Council should continue to monitor the number of unauthorised 

encampments and consider the use of short-term toleration (including negotiated stopping arrangements) 

to deal with short-term transient stops. This management-based approach should also include consideration 

about whether to provide toilets, water and refuse facilities. There are a number of examples across Wales 

and England where management-based approaches to dealing with unauthorised encampments have been 

successful. A good example can be found at www.negotiatedstopping.co.uk. There are also many examples 

where local authorities are taking a more strategic and regional approach towards addressing transit issues 

including in Essex, Leicestershire, the former Northamptonshire, and Hampshire. 

Tudalen 61

http://www.negotiatedstopping.co.uk/


Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 8 

 

 

2. Background and Policy Context 
The Study 

2.1 Opinion Research Services (ORS) were appointed by Denbighshire County Council (the Council) as independent 

consultants to update the 2021 GTAA in June 2023 for the new LDP period to 2033. 

2.2 The study provides an evidence base to enable the Council to comply with their requirements towards Gypsies 

and Travellers under Part 3 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014, and to support the Denbighshire Replacement 

Local Development Plan (2018-33). The Act requires Local Authorities to undertake a GTAA at least every 5 

years, although Local Authorities have flexibility to undertake GTAAs more frequently if a material change in 

the level of need in the area has been identified. The Council published a GTAA in November 2021 (covering 

the period up to 2033) and submitted it to Welsh Government in December 2021. Welsh Government wrote 

to all Local Planning Authorities in September 2019 to confirm those undertaking an LDP Review must ensure 

the GTAA establishes an evidence base for Gypsy and Traveller needs across the entire plan period. Welsh 

Government also confirmed that this may necessitate undertaking of a new GTAA (and providing appropriate 

site allocations, where relevant) prior to the statutory Deposit consultation to ensure plans can be found 

sound through the examination process and are able to be adopted. Denbighshire commenced a review of 

their adopted LDP (2006-2021) in 2018. 

2.3 This GTAA provides an assessment of need for Gypsy and Traveller accommodation in Denbighshire to fulfil 

these requirements, updating the previous GTAA published in 2021. It is a robust and credible evidence base 

which can be used to aid in the understanding of, and the provision of Gypsy and Traveller pitches and plots, 

and also to support the Denbighshire Replacement LDP (2018-2033). 

2.4 We would note at the outset that the study covers the needs of Gypsies (including English, Scottish, Welsh 

and Romany Gypsies), Irish Travellers, New (Age) Travellers, and Travelling Showpeople, but for ease of 

reference we have referred to the study as a GTAA. 

2.5  The baseline date for the revised GTAA is August 2023. 

 

Legislation and Guidance 

Welsh Government Circular 005/2018 

2.6 Welsh Government Circular 005/2018 provides updated guidance on the planning aspects of identifying 

sustainable sites for Gypsies and Travellers. It also outlines how planning authorities and Gypsies and 

Travellers can work together to achieve this aim. It supersedes advice contained in Circular 30/2007 “Planning 

for gypsy and traveller caravan sites”, Circular 78/91 “Travelling Showpeople” and Circular 76/94 “Gypsy Sites 

Policy and Unauthorised Camping”. 

2.7  The Circular include guidance on a range of issues relating to Gypsies and Travellers including: 

» Definition of Travellers 

» Gypsies and Travellers – A Context 

» Duty to Provide Sites 

» Providing the Evidence Base 

Tudalen 62



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 9 

 

 

 
» Regional Working 

» Development Plans 

» Major Development Projects 

» Designated Areas 

» Planning Applications 

» Enforcement 

» Appeals 

» Human Rights and Equality of Opportunity 

» Monitoring Planning Applications 

 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

2.8  In relation to Gypsies and Travellers, Welsh Government Circular 005/2018 sets out that: 

7. The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 sets a framework for local authorities 

across Wales to ensure the ‘sustainable development principle’ (meeting the needs of the present 

without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs) is met. Section 4 of 

the Act puts in place a number of well-being goals which authorities are to seek to achieve in order to 

meet this principle. These goals include achieving ‘a Wales of cohesive communities’, containing 

attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities, and ‘a Wales of vibrant culture and thriving 

Welsh language’, containing a society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh 

language. 

8. Housing is a fundamental issue that affects the lives of people across Wales, including our Gypsy 

and Traveller communities. The Welsh Government seeks to ensure a wide choice of accommodation 

is available to meet the needs of all members of the community. It is reflective of the Government’s 

commitment to ensure equality of opportunity for all sections of the community and in this instance, 

Gypsies and Travellers should have equal access to culturally appropriate accommodation as all other 

members of the community. 

 

Housing (Wales) Act 2014 

2.9 Part 3 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 (the Act) sets out that a local housing authority must, in each review 

period, carry out an assessment of the accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers residing in or resorting 

to its area. 

2.10 Section 102 of the Act requires that local authorities must prepare a report which they must submit to Welsh 

Ministers for approval that: 

» details how the assessment was carried out. 

» contains a summary of: 

▪ the consultation it carried out in connection with the assessment, and 

▪ the responses (if any) it received to that consultation. 

» details the accommodation needs identified by the assessment. 

2.11 Once approved the local housing authority must publish the assessment. 

Tudalen 63



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 10 

 

 

 
2.12 If need is identified in the GTAA report, Section 103 of the Act requires that a local authority must exercise 

its powers in Section 56 of the Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013 so far as may be necessary to meet those 

needs. 

2.13 Section 106 of the Act sets out that local authorities should have regard to any guidance given by Welsh 

Ministers. Guidance on Undertaking GTAAs was published by Welsh Government in May 2015 and this 

Guidance remains in place in 2020. 

2.14 The GTAA Guidance covers the following issues: 

» Why a specific GTAA is required? 

» What should be produced? 

» Who needs to be consulted? 

» What data sources need to be reviewed? 

» Understanding the culture of Gypsy and Traveller communities. 

» How to identify and communicate with Gypsies and Travellers? 

» How to design, manage and undertake a GTAA? 

» Support with partnership working and working regionally. 

» Exploring specialist surveys, techniques, and questions to be used. 

» How accommodation ‘need’ is assessed? 

» Submitting reports to Welsh Ministers. 

» How to make provision for identified need? 

2.15 Section 108 of the Act sets out that: 

»  Accommodation needs - includes, but is not limited to, needs with respect to the provision 

of sites on which mobile homes may be stationed. 

»  Gypsies and Travellers – means persons of a nomadic habit of life, whatever their race or 

origin, including persons who, on grounds only of their own or their family’s or dependent’s 

educational or health needs or old age, have ceased to travel temporarily or permanently, 

and members of an organised group of travelling show people or circus people (whether or 

not travelling together as such), and all other persons with a cultural tradition of nomadism 

or of living in a mobile home. 

»   Mobile home - has the meaning given by section 60 of the Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013. 

 

Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013 

2.16 The GTAA Guidance sets out the requirement that local authorities have to meet a legal duty to exercise their 

functions to provide mobile home pitches to meet any identified needs. These are set out in Section 60 of 

the Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013. 

2.17 In this Act “mobile home” means: 

»  Any structure designed or adapted for human habitation which is capable of being moved 

from one place to another (whether by being towed, or by being transported on a motor 

vehicle or trailer) and any motor vehicle designed or adapted for human habitation but does 

Tudalen 64



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 11 

 

 

 
not include any railway rolling stock which is for the time being on rails forming part of a 

railway system, or any tent. 

»   A structure designed or adapted for human habitation which is composed of not more than 

2 sections separately constructed and designed to be assembled on a site by means of bolts, 

clamps, or other devices, and is, when assembled, physically capable of being moved by road 

from one place to another (whether by being towed, or by being transported on a motor 

vehicle or trailer). 

 

Welsh Government Designing and Managing Gypsy and Traveller Sites Guidance 

2.18 As well as publishing guidance on undertaking GTAAs in May 2015 the Welsh Government also published 

additional guidance on designing and managing Gypsy and Traveller sites in order to assist local authorities 

in meeting need for Gypsies and Travellers. These two documents are intended as a guide to assist Local 

Authorities in providing appropriate services at reasonable cost to the public purse for Gypsies and Travellers 

living on residential sites in Wales. They contain practical guidance to assist local authorities to ensure sites 

are fit-for-purpose, and how best to manage public Traveller sites. The guidance is not statutory. However, 

it is anticipated by Welsh Government that the guidance will help local authorities and others in the 

development, improvement and management of Gypsy and Traveller sites, and will form part of the 

consideration of the Welsh Government in assessing applications for Sites Capital Grant funding in relation 

to Gypsy and Traveller sites. 

 

Denbighshire Local Development Plan (2006-2021), Adopted 2013 

2.19 The Denbighshire LDP (2006-2021) was adopted by Denbighshire County Council on the 4th of June 2013 and 

became operative immediately. The adopted LDP superseded and replaced the earlier Denbighshire Unitary 

Development Plan. 

2.20 The LDP includes one policy relating to Gypsies and Travellers – Policy BSC 10 Gypsy & Traveller Sites. 

 

Policy BSC 10 – Gypsy & Traveller Sites 

 
Proposals for gypsy and traveller caravan sites (including mixed residential and business sites) will be 
permitted provided the following criteria are met: 

 
i) the site is situated outside the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, Green Barriers and the Pontcysyllte 
Canal and Aqueduct World Heritage site (including the buffer zone); and 

 
ii) the site is located within or on the outskirts of an established settlement boundary with access to a range 
of facilities/services (including schools), public transport and main transport routes; and, 

 
iii) the proposal makes suitable provision for on-site play space, storage, and parking; and, 

 
iv) the proposal would not be detrimental to the amenity of occupiers of adjacent properties. 

 
Sites in other locations will only be permitted where it is demonstrated that sites within or on the outskirts 
of an established settlement boundaries are not available and all the above criteria are met. 

 
The Council will identify permanent and transit caravan sites for gypsies and travellers should an unmet need 
be identified for Denbighshire in the emerging North West Wales Local Housing Market Assessment. 

Tudalen 65



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 12 

 

 

Definition of Key Terms 

2.21 The 2015 GTAA Guidance contains common definitions that have been used in the Guidance and that will 

also be used in the GTAA Report. These can be found in Appendix A. 

Tudalen 66



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 13 

 

 

3. Analysis of Existing Data 
3.1 The purpose of this section of the GTAA is to set out current information relating to the Gypsy and Traveller 

population in Denbighshire including previous assessments of need, socio-demographic data, caravan count 

data and the current provision of accommodation. 

Current and Previous GTAAs 

Denbighshire GTAA 2021 

3.2 The most recent GTAA for Denbighshire was completed by ORS and the Final GTAA report was published in 

November 2021. Based upon the evidence presented in the study the estimated additional pitch provision 

needed for Gypsies and Travellers in Denbighshire for the first 5 years of the GTAA plan period was for 8 

pitches, and for the remainder of the GTAA plan period for a further 4 pitches. This gave a total need for the 

whole GTAA plan period of 12 pitches. 

3.3 It was also recommended that there was no need for the Council to provide any transit pitches in Denbighshire. 

3.4 Given that there were no Travelling Showpeople identified as living in Denbighshire, no assessment of need 

was undertaken. 

Population Data – 2011 and 2021 Census 

3.5 Analysis of 2021 Census data relating to the Gypsy and Traveller population identified a total of 23 households 

who identified as Gypsies or Irish Travellers living in Denbighshire, and a further 14 households who identified 

as Roma (a new ethnicity category that was included in the 2021 Census) – representing less than 0.08% of 

households as a whole. It is likely that this could be an under-estimate given the accepted lower than average 

levels of response to the Census from the members of the Gypsy and Traveller community. 

3.6 Detailed analysis of the 2021 Census has not yet been completed, but data from the 2011 Census does identify 

some significant demographic differences when compared to the population as a whole. These are important 

in terms of explaining the higher rate of new household formation for Gypsy and Traveller households 

compared with the settled population. In summary the 2011 Census shows that nationally for England and 

Wales: 

» Just under half of Gypsy or Irish Traveller households had dependent children (45%), 

compared to 29% for England and Wales as a whole. 

» The median age of Gypsies or Irish Travellers was 26 years compared to the national median 

of 39 years. 

» Just 6% of the Gypsy or Irish Traveller population were aged 65 years and over compared 

to a national figure of 16%. 

» Gypsies or Irish Travellers below 20 years of age accounted for 39% of the population 

compared to a national figure of 24%. 

» Gypsies or Irish Travellers below 10 years of age accounted for 20% of the population 

compared to a national figure of 12%. 

Tudalen 67



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 14 

 

 

 
» Gypsies or Irish Travellers had the lowest proportion of people rating their health as good 

or very good at 70% compared to a national figure of 81%. 

3.7 The chart below shows the age structure for the whole population (All) and the Gypsy or Irish Traveller 

population in England and Wales. This shows that there is a higher proportion of Gypsy or Irish Traveller 

children and younger adults, and significantly lower proportions of those aged 50 and over. This is due to 

higher birth rates and lower life expectancy for the Gypsy and Traveller population. Unfortunately, due to the 

low numbers of Gypsies and Irish Travellers identified in the 2011 Census living in Denbighshire it is not 

possible to make any meaningful comparisons at a local level. 

Figure 1 - Comparison of Census Age Structure (2011 Census) 
 

 

Caravan Count Data 

3.8 Another source of published information on the Gypsy and Traveller population is the Welsh Government 

Gypsy and Traveller Caravan Count which uses data provided by Local Authorities and is published twice a 

year. 

3.9 This is a physical count of the number of caravans on both authorised and unauthorised sites across Wales. 

As this count is of caravans and not households, it makes it very difficult to interpret and use for a study such 

as this because it does not count pitches, resident households, or household demographics. The published 

count data is merely a snapshot in time conducted by the Local Authority on a specific day in January and 

July, and therefore any unauthorised sites or encampments which occur on other dates are not recorded. 

Likewise, any caravans that are away from sites on the day of the count will not be included. The count also 

does not seek to determine the ethnic status of the occupiers of caravans. 

3.10 However, the data captured in the Caravan Count does give an indication of the number of sites, and 

authorised and unauthorised caravans in each local authority, and can be useful in supporting the 

determination of any transit needs and identifying year on year trends to support an assessment of need. 

3.11 More recently in Wales a live system has been put in place which allows local authorities to upload details of 

encampments when they occur throughout the year. 

3.12 The latest Gypsy and Traveller Caravan County data for Wales is from January 2023 and was published in 

April 2023. 

Tudalen 68



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 15 

 

 

 
3.13 The latest time series statistical data available published on StatsWales is from April 2020. Analysis of the 

Caravan Count Data for Denbighshire between January 2010 and July 2021 shows that there have been 2 

unauthorised sites recorded in recent years, with 3 tolerated caravans on 1 site and 3 non-tolerated caravans 

on the other site. It is understood from the Council that these are the 2 unauthorised sites that were 

identified in the November 2021 GTAA. 

3.14 Data from the January 2023 Caravan Count identified a total of 3 caravans on unauthorised sites that are 

tolerated, and 3 caravans on unauthorised sites that are not tolerated, on 2 unauthorised sites. 

3.15 In addition, details of all recorded encampments from 2014 were provided by the Council and were analysed 

to help to determine whether there was any need for transit provision. See Chapter 6 for further details. 

Current Accommodation Provision 

3.16 One of the main considerations of this study is provide evidence to support the provision of pitches and plots 

to meet the current and future accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers in Denbighshire. In general, 

a pitch is an area which is large enough for one household to occupy and typically contains enough space for 

one or two caravans but can vary in size. A site is a collection of pitches which form a development exclusively 

for Gypsies and Travellers. For Travelling Showpeople, the most common descriptions used are a plot for the 

space occupied by one household and a yard for a collection of plots which are typically exclusively occupied 

by Travelling Showpeople. 

3.17 The public and private provision of mainstream housing is also largely mirrored when considering Gypsy and 

Traveller accommodation. One common form of a Gypsy and Traveller site is a publicly provided residential 

site, which is provided by a Local Authority or by a Housing Association. Pitches on public sites can usually be 

obtained through signing up to a waiting list, and the costs of running the sites are met from the rent paid by 

the tenants (similar to social housing). 

3.18 The alternatives to public residential sites are private residential sites and yards for Gypsies and Travellers. 

These result from individuals or families buying areas of land and then obtaining planning permission to live 

on them. Households can also rent pitches on some private sites that are run on a commercial basis. 

Therefore, these two forms of accommodation are the equivalent to private ownership and renting for those 

who live in bricks and mortar housing. Generally, the majority of Travelling Showpeople yards are privately 

owned and managed. 

3.19 The Gypsy and Traveller population also has other forms of sites due to its mobile nature. Transit sites tend 

to contain many of the same facilities as a residential site, except that there is a restricted period of residence 

which can vary from a period of weeks to a period of months. An alternative to a transit site is an emergency 

stopping place. This type of site also has restrictions on the length of time someone can stay on it but has 

much more limited facilities. Another alternative is a Negotiated Stopping Agreement that allows Gypsy and 

Traveller families to set up short-term camps as long as they agree to certain conditions. These are designed 

to accommodate, for a temporary period, Gypsies and Travellers whilst they travel. A number of authorities 

also operate an accepted encampments policy where short-term stopovers are tolerated without 

enforcement action. 

3.20 Further considerations for the Gypsy and Traveller population are unauthorised developments and 

encampments. Unauthorised developments occur on land which is owned by the Gypsies and Travellers or 

with the approval of the landowner, but for which they do not have planning permission to use for residential 

Tudalen 69



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 16 

 

 

 
purposes. Unauthorised encampments are usually short-term and occur on land which is not owned by the 

Gypsies and Travellers – for example laybys or car parks. 

 

Sites and Yards in Denbighshire 

3.21 In Denbighshire, at the baseline date for the GTAA, there were no sites with planning permission, and 2 

unauthorised sites (7 pitches). There was also no transit provision. 

3.22 Despite efforts to identify them, no Travelling Showpeople yards were found in Denbighshire. This is 

consistent with findings from previous GTAAs for Denbighshire. 

3.23 Further details can be found in Chapter 5 and Appendix B. 

Figure 2 - Total amount of provision in Denbighshire (August 2023) 

 

Category Sites/Yards Pitches/Plots 

Private with permanent planning permission 0 0 

Private sites with temporary planning permission 0 0 

Public sites 0 0 

Public transit provision (seasonal) 0 0 

Private transit provision 0 0 

Tolerated sites 0 0 

Unauthorised sites 2 7 

Travelling Showpeople yards 0 0 

TOTAL 2 7 
 

Figure 3 - Sites and Yards in Denbighshire (August 2023) 

 

Site Name Pitches/Plots Status 

Unauthorised 1 1 Unauthorised 

Unauthorised 2 6 Unauthorised 

Total 7  

Tudalen 70



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 17 

 

 

4. Methodology 
4.1 This section sets out the methodology that has been followed to deliver the outputs for this study. The Welsh 

Government GTAA Guidance issued under Section 106 of the Housing (Wales) Act sets out the requirements 

for the GTAA and the methodology and calculation of need that has been followed has sought to address 

these and allow for a full and robust GTAA to be completed. The study has been undertaken by ORS, in 

conjunction with Denbighshire County Council, and the approach taken covers the following core areas of 

work: 

» GTAA Project Steering Group. 

» GTAA Project Board. 

» Task and Finish Group. 

» Identifying and analysing existing data sources. 

» Publicising the accommodation assessment. 

» Conducting the accommodation assessment surveys. 

» Calculating the accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers. 

4.2  The stages below provide a summary of the methodology that was used to complete this study. 

 

GTAA Project Steering Group 

4.3 The Welsh Government GTAA Guidance requires that a Project Steering Group be established to ensure that 

the study is informed by all available local knowledge and expertise. The Council set up and managed a Joint 

Steering Group for Denbighshire and Conwy as part of the 2021 GTAA as it was a joint commission. The 

individuals who attended the meetings of the GTAA Steering Group were: 

Figure 4 – GTAA Project Steering Group Membership 

 

Organisation Role 

Denbighshire CC Lead Member for Planning, Public Protection and Safer Communities 

Denbighshire CC Strategic Planning and Housing Manager 

Denbighshire CC Lead Project Manager 

Denbighshire CC Senior Officer, Strategic Planning and Housing 

Denbighshire CC Senior Officer, Strategic Planning and Housing 

Conwy BC Cabinet Member for Housing and Regulatory Services 

Conwy BC Strategic Planning Policy Manager 

Opinion Research Services Consultant 

Opinion Research Services Consultant 

Travelling Ahead North Wales Engagement Lead 

Travelling Ahead Team Manager 

4.4 As set out in the GTAA Guidance the key responsibilities of the Steering Group were to agree on the aims and 

objectives of the study; to promote the benefits of the study to members of the Travelling Community; to 

help identify households living in bricks and mortar and on unauthorised sites and encampments; to provide 

expert stakeholder input into the identification of local need; to provide feedback on the emerging outputs 

from the study; and to share and promote the final outcomes to members of the Travelling Community. The 

Tudalen 71



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 18 

 

 

 
first Steering Group meeting was held in June 2021, the second Steering Group Meeting was held in 

November 2021, and a final Steering Group Meeting was held in January 2022. All meetings were held online 

due to COVID-19. 

4.5 The first Steering Group meeting discussed the background to the GTAA and clarified the purpose and the 

role of the Group. Means of communicating the GTAA were also discussed, together with opportunities to 

engage with households living in bricks and mortar. The second Steering Group meeting provided an 

opportunity for an update on the emerging outcomes of the assessment of need and an opportunity to 

discuss the content of the Draft GTAA Report. The final Steering Group meeting discussed sharing the GTAA 

Report, discussing how the study outcomes could be communicated to members of the Travelling Community 

and how to address the identified need in LDP Policies. 

 

GTAA Project Board 

4.6 In addition to establishing a GTAA Steering Group as required by the Welsh Government GTAA Guidance, the 

Council also established a GTAA Project Board to support the 2021 GTAA. The key purpose of the Project 

Board was to provide oversight, direction, and governance for the GTAA project and its workstreams in 

Denbighshire. It also provided a forum for managing communications and stakeholder engagement. It 

operated in a similar manner to other Project Boards within the local authority, managing the detail of the 

project including progress, issues, and risks. The Project Board met monthly since June 2020 until the 

publication of the 2021 GTAA Report. The Project Board was reconvened in December 2022 to support the 

2023 GTAA Update and has met monthly since February 2023. 

4.7  Membership of the GTAA Project Board comprised the following members with full voting rights: 

Figure 5 – GTAA Reconvened Project Board Membership 

 

Role 

Lead Member for Local Development and Planning 

Head of Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services 

Head of Legal, HR & Democratic Services 

Corporate Director – Economy and Environment 

Head of Housing and Community Services 

 

Task & Finish Group 

4.8 A Task & Finish Group was also established by the Council to support the 2021 GTAA. This Group was also 

reconvened to support the 2023 GTAA Update. The key purposes of the Group were to: 

» Ensure that the approach taken to deliver the new Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation 

Assessment complied with the Welsh Government methodology and that previous 

feedback was considered within the new document in line with Scrutiny requirements. 

» To monitor progress and advise as necessary on the delivery of the Assessment, and to 

help develop a suitable Stakeholder Engagement Plan to satisfy Scrutiny concerns and 

requirements. 

Tudalen 72



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 19 

 

 

 
4.9 A total of 5 meetings of the Group were held between May and September 2021, and a final meeting was 

held in November 2021 to discuss the Draft GTAA Report. Since it was reconvened the Group has met 3 times 

since March 2023 

4.10 Membership of the Task & Finish Group comprised Elected Members appointed by each of the Councils 6 

Member Area Groups, together with support from Officers. In addition, other individuals were invited to 

attend certain meetings of the group to discuss specific issues: 

Figure 6 – GTAA Reconvened Task & Finish Group 

 

Role 

Member Area Group Representative for Elwy (Chair) 

Member Area Group Representative for Dee Valley 

Member Area Group Representative for Denbigh 

Member Area Group Representative for Prestatyn 

Member Area Group Representative for Rhyl 

Member Area Group Representative for Ruthin 

Lead Member for Local Development 

Strategic Planning and Housing Manager 

Corporate Project Manager 

4.11 It is anticipated that further meetings of the reconvened Project Board and Task & Finish Group will be held to 

discuss the outcomes of this GTAA Update. 

 

Stakeholder Engagement 

4.12 In addition to the Steering Group contact was made with a number of stakeholders listed in Annex 1 in the 

GTAA Guidance to identify whether they had any particular issues they would like to raise in relation to 

Gypsies and Travellers in Denbighshire. The organisations that were contacted were: 

»   Friends, Families and Travellers 

»   Gypsies & Travellers Wales 

»   Roma Support Group 

»   The Bridges Project 

»   The Gypsy Council 

» The National Federation of Gypsy Liaison Groups 

» The Showmen’s Guild of Great Britain - South Wales 

» The Traveller Movement 

» The Unity Project 

» Travelling Ahead 

4.13 The only response that was received was from Travelling Ahead and a summary of the interview that was 

completed in 2021 can be found in Appendix E. 

Tudalen 73



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – October 2023 

Page 20 

 

 

Identify and Analyse Existing Data 

4.14 A desk-based review was undertaken to collate and analyse a range of secondary data and other local 

intelligence that has been used to identify and support the assessment of current and future accommodation 

need including: 

»   Planning records. 

»   Census data. 

» Site records and waiting lists. 

» Caravan Counts data. 

» Records of unauthorised sites/encampments. 

» Information on planning applications/appeals. 

» Information on enforcement actions. 

» Existing GTAA’s and other relevant local studies. 

» Existing national and local policy, guidance, and best practice. 

 

Publicise the Accommodation Assessment 

4.15 In order to get buy-in from members of the Travelling Community during the preparation of the 2021 GTAA 

to ensure that they were able and willing to participate in the site and household interviews and provide 

accurate information, it was important that effective publicity and pre-notification was put in place. This was 

also very important in terms of identifying households living in bricks and mortar accommodation to 

interview as part of the study. 

4.16 The approach to publicity was discussed with members of the Steering Group prior to the fieldwork 

commencing. This publicity that was put in place included the actions below and examples can be found in 

Appendix F: 

»   Press Releases. 

» Information on the Council’s website. 

» Information in the Council’s online residents’ publication ‘County Voice’. 

» Social media adverts. 

» Posters in a range of community venues and libraries. 

» Promotion through front-line services including the Local Health Board and North Wales 

Police. 

» Online engagement with Elected Members, and City, Town, and Community Councillors. 

» Information circulation by Gypsy and Traveller advocacy organisations. 

» Word-of-mouth information sharing by Gypsy Liaison officers. 

» Contact with organisations set out in the Welsh Government GTAA Guidance. 

Tudalen 74



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 21 

 

 

 
4.17 This approach was not repeated for the 2023 GTAA Update as the Council were aware of all the existing 

Gypsy and Traveller sites in Denbighshire. 

Conducting the Accommodation Assessment Surveys 

Household Interviews 

4.18 Through the desk-based research and previous information from the Steering Group, ORS worked closely with 

the Council to identify all authorised and unauthorised sites, yards, and encampments in Denbighshire, and 

sought to undertake a full demographic study of the residents on all pitches and plots – as required by the 

Welsh Government GTAA Guidance. 

4.19 Contact details for site residents were obtained from the Council and permission was obtained from residents 

prior to any contact information for telephone numbers being shared with Researchers from ORS via secure 

email. 

4.20 Residents on sites were contacted by telephone by Researchers from ORS to arrange an appointment to 

complete a face-to-face interview. However, all households who were contacted requested to complete their 

interviews over the telephone. Interviews were completed with all households using the Welsh Government 

GTAA Household Interview questions. 

 

Bricks and Mortar Interviews 

4.21 During the completion of the 2021 GTAA ORS worked closely with the Council to identify and encourage 

households living in bricks and mortar to participate in the assessment. Contacts were sought through 

members of the Steering Group, speaking with people on existing sites and adverts on social media, and 

through posters displayed on community noticeboards and within local communities. Permission was 

obtained for telephone numbers to be shared with Researchers from ORS. 

4.22 For the 2023 GTAA Update ORS liaised with the Council to identify any further contacts for households living 

in bricks and mortar and a total of 4 households were identified. 

4.23 Residents living in bricks and mortar were contacted by telephone by Researchers from ORS to arrange an 

appointment to complete a face-to-face interview. However, all 4 households who were contacted requested 

to complete their interviews over the telephone, or via Teams. Interviews were completed with all 

households using the Welsh Government GTAA Household Interview questions. 

 

Calculate the Accommodation Needs of Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling 
Showpeople 

4.24 The Welsh Government GTAA Guidance sets out a detailed methodology to assess current and future pitch 

needs. This approach has been followed for the purpose of this GTAA. 

4.25 As with any housing assessment, the underlying calculation is comprised of a relatively small number of 

factors. In this case, the key issue for residential pitches is to compare the supply of pitches available for 

occupation with the current and future population need. This information has been obtained from a 

Tudalen 75



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 22 

 

 

 
combination of the desk-based research and the outcomes of the site and household interviews. The key 

factors in each of these elements are set out below. 

 

Current Residential Supply 

» Occupied local authority pitches. 

» Occupied authorised private pitches. 

» Vacant local authority pitches and available private pitches. 

» Pitches expected to be vacated in the near future. 

» New local authority pitches private pitches with planning permission. 

 

Current Residential Demand 

4.26 Total current residential demand is made up of the following components. It was important to make full use 

of the desk-based research and intelligence from members of the Steering Group to address issues of double 

counting (for example bricks and mortar households who are also on the waiting list for pitches): 

»   Households on unauthorised developments. 

»   Households on unauthorised encampments. 

» Concealed /over-crowded/doubled-up households2. 

» Conventional housing – movement from bricks and mortar3. 

» New households to arrive from waiting lists/in-migration. 

 

Future Demand 

4.27 Total future demand is a result of the formation of new households during the study period. ORS has 

undertaken extensive research into the population and household growth of the Gypsy and Traveller 

community in England and Wales (Appendix G). This was used to inform this element of the Welsh 

Government GTAA Guidance (see Paragraphs 203-209). Paragraph 203 sets out that the research completed 

by ORS suggests that an acceptable growth rate is usually within the range of 1.50% – 3.00% per annum and 

Paragraph 204 sets out that Local Authorities should analyse the demographic data provided by community 

members to consider their own local anticipated future household growth. 

4.28 Information from the site interviews provides details of the gross number of new households expected to 

form within the first 5 years of the study. 

4.29 The estimate of new household formation for remaining years of the study has been completed based on 

demographic evidence from the site interviews. Further evidence to support the approach taken to calculate 

new household formation is set out in Chapter 6. 

 
 
 

 

2 Following the guidance set out in Paragraphs 195-201 of the GTAA Guidance. 
3 Following the guidance set out in Paragraphs 172-183 of the GTAA Guidance. 

Tudalen 76



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 23 

 

 

 
Final Outcomes 

4.30 All of the components of supply and demand are presented in an easy-to-understand table as set out in the 

GTAA Guidance in Table 3. 

 

Transit Provision 

4.31 The GTAA also includes an assessment of the need for any transit sites or temporary stopping places to meet 

the needs of members of the Travelling Community who either travel permanently or for part of the year. In 

order to investigate the potential need for transit provision when undertaking the GTAA, ORS have 

undertaken analysis of records of unauthorised sites and encampments that were identified during the desk- 

based research. Data from the Gypsy and Traveller Caravan Count has also been considered as supporting 

evidence. 

 

Compliance with Engagement Checklist 

4.32 The table below shows that the 2021 GTAA has been compliant with all of points set out in the Engagement 

Checklist in the Welsh Government GTAA Guidance. Given that the 2023 GTAA Update only included a new 

round of household interviews and subsequent needs analysis, the checklist has been updated where 

appropriate. 

Figure 7 – Engagement Checklist 

 

 Task Completed 

 

 
1 

Visit every Gypsy, Traveller and Travelling Showperson household identified through 
the data analysis process up to 3 times, if necessary. 

It was possible for ORS Researchers to contact households living on every site in 
Denbighshire, and it was possible to interview all resident households that were 
identified over the phone. [Updated] 

 

🗸 

 
 

 
2 

Publish details of the GTAA process, including contact details to allow community 
members to request an interview, on the local authority website, Travellers Times 
website and the World’s Fair publication. In addition, adverts were placed by Welsh 
Government. 

 
Extensive publicity was undertaken to promote the GTAA, and details can be found in 
Appendix F. However, Worlds Fair ceased being published as a weekly newspaper in 
2019 (although there are plans to relaunch it in 2021) and Travellers Times no longer 
publish details of GTAAs on their Facebook pages. 

 

 

🗸 

 

 
3 

Consult relevant community support organisations, such as those in Annex 1. 

Engagement was sought with all organisations listed in Annex 1 of the GTAA Guidance. 
The only organisation that responded was Travelling Ahead and a telephone interview 
was completed with their Team Manager. A summary of the outcomes of the interview 
can be found in Appendix E. 

 

🗸 

4 
Develop a Local Authority waiting list for both pitches and housing, which is accessible 
and communicated to community members. 🗸 

Tudalen 77



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 24 

 

 

 

  
There are no public sites in Denbighshire County Council. 

 

 

 
5 

Endeavour to include Gypsies and Travellers on the GTAA Project Steering Group. 
 

Due to the small numbers of Gypsy and Traveller households within the county, it was 
not possible to encourage a member of the Gypsy and Traveller community to sit on 
the Steering Group. 

 

🗸 

 

 
6 

Ensure contact details provided to the local authority by community members through 
the survey process are followed up and needs assessed. 

All contacts provided by the local authority were followed up and interviews were 
completed with all households. [Updated]. 

 

🗸 

 

 
7 

Consider holding on-site (or nearby) GTAA information events to explain why 
community members should participate and encourage site residents to bring others 
who may not be known to the local authority. 

Due to the very small number of Travellers in Denbighshire and COVID-19 restrictions, it 
was not possible to hold any on-site information events. 

 

🗸 

Tudalen 78



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 25 

 

 

5. Survey Findings 
Background 

5.1 The desk-based research, and additional information from the Council, identified a total of 2 unauthorised 

Gypsy and Traveller sites and no Travelling Showpeople yards in Denbighshire. A total of 4 households living 

on unauthorised encampments and 4 households living in bricks and mortar were also identified. 

Figure 8 - Sites in Denbighshire (August 2023) 

 

Site Name Pitches Status 

Unauthorised 1 1 Unauthorised 

Unauthorised 2 6 Unauthorised 

Various (x4) 4 Encampments 

Various (x4) n/a Bricks and Mortar 

TOTAL 11  

5.2 Interviews were attempted with households on the sites and encampments between June 2023 and August 

2023 and a total of 7 successful interviews were completed across all the 2 sites and encampments. In 

addition, a total of 4 interviews were completed with households that were identified living in bricks and 

mortar. This represented an overall response rate of 100% of occupied pitches and households 

Figure 9 – Interviews completed in Denbighshire (August 2023) 

 

Site/Yard Name Pitches Interviews Refusals 

Unauthorised 1 1 1 0 

Unauthorised 2 6 6 0 

Unauthorised 3 1 1 0 

Unauthorised 4 1 1 0 

Unauthorised 5 1 1 0 

Unauthorised 6 1 1 0 

Bricks and Mortar 1 1 1 0 

Bricks and Mortar 2 1 1 0 

Bricks and Mortar 3 1 1 0 

Bricks and Mortar 44 1 1 0 

TOTAL 15 15 0 

5.3 In addition the 2021 GTAA identified a further household who were living in bricks and mortar which they felt 

was unsuitable for their needs. The Council have confirmed that this household have now been rehoused in 

suitable accommodation and as such their needs have not been included in the GTAA Update. 

 

Interview Log 

5.4  A copy of the Interview Log can be found in Appendix C. 
 

4 This household was living on an unauthorised site in Denbighshire at the time of the 2021 GTAA but have now 
moved to a bricks and mortar property in Wrexham. Their needs have not been included in the GTAA Update. 

Tudalen 79



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 26 

 

 

 
Overview and Demographics of Residents 

5.5 Information collected on the type of accommodation lived in by those who were interviewed shows that the 

Gypsies and Travellers who were interviewed in Denbighshire live on unauthorised sites, unauthorised 

encampments, or in bricks and mortar. 

5.6 Ethnicity data was captured from all the households that were interviewed on the unauthorised Gypsy and 

Traveller sites and for those living in bricks and mortar. All those who were interviewed identified as Welsh 

Gypsies. 

5.7 In total the interviews identified 39 residents living on the 2 unauthorised Gypsy and Traveller sites, the 4 

encampments, and living in bricks and mortar. This was made up of 24 adults and 15 children aged under 18. 

This equates to 62% adults and 38% children and teenagers. Although not a direct comparison, data from the 

2011 Census for Denbighshire as a whole (the settled community and the Gypsy or Irish Traveller community) 

and for Gypsies or Irish Travellers has been compared to the site population. This shows a higher proportion 

of those aged under 18 in the Gypsy and Traveller population when compared to that of the Denbighshire 

population as a whole. This is important when considering the new household growth rate that could be 

applied to the population when longer-term need is determined. 

Figure 10 – Age and Gender of Household Members as % of Total Residents Interviewed (August 2023) 

 

Age and Gender - Sites Number % 

Male 21 54 

Female 18 46 

Under 18 15 39 

18 and over 24 61 

 

Interview Summary 

5.8 Summaries of the interviews that were completed with Gypsies and Travellers living on unauthorised sites, 

unauthorised encampments, and living in bricks and mortar can be found in Appendix D. 

Tudalen 80



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 27 

 

 

6. Assessing Accommodation Needs 
6.1 This section focuses on the pitch provision which is needed by Denbighshire County Council for a short-term 

period of 5 years and the full LDP period to 2033. This includes both current unmet need and need which is 

likely to arise in the future. This period allows for robust forecasts for future provision, based upon the 

evidence contained within this study and from secondary data sources. 

6.2 This section is based upon a combination of information from the household interviews, planning records, 

and from the Council. In many cases, the survey data is not used in isolation, but instead is used to validate 

information from planning records or other sources. 

6.3 This section concentrates not only upon the total provision, which is needed in the area, but also whether 

there is a need for any transit sites and/or emergency stopping place provision. 

6.4 Welsh Government Guidance requires an assessment of current and future pitch needs and provides a 

prescribed framework for undertaking this calculation. This framework has been followed for the purpose of 

this GTAA. 

6.5 As with any assessment of housing need the underlying calculation can be broken down into a relatively small 

number of factors. In this case, the key issue for residential pitches is to compare the supply that is available 

for occupation with the current and future needs of the households. The key factors in each of these elements 

are set out in the sections below. 

 

Current Residential Supply 

» Occupied local authority pitches. 

» Occupied authorised private pitches. 

» Vacant local authority pitches and available private pitches. 

» Pitches expected to be vacated in the near future. 

» New local authority pitches private pitches with planning permission. 

 

Current Residential Demand 

» Households on unauthorised encampments. 

» Households on unauthorised developments. 

» Concealed /over-crowded/doubled-up households5. 

» Conventional housing – movement from bricks and mortar6. 

» New households to arrive from waiting lists/in-migration. 
 
 
 

 

5 Following the guidance set out in Paragraphs 195-201 of the GTAA Guidance. 
6 Following the guidance set out in Paragraphs 172-183 of the GTAA Guidance. 

Tudalen 81



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 28 

 

 

 
Future Demand 

6.6 Total future demand is a result of the formation of new households during the study period. Information from 

the site interviews provides details of the gross number of new households expected to form within the first 5 

years of the study (although it is important to net this off against supply that has been identified during the 

first 5 years of the study). New household formation for the remainder of the study period have been based 

on demographic evidence from the site interviews. 

 

Current Authorised Residential Supply 

6.7 To assess the current Gypsy and Traveller provision it is important to understand the total number of existing 

pitches and their planning status. At the baseline for the GTAA there were no authorised sites in Denbighshire. 

Figure 11 – Total number of authorised sites in Denbighshire (August 2023) 

 

Category Sites Pitches Occupied 

Private sites with permanent planning permission 0 0 0 

Private sites with temporary planning permission 0 0 0 

Public sites (Council and Registered Providers) 0 0 0 

Public transit provision 0 0 0 

Private transit provision 0 0 0 

Tolerated sites 0 0 0 

Total 0 0 0 
 

 
6.8 The next stage of the process is to assess how much space is, or will become, available on existing sites in 

order to determine the supply of available pitches. The main ways of finding this is through: 

» Current vacant pitches – There are no authorised sites in Denbighshire. 

» Pitches expected to become vacant – There are no authorised sites in Denbighshire. 

» Pitches currently with planning permission – There are no pitches on sites that have 

planning permission that have not been implemented. 

6.9  This gives a figure for overall supply of no pitches. 

Figure 12 - Summary of Pitch Supply in Denbighshire - August 2023 

 

Category Pitches 

Current vacant pitches 0 

Pitches expected to become vacant 0 

Movement to bricks and mortar 0 

Out-migration 0 

Unimplemented pitches with planning consent 0 

TOTAL SUPPLY 0 

Tudalen 82



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 29 

 

 

 
Current Residential Demand 

6.10 The next stage of the process is to assess current need and determine how many households are currently 

seeking pitches in the area. 

 

Current Unauthorised Sites and Encampments 

6.11 The study has identified 2 unauthorised sites in Denbighshire. A site with 1 pitch (Unauthorised 1) and a site 

with 6 pitches (Unauthorised 2). The study also identified 4 households living on unauthorised encampments 

in Denbighshire. 

Figure 13 - Summary of Unauthorised and Tolerated Pitches in Denbighshire (August 2023) 

 

Site Pitches 

Unauthorised Sites (x2) 7 

Unauthorised Encampments (x4) 4 

TOTAL 11 

 

Concealed Households and Over-Crowded Pitches 

6.12 The site interviews sought to identify concealed or doubled-up households on sites that require a pitch 

immediately. Welsh Government Guidance defines concealed households as those which are unable to 

achieve their own authorised accommodation and are instead living within authorised accommodation 

(houses or pitches) assigned to another household. This may include adult children who have been unable to 

move home or different households occupying a single pitch. The site interviews identified 1 concealed or 

doubled-up household, and no over-crowded pitches. 

 

Conventional Housing 

6.13 Identifying households in bricks and mortar has been frequently highlighted as an issue with GTAAs. The 2021 

Census identified a total of just 36 Gypsy or Irish Traveller and Roma households in Denbighshire living in 

bricks and mortar. 

6.14 As noted earlier, ORS went to all possible lengths to identify Gypsies and Travellers living in bricks and mortar 

and worked with Council Officers, and households that were interviewed to identify households to interview. 

This process resulted in 4 households that were interviewed, 2 who stated that they had a need to move to 

a site in Denbighshire; 1 who was happy living in bricks and mortar; and 1 who are now living in bricks and 

mortar in Wrexham. 

Figure 14 - Summary of Bricks and Mortar Need in Denbighshire - August 2023 
 

2 

2 

Existing households 

TOTAL 

Pitches Site 

Tudalen 83



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 30 

 

 

 
New Households to Arrive 

6.15 At the time of the GTAA there were no public sites in Denbighshire and no waiting list. Therefore, there are 

no additional households in need of a pitch in Denbighshire from the waiting list. 

6.16 Assessments also need to consider in-migration (households requiring accommodation who intend to move 

into the study area from outside) and out-migration (households intending to move away from the study 

area). Site surveys typically identify only small numbers of in-migrant and out-migrant households and the 

data is not normally robust enough to extrapolate long-term trends. At the national level, there is zero net 

migration of Gypsies and Travellers across the UK, but this assessment has considered local migration effects 

on the basis of the best local evidence available. 

6.17 Evidence drawn from household interviews in Denbighshire, and discussions with the Council has been 

carefully considered and has identified no evidence of any in-migration. 

 

Additional Pitch Provision: Future Need 

6.18 The next stage of the process is to assess future need and determine how many households are likely to be 

seeking pitches in the area in the future during the first 5 years of the assessment, and for the longer LDP 

period to 2033. 

 

Population and Household Growth 

6.19 Nationally, a household formation and growth rate of 3.00% net per annum has been commonly assumed 

and widely used in local GTAAs, even though there is no statistical evidence of households growing so quickly. 

The result has been to inflate both national and local requirements for additional pitches unrealistically. In 

this context, ORS has prepared a Technical Note on Household Formation and Growth Rates that was updated 

in June 2020. The main conclusions are set out here and the full Technical Note can be found in Appendix G. 

6.20 Those seeking to provide evidence of high annual net household growth rates for Gypsies and Travellers have 

sometimes sought to rely on increases in the number of caravans, as reflected in the Caravan Counts. 

However, Caravan Count data is unreliable and erratic – so the only proper way to project future population 

and household growth is through detailed demographic analysis. 

6.21 The research undertaken by ORS has identified that the growth in the national Gypsy and Traveller population 

may be as low as 1.50% per annum – much less than the 3.00% per annum often assumed, but still greater 

than in the settled community. Even using extreme and unrealistic assumptions, it is hard to find evidence 

that net Gypsy and Traveller population and household growth rates are above 2.00% per annum nationally. 

6.22 The often assumed 3.00% per annum net household growth rate is unrealistic and would require clear 

statistical evidence before being used for planning purposes. In practice, the best available evidence supports 

the ORS national net household growth rate of 1.50% per annum for Gypsies and Travellers. 

6.23 There are 2 measures of household growth that are used for the assessment of need in this study. Evidence 

of gross household formation (family growth) from Section D of the Household Survey, netted off against 

evidence of 1 year pitch turnover and pitches expected to become vacant, has been used for the first 5 year 

period. New household formation for the remaining years of the GTAA has been based on demographic 

evidence from the household interviews. 

Tudalen 84



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 31 

 

 

 
6.24 The site and bricks and mortar interviews identified 2 new households as a result of family growth from 

teenagers over the first 5 years of the assessment, and a no annual pitch turnover as there are no public sites. 

6.25 Household formation for the remainder of the GTAA period to 2033 has been based on the overall 

demographics of the population. The GTAA Guidance recommends that applying a net compound growth 

rate should be considered. 

6.26 However, in certain circumstances where the numbers of households and children are low, or the population 

age structure is skewed by certain age groups, it is not appropriate to apply a percentage rate for new 

household formation. In these cases, a judgement is made on likely new household formation based on the 

age and gender of the children. This is based on the assumption that 50% of households likely to form will 

stay in the area. This is based on evidence from other GTAAs that ORS have completed across England and 

Wales. This approach has been taken to determine levels of new household formation for Gypsies and 

Travellers in Denbighshire for the wider period to 2033 given the low numbers of younger children identified 

in the household interviews. The outcome is that a total future need for 2 pitches was identified for the 

period 2028/29–2033. However, it should be noted that this figure may change over time. 

Tudalen 85



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 32 

 

 

 
Overall Need for Gypsies and Travellers in Denbighshire 

6.27 The Welsh Government Guidance requires 2 assessments of need – for the first 5 years of the study period, 

and for the full Local Development Plan period. 

6.28 Following this approach, the overall estimated provision that is needed in Denbighshire for the first 5 years 

is for 16 pitches. 

6.29 The overall estimated provision that is needed up to 2033 is for 18 pitches. 

Figure 15 – Pitches Needed in Denbighshire from 2023-2033 

 

Current Residential Supply Number of Pitches Notes 

A. Occupied Local Authority Pitches 0 No public sites 

B. Occupied authorised private pitches/tolerated 
pitches 

0 No authorised sites 

Total 0  

Planned Residential Supply Number of Pitches  

C. Vacant Local Authority pitches and available 
vacant pitches 

0 No public sites 

D. Pitches expected to become vacant in near 
future 

0 No public sites 

E. New Local Authority and private pitches with 
planning permission 

0 No unimplemented pitches 

Total 0  

Current Residential Demand Pitch Demand  

F. Unauthorised encampments 4 4 encampments 

G. Unauthorised developments 7 7 unauthorised pitches 

H. Overcrowded pitches/Unsuitable 
accommodation 

1 1 doubled-up household 

I. Conventional housing 2 2 households from bricks 
and mortar 

J. New households to arrive 0 No in-migration 

Total 14  

Current Households Future Households 
(at year 5) 

Future Households 
(years 6 to 12) 

K. 14 households 16 18 

L. Additional household pitch need 2 2 

Unmet Need Need Arising Need 
Accommodated 

M.  Current residential demand 14  

N. Future residential demand (year 5) 2  

O. Future residential demand (years 6 to 10) 2  

P. Planned residential supply  0 

Q. Unmet need (5 year) 16  

R. Unmet need (to end of the Denbighshire LDP 
period to 2033) 

18  

Tudalen 86



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 33 

 

 

 
 

Transit/Emergency Stopping Site Provision 

6.30 Transit sites serve a specific function of meeting the needs of Gypsy and Traveller households who are visiting 

an area or who are passing through. A transit site typically has a restriction on the length of stay of around 

13 weeks and has a range of facilities such as water supply, electricity, and amenity blocks. An alternative to 

a transit site is a temporary stopping place. This type of site also has restrictions on the length of time a 

Traveller can stay on it but has much more limited facilities with typically only a source of water and chemical 

toilets provided. 

6.31 The Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994 is particularly important with regard to the issue of Gypsy and 

Traveller transit site provision. Section 62A of the Act allows the Police to direct trespassers to remove 

themselves, their vehicles, and their property from any land where a suitable pitch on a relevant caravan site 

is available within the same Local Authority area. A suitable pitch on a relevant caravan site is one which is 

situated in the same Local Authority area as the land on which the trespass has occurred, and which is 

managed by a Local Authority, a Registered Provider or other person or body as specified by order by the 

Secretary of State. Case law has confirmed that a suitable pitch must be somewhere where the household 

can occupy their caravan. Bricks and mortar housing is not a suitable alternative to a pitch7. Therefore, a 

transit site both provides a place for households in transit to an area and also a mechanism for greater 

enforcement action against inappropriate unauthorised encampments. 

6.32 Consideration will also have to be given to the Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Act which came into force 

in June 2022. Part 4 of the Act gives the Police additional powers to deal with unauthorised encampments 

through new offences relating to residing on land without consent in or with a vehicle and new powers in 

relation to the seizure of property. 

6.33 In order to identify whether there is a need for the Council to provide transit accommodation analysis has 

been undertaken of the Caravan Count data, recorded encampment data provided by the Council, and the 

outcomes from the household interviews. 

6.34 Discussions with local stakeholders at the time of the 2021 GTAA, and analysis of records of unauthorised 

encampments, confirmed that there are limited instances of unauthorised encampments in Denbighshire, 

and that these are normally Travellers passing through for work purposes given that the area is on the main 

A55 travelling corridor across North Wales for Travellers coming to and from Ireland on the ferry from 

Holyhead. There have also been records of encampments in the middle and south of the county. There is also 

evidence of records of repeat annual visits from the same households at similar times of the year. 

6.35 There have been other localised instances of Travellers temporarily visiting Denbighshire to attend weddings 

or other events, but no further evidence of any long-term or permanent accommodation needs were 

identified. 

6.36 Detailed analysis of records of unauthorised encampments in Denbighshire from 2014 to 2023 are shown in 

the table below. These include localised instances of Travellers temporarily visiting Denbighshire to attend 

 

7 https://www.travellerstimes.org.uk/features/lawyers-opinion-police-powers-and-unauthorised-camps- 

travellers-motor-vehicles-and 

Tudalen 87

https://www.travellerstimes.org.uk/features/lawyers-opinion-police-powers-and-unauthorised-camps-travellers-motor-vehicles-and
https://www.travellerstimes.org.uk/features/lawyers-opinion-police-powers-and-unauthorised-camps-travellers-motor-vehicles-and


Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 34 

 

 

 
weddings or other events, but no further evidence of any long-term or permanent accommodation needs 

were identified. 

6.37 The outcomes from the household interviews and discussions with stakeholders did not identify that there 

was a need for permanent transit provision locally, although there were discussions about a need for more 

transit provision across Wales. 

Figure 16 – Recorded Encampments in Denbighshire 2014-2023 (to October) 
 

Year Recorded Encampments No. of Locations 

2014 9 8 

2015 6 6 

2016 15 13 

2017 17 17 

2018 15 15 

2019 7 7 

2020 4 4 

2021 12 11 

2022 13 12 

2023 (to October) 5 5 

 

Transit Recommendations 

6.38 The outcomes from the household interviews and discussions with stakeholders did not identify that there 

was a need for permanent transit provision locally, although there were discussions about a need for more 

transit provision across Wales. 

6.39 The Council employ a Gypsy, Roma, Traveller Liaison Officer post as well as having formalised a more co- 

ordinated process for the management of unauthorised encampments. This is understood to be to ensure 

early engagement with families travelling through Denbighshire, and to provide a coordinated approach to 

ensure that welfare checks and facilities such as bins and toilets are provided. This resulted in engagement 

with a total of 5 households living on encampments during the GTAA fieldwork period and none expressed a 

specific need for formal transit provision. This role is also intended to build better relations between the 

Council and the Travelling Community. Discussions with the Council have concluded that this approach could 

be developed further to form the basis of a more comprehensive managed approach to include 

considerations of options such as negotiated stopping. 

6.40 Despite the previous GTAA identifying a need for transit pitches in Denbighshire, more recent evidence 

suggests that this is no longer the case and that alternative approaches should be considered. As such it is 

recommended that there is not a need at this time for the Council to provide a transit site in Denbighshire 

due to the low numbers of unauthorised encampments, and the short-term transient nature of these 

encampments. 

6.41 It is also recommended that the Council should continue to monitor the number of unauthorised 

encampments and consider the use of short-term toleration (including negotiated stopping arrangements) 

to deal with short-term transient stops. This management-based approach should also include consideration 

about whether to provide toilets, water and refuse facilities. There are a number of examples across Wales 

Tudalen 88



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 35 

 

 

 
and England where management-based approaches to dealing with unauthorised encampments have been 

successful. A good example can be found at www.negotiatedstopping.co.uk. There are also many examples 

where local authorities are taking a more strategic and regional approach towards addressing transit issues 

including in Essex, Leicestershire, the former Northamptonshire, and Hampshire. 

 

Need for Travelling Showpeople Plots 

6.42 Given that there were no Travelling Showpeople identified as living in Denbighshire, no assessment of need 

has been undertaken. The Council should however monitor any future approaches for planning permission 

from Travelling Showpeople and have in place appropriate criteria based LDP policies to deal with any future 

applications. 

Tudalen 89

http://www.negotiatedstopping.co.uk/


Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 36 

 

 

7. Conclusions 
Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Need 

7.1 Based upon the evidence presented in this study the estimated additional pitch provision needed for Gypsies 

and Travellers in Denbighshire for the first 5 years of the study period (2023/24-2028/29) is for 16 pitches 

and need by 2033, the end of the Denbighshire replacement LDP period, is for a further 2 pitches. This gives 

a total need for the whole period across Denbighshire for 18 pitches. 

 

Travelling Showpeople Plot Need 

7.2 Given that there have been no Travelling Showpeople identified as living in Denbighshire, no assessment of 

need has been undertaken. The Council should however monitor any future approaches for planning 

permission from Travelling Showpeople and have in place appropriate criteria based LDP policies to deal with 

any future applications. 

 

Transit Sites 

7.3 Despite the previous GTAA identifying a need for transit pitches in Denbighshire, more recent evidence 

suggests that this is no longer the case and that alternative approaches should be considered. As such it is 

recommended that there is not a need at this time for the Council to provide a transit site in Denbighshire 

due to the low numbers of unauthorised encampments, and the short-term transient nature of these 

encampments. 

 

Addressing Identified Need 

7.4 In general terms need identified in a GTAA should be seen as need for pitches. Welsh Government Guidance 

on Designing Gypsy and Traveller Sites (2015) recommends that as a minimum a pitch should be capable of 

accommodating an amenity block, a mobile home, a touring caravan, and parking for two vehicles. However, 

this guidance relates only to public sites provided by Local Authorities and there are currently no public sites 

in Denbighshire. 

7.5 Given that the need identified in Denbighshire is from households living on unauthorised sites, from 

unauthorised encampments, or from households living in bricks and mortar who have expressed a desire to 

either meet their own needs, or for new public site provision, it is recommended that the Council should seek 

to support these households to meet their need. 

7.6 It is recognised that the Council are in the process of reviewing their adopted LDP that sets out how overall 

housing need will be addressed. The replacement Denbighshire LDP covers the period 2018-2033. The 

findings of this report should be considered as part of future housing mix and type within the context of the 

assessment of overall housing need in relation to Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople. 

Tudalen 90



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 37 

 

 

Appendix A: Definition of Key Terms 
 
 

 

Concealed or ‘doubled-up’ household This refers to households which are unable to 

achieve their own authorised accommodation 

and are instead living within authorised 

accommodation (houses or pitches) assigned to 

another household. 

This may include adult children who have been 

unable to move home or different households 

occupying a single pitch. 

Current residential demand Those with a need for authorised pitches for a 

range of reasons, including: 

An inability to secure an authorised pitch leading 

to occupation of unauthorised encampments. 

An inability to secure correct planning 

permission for an unauthorised development. 

Households living in overcrowded conditions and 

want a pitch. 

Households in conventional housing 

demonstrating cultural aversion. 

New households expected to arrive from 

elsewhere. 

Current residential supply The number of authorised pitches which are 

available and occupied within the Local Authority 

or partnership area. This includes pitches on Local 

Authority or private sites. 

Future residential demand The expected level of new household formation 

which will generate additional demand within the 

5-year period of the accommodation assessment 

and longer LDP period. 

Tudalen 91



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 38 

 

 

 

Gypsies and Travellers (a) Persons of a nomadic habit of life, whatever 

their race or origin, including: 

(1) Persons who, on grounds only of their own or 

their family’s or dependent’s educational or 

health needs or old age, have ceased to travel 

temporarily or permanently, and 

(2) Members of an organized group of travelling 

show people or circus people (whether or not 

travelling together as such); and 

(b) All other persons with a cultural tradition of 

nomadism or of living in a mobile home. 

Source: Section 108, Housing (Wales) Act 2014 

Household In this guidance this refers to individuals from the 

same family who live together on a single pitch / 

house / encampment. 

Household growth In this guidance household growth is defined by 

the number of new households arising from 

households which are already accommodated in 

the area. 

Overall residential pitch need The ultimate calculation of unmet 

accommodation need which must be identified 

through the Gypsy and Traveller accommodation 

assessment process. This figure can be found by 

adding the immediate residential need to the 

future residential demand. The overall residential 

need will capture the needs across the 5-year 

period w i t h i n  w h i c h  t h e  

a c c o m m o d a t i o n  

assessment is considered to be robust. 

Planned residential pitch supply The number of authorised pitches which are 

vacant and available to rent on Local Authority or 

private sites. It also includes pitches which will be 

vacated in the near future by households moving 

to conventional housing or in other 

circumstances. Additional pitches which are due 

to open or private sites likely to achieve planning 

permission shortly should be included as planned 

residential supply. 

Tudalen 92



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 39 

 

 

 

Residential pitch Land on a mobile home site where occupiers are 

entitled to station their mobile homes indefinitely 

(unless stated in their pitch agreement). Typically 

includes an amenity block, space for a static 

caravan and touring caravan and parking. 

Residential site A permanent residential site can be privately 

owned or owned by the Local Authority. This site 

will be designated for use as a Gypsy and Traveller 

site indefinitely. Residents on these sites can 

expect to occupy their pitches for as long as they 

abide by the terms of their pitch agreements, 

under the Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013. 

Working space may also be provided on, or nearby, 

sites for activities carried out by community 

members. 

Temporary residential site These sites are residential sites which only have 

planning permission or a site licence for a limited 

period. Residents on these sites can expect to 

occupy their pitches for the duration of the 

planning permission or site licence (or as long as 

they abide by the terms of their pitch agreements, 

under the Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013 – 

whichever is sooner). 

Temporary Stopping Place Also known as a ‘stopping place’, ‘Atchin Tan’, or 

‘green lane’, amongst other names. These are 

intended to be short-term in nature to assist Local 

Authorities where a need for pitches is accepted, 

however, none are currently available. Pro- 

actively identified temporary stopping places can 

be used to relocate inappropriately located 

encampments, whilst alternative sites are 

progressed. 

Temporary stopping places must make provision 

for waste disposal, water supply and sanitation at 

a minimum. 

Transit pitch Land on a mobile home site where occupiers are 

entitled to station their mobile homes for a 

maximum of 3 months. 

Tudalen 93



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 40 

 

 

 

 
Transit pitches can exist on permanent residential 

sites; however, this is not recommended. 

Transit site Transit sites are permanent facilities designed for 

temporary use by occupiers. These sites must be 

designated as such and provide a route for 

Gypsies and Travellers to maintain a nomadic way 

of life. Individual occupiers are permitted to 

reside on the site for a maximum of 3 months at a 

time. 

Specific terms under the Mobile Homes (Wales) 

Act 2013 apply on these sites. Working space may 

also be provided on, or near, sites for activities 

carried out by community members 

Unauthorised development Land occupied by the owner without the 

necessary land use planning permission. 

Unauthorised encampment Land occupied without the permission of the 

owner or without the correct land use planning 

permission. Encampments may be tolerated by 

the Local Authority, whilst alternative sites are 

developed. 

Tudalen 94



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 41 

 

 

Appendix B: Sites and Yards in 
Denbighshire (August 2023) 

 
 
 

 

Site/Yard 
Operational 

Pitches/Plots 
Unauthorised 
Pitches/Plots 

Public Sites   

None - - 

Private Sites with Permanent Permission   

None - - 

Private Sites with Temporary Permission   

None - - 

Tolerated Sites   

None - - 

Unauthorised Sites   

Unauthorised 1 - 1 

Unauthorised 2 - 6 

TOTAL PITCHES 0 7 

Public Transit Sites   

None - - 

Private Transit Sites   

None - - 

Private Travelling Showpeople Yards   

None - - 

Tolerated Travelling Showpeople Yards   

None - - 

Unauthorised Travelling Showpeople Yards 

None 
 

- 
 

- 

Tudalen 95



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 42 

 

 

Appendix C: Interview Log 
 
 

 

Address Type of tenure Engagement 
attempts 

Engagement 
techniques 

Completed 
or refusal? 

Reason 
for 
refusal? 

      

Unauthorised 1 Unauthorised 
Site 

04/07/2023 Telephone Complete n/a 

Unauthorised 2 Unauthorised 
Site 

04/07/2023, 
16/08/2023 

Telephone, 
SMS 
Message 

Complete n/a 

Unauthorised 3 Unauthorised 
Encampment 

22/06/2023 Telephone Complete n/a 

Unauthorised 4 Unauthorised 
Encampment 

22/06/2023 Telephone Complete n/a 

Unauthorised 5 Unauthorised 
Encampment 

22/06/2023 Telephone Complete n/a 

Unauthorised 6 Unauthorised 
Encampment 

22/06/2023 Telephone Complete n/a 

      

Bricks and Mortar 1 Bricks and 
Mortar 

22/06/2023 Telephone Complete n/a 

      

Bricks and Mortar 2 Bricks and 
Mortar 

22/06/2023 Telephone Complete n/a 

      

Bricks and Mortar 3 Bricks and 
Mortar 

04/07/2023, 
16/08/2023 

Telephone, 
SMS 
Message 

Complete n/a 

      

Bricks and Mortar 4 Bricks and 
Mortar 

07/07/2023 Telephone Complete n/a 

Tudalen 96



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 43 

 

 

Appendix E: Interview Summary – 
Travelling Ahead 
ORS interviewed a representative from Travelling Ahead for the 2021 GTAA8 . 

Travelling Ahead are an organisation which provides support, advice and advocacy for Gypsy, Traveller and 

Roma families across Wales. They have helped to raise awareness of Accommodation Assessments across 

Wales to ensure that the Travelling community are represented and were able to offer assistance to ORS in 

engaging with Travelling Community in Denbighshire for the latest Assessment. 

The following matters were highlighted during the discussion with ORS and relate to existing matters in 

Denbighshire, and the wider context of Gypsy, Traveller and Travelling Showperson accommodation in Wales. 

Denbighshire Specific Issues 

» It was felt that, within Denbighshire Council, there should be continued engagement with 

members of the Travelling Community, including relationship-building engagement with 

elected members. This engagement should be intended to better understand what the 

needs of the Travelling community are and to strengthen understanding of the Local 

Authority duty to actually deliver sites. 

» Underlying all of the Gypsy and Traveller accommodation work in Denbighshire is the 

recent history concerning the planning committee’s refusal of the site put forward by 

Council Officers last year (2020). The refusal of the site was accompanied by public 

opposition. The whole process has done untold damage to the faith of the community 

into how likely it is that the Council are willing or will be able to follow through on 

delivering any sites in the foreseeable future. This is felt by and impacts not just the local 

family who were due to be allocated the site, but all the community across North Wales. 

The council has to work to address these issues systemically and urgently if there is any 

chance of rebuilding this trust. 

»  The new Gypsy and Traveller Liaison post in Denbighshire Council is understood to have 

helped with the management of encampments in the area. It was felt it has allowed for 

negations on stopping which has made mutually beneficial arrangements and is building 

relationships/reputation with members of the Travelling community. 

Wider Regional/National Issues 

» It was highlighted that there could be unidentified need arising from people living in 

nomadic accommodation, such as vans, who reside regularly on the North coast of Wales. 

This includes holiday makers and others that would not be seen as traditional Gypsy 

Travellers. These people are therefore not subjected to the same sort of scrutiny and the 

 

 

8 https://www.tgpcymru.org.uk/what-we-do/travelling-ahead-wales-gypsy-roma-and-traveller-advice-and-advocacy- 
service/ 

Tudalen 97

https://www.tgpcymru.org.uk/what-we-do/travelling-ahead-wales-gypsy-roma-and-traveller-advice-and-advocacy-service/
https://www.tgpcymru.org.uk/what-we-do/travelling-ahead-wales-gypsy-roma-and-traveller-advice-and-advocacy-service/


Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 44 

 

 

 
same sort of response from local people and Councils as those seen as Gypsies and 

Travellers would be. 

» The lack of any form of transit provision in North Wales is seen as a big concern, especially 

after a need for transit provision was identified in the last round of GTAAs and no 

provision has been delivered. The Housing Act duty has not been met and shows no signs 

of being met. It was suggested that advice on this issue could be sought from 

organisations outside of Councils and discussed with people with experience of travelling. 

It was felt that engagement with members of the Travelling community will be the best 

way to identify what form the transit provision should take. Furthermore, the Council 

should continually be monitoring the situation and hold itself accountable for any lack of 

action. 

» Given the lack of progress with transit provision in North Wales, there is concern whether 

the GTAA process as a whole actually delivers the network of support for nomadic families 

that is actually needed. While need is being systematically measured, it can be questioned 

whether what is identified is monitored and/or implemented correctly. Concerns 

regarding the reviews of encampment being undertaken by the police and councils across 

North Wales with no involvement of Gypsies and Travellers 

» Travelling Ahead would like to see Welsh Government promote a form of ‘pre-application 

support’ for Travellers looking to purchase land. This is in order to limit the frequency 

with which Travellers purchase land that is ultimately unsuitable for permanent 

accommodation. 

» Travelling Ahead would also like to see Welsh Government provide grants and encourage 

leases so that people who don’t have their own resources may be able to access land over 

the long-term. 

Tudalen 98



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 45 

 

 

Appendix F: Publicity Examples (2021 
GTAA) 

Tudalen 99



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 46 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 100



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 47 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 101



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 48 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 102



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 49 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 103



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 50 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 104



Opinion Research Services – Denbighshire County Council GTAA Update – September 2023 

Page 51 

 

 

Appendix G: Technical Note on 
Household Formation and Growth 
Rates 

Tudalen 105



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Technical Note 

 
Gypsy and Traveller Household 

Formation and Growth Rates 

June 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Opinion Research Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Opinion Research Services | The Strand • Swansea • SA1 1AF | 01792 535300  | www.ors.org.uk  | info@ors.org.uk 

Tudalen 106

http://www.ors.org.uk/
mailto:info@ors.org.uk
http://www.ors.org.uk/


Opinion Research Services | Gypsy and Traveller Household Formation and Growth Rates | June 2020 

Page 2 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
As with all our studies, this research is subject to Opinion Research Services’ Standard 

Terms and Conditions of Contract. 

 
Any press release or publication of this research requires the advance approval of ORS. 

Such approval will only be refused on the grounds of inaccuracy or misrepresentation. 

 
© Copyright June 2020 

Tudalen 107



Opinion Research Services | Gypsy and Traveller Household Formation and Growth Rates | June 2020 

Page 3 

 

 

Contents 

Contents ........................................................................................................................................ 3 

Household Growth Rates ........................................................................................................................ 4 

Abstract and Conclusions ................................................................................................................................ 4 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Modelling Population and Household Growth Rates ...................................................................................... 4 

Migration Effects ............................................................................................................................................. 4 

Population Profile ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

Birth and Fertility Rates................................................................................................................................... 5 

Death Rates ..................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Modelling Outputs .......................................................................................................................................... 6 

Household Growth .......................................................................................................................................... 6 

Summary Conclusions ..................................................................................................................................... 8 

Tudalen 108



Opinion Research Services | Gypsy and Traveller Household Formation and Growth Rates | June 2020 

Page 4 

 

 

Household Growth Rates 
Abstract and Conclusions 

1.  National and local household formation and growth rates are important components of Gypsy and Traveller 

accommodation assessments, but until 2013 little detailed work had been done to assess their likely scale. 

ORS undertook work in 2013 to assess the likely rate of demographic growth for the Gypsy and Traveller 

population and concluded that the figure could be as low 1.25% per annum, but that best available evidence 

supports a national net household growth rate of 1.50% per annum. 

2. This analysis was produced as a separate document in 2013 and then updated in 2015 

(www.opinionresearch.co.uk/formation2015) in light of comments from academics, planning agents and 

local authorities. The 2015 document was complex because there was still serious dispute as to the level of 

demographic growth for Gypsies and Travellers in 2015. However, ORS now consider these disputes have 

largely been resolved at Planning Appeals and Local Plan Examinations, so we consider that much of the 

supporting evidence is now no longer required to be in the document. 

3. This current document represents a shortened re-statement to our findings in 2015 to allow for easier 

comprehension of the issues involved. It contains no new research and if reader wishes to see further details 

of the supporting information, they should review the more detailed 2015 report. 

Introduction 

4. Compared with the general population, the relative youthfulness of many Gypsy and Traveller populations 

means that their birth rates are likely to generate higher-than-average population growth, and 

proportionately higher gross household formation rates. However, while their gross rate of household 

growth might be high, Gypsy and Traveller communities’ future accommodation needs are, in practice, 

affected by any reduction in the number of households due to dissolution and/or by movements in/out of 

the area and/or by transfers into other forms of housing. Therefore, the net rate of household growth is the 

gross rate of formation minus any reductions in households due to such factors. 

Modelling Population and Household Growth Rates 

5.  The basic equation for calculating the rate of Gypsy and Traveller population growth seems simple: start with 

the base population and then calculate the average increase/decrease by allowing for births, deaths, in-/out- 

migration and household dissolution. Nevertheless, deriving satisfactory estimates is difficult because the 

evidence is often tenuous – so, in this context in 2013, ORS modelled the growth of the national Gypsy and 

Traveller population based on the most likely birth and death rates, and by using PopGroup (the leading 

software for population and household forecasting). To do so, we supplemented the available national 

statistical sources with data derived from our own surveys. 

Migration Effects 

6.  Population growth is affected by national net migration and local migration (as Gypsies and Travellers move 

from one area to another). In terms of national migration, the population of Gypsies and Travellers is 

relatively fixed, with little international migration. It is in principle possible for Irish Travellers (based in 

Ireland) to move to the UK, but there is no evidence of this happening to a significant extent and the vast 

majority of Irish Travellers were born in the UK or are long-term residents. 

Tudalen 109

https://www.opinionresearch.co.uk/formation2015


Opinion Research Services | Gypsy and Traveller Household Formation and Growth Rates | June 2020 

Page 5 

 

 

 
Population Profile 

7.  The main source for the rate of Gypsy and Traveller population growth is the UK 2011 Census. The ethnicity 

question in the 2011 Census included for the first time ‘Gypsy and Irish Traveller’ as a specific category. While 

non-response bias probably means that the size of the population was underestimated, the age profile the 

Census provides is not necessarily distorted and matches the profile derived from ORS’s extensive household 

surveys. 

Table 1 - Age Profile for the Gypsy and Traveller Community in England (Source: UK Census of Population 2011) 

 

Age Group Number of People Cumulative Percentage 

Age 0 to 4 5,725 10.4 

Age 5 to 7 3,219 16.3 

Age 8 to 9 2,006 19.9 

Age 10 to 14 5,431 29.8 

Age 15 1,089 31.8 

Age 16 to 17 2,145 35.7 

Age 18 to 19 1,750 38.9 

Age 20 to 24 4,464 47.1 

Age 25 to 29 4,189 54.7 

Age 30 to 34 3,833 61.7 

Age 35 to 39 3,779 68.5 

Age 40 to 44 3,828 75.5 

Age 45 to 49 3,547 82.0 

Age 50 to 54 2,811 87.1 

Age 55 to 59 2,074 90.9 

Age 60 to 64 1,758 94.1 

Age 65 to 69 1,215 96.3 

Age 70 to 74 905 97.9 

Age 75 to 79 594 99.0 

Age 80 to 84 303 99.6 

Age 85 and over 230 100.0 

 

Birth and Fertility Rates 

8. The table above provides a way of understanding the rate of population growth through births. The table 

shows that surviving children aged 0-4 years comprise 10.4% of the Gypsy and Traveller population – which 

means that, on average, 2.1% of the total population was born each year (over the last 5 years). The same 

estimate is confirmed if we consider that those aged 0-14 comprise 29.8% of the Gypsy and Traveller 

population – which also means that almost exactly 2% of the population was born each year. 

9.  The total fertility rate (TFR) for the whole UK population is just below 2 – which means that on average each 

woman can be expected to have just less than two children who reach adulthood. We know of only one 

estimate of fertility rates of the UK Gypsy and Traveller community, in ‘Ethnic identity and inequalities in 

Tudalen 110



Opinion Research Services | Gypsy and Traveller Household Formation and Growth Rates | June 2020 

Page 6 

 

 

 
Britain: The dynamics of diversity’ by Dr Stephen Jivraj and Professor Ludi Simpson (published May 2015). 

The authors use the 2011 Census data to estimate the TFR for the Gypsy and Traveller community as 2.75. 

10. ORS used our own multiple survey data to investigate the fertility rates of Gypsy and Traveller women. The 

ORS data shows that on average Gypsy and Traveller women aged 32 years have 2.5 children (but, because 

the children of mothers above this age point tend to leave home progressively, full TFRs were not completed). 

On this basis it is reasonable to infer an average of 3 children per woman during her lifetime, which is broadly 

consistent with the estimate of 2.75 children per woman derived from the 2011 Census. 

Death Rates 

11. Although the above data imply an annual growth rate through births of about 2%, the death rate has also to 

be taken into account. Whereas the average life expectancy across the whole population of the UK is 

currently just over 80 years, a Sheffield University study found that Gypsy and Traveller life expectancy is 

about 10-12 years less than average (Parry et al (2004) ‘The Health Status of Gypsies and Travellers: Report 

of Department of Health Inequalities in Health Research Initiative’, University of Sheffield). 

12. Therefore, in our population growth modelling we used a conservative estimate of average life expectancy 

as 72 years – which is entirely consistent with the lower-than-average number of Gypsies and Travellers aged 

over 70 years in the 2011 Census (and also in ORS’s own survey data). 

Modelling Outputs 

13. If we assume a TFR of 3 and an average life expectancy of 72 years for Gypsies and Travellers, then the 

modelling, undertaken in PopGroup, projects the population to increase by 66% over the next 40 years – 

implying a population compound growth rate of 1.25% per annum. If we assume that Gypsy and Traveller life 

expectancy increases to 77 years by 2050, then the projected population growth rate rises to nearly 1.50% 

per annum. To generate an ‘upper range’ rate of population growth, we assumed an implausible TFR of 4 and 

an average life expectancy rising to 77 over the next 40 years – which then yields an ‘upper range’ growth 

rate of 1.90% per annum. 

Household Growth 

14. In addition to population growth influencing the number of households, the size of households also affects 

the number. Hence, population and household growth rates do not necessarily match directly, mainly due to 

the current tendency for people to live in smaller childless or single person households. 

15. Because the Gypsy and Traveller population is relatively young and has many single parent households, a 

1.25%-1.50% annual population growth could yield higher-than-average household growth rates, particularly 

if average household sizes fall or if younger-than-average households form. However, while there is evidence 

that Gypsy and Traveller households already form at an earlier age than in the general population, the scope 

for a more rapid rate of growth, through even earlier household formation, is limited. 

16. Based on the 2011 Census, the table below compares the age of household representatives in English 

households with those in Gypsy and Traveller households – showing that the latter has many more household 

representatives aged under-25 years. In the general English population 3.60% of household representatives 

are aged 16-24, compared with 8.70% in the Gypsy and Traveller population. ORS’s survey data shows that 

about 10% of Gypsy and Traveller households have household representatives aged under-25 years. 

Tudalen 111



Opinion Research Services | Gypsy and Traveller Household Formation and Growth Rates | June 2020 

Page 7 

 

 

 
Table 2 - Age of Head of Household (Source: UK Census of Population 2011) 

 

 
Age of household representative 

All househol ds in England 
Gypsy and Traveller 

households in England 

Number of 
households 

Percentage of 
households 

Number of 
households 

Percentage 
households 

Age 24 and under 790,974 3.6% 1,698 8.7% 

Age 25 to 34 3,158,258 14.3% 4,232 21.7% 

Age 35 to 49 6,563,651 29.7% 6,899 35.5% 

Age 50 to 64 5,828,761 26.4% 4,310 22.2% 

Age 65 to 74 2,764,474 12.5% 1,473 7.6% 

Age 75 to 84 2,097,807 9.5% 682 3.5% 

Age 85 and over 859,443 3.9% 164 0.8% 

Total 22,063,368 100% 19,458 100% 

 
17. The following table shows that the proportion of single person Gypsy and Traveller households is not dissimilar 

to the wider population of England; but there are more lone parents, fewer couples without children, and 

fewer households with non-dependent children amongst Gypsies and Travellers 

Table 3 - Household Type (Source: UK Census of Population 2011) 

 

 
Household Type 

All househol ds in England 
Gypsy and Traveller 

households in England 

Number of 
households 

Percentage of 
households 

Number of 
households 

Percentage 
households 

Single person 6,666,493 30.3% 5,741 29.5% 

Couple with no children 5,681,847 25.7% 2345 12.1% 

Couple with dependent children 4,266,670 19.3% 3683 18.9% 

Couple with non-dependent 

children 
 

1,342,841 
6.1% 

 
822 

4.2% 

Lone parent: Dependent children 1,573,255 7.1% 3,949 20.3% 

Lone parent: All children non- 

dependent 
766,569 3.5% 795 4.1% 

Other households 1,765,693 8.0% 2,123 10.9% 

Total 22,063,368 100% 19,458 100% 

Tudalen 112



Opinion Research Services | Gypsy and Traveller Household Formation and Growth Rates | June 2020 

Page 8 

 

 

 
18. The key point, though, is that since 20% of Gypsy and Traveller households are lone parents with dependent 

children, and up to 30% are single persons, there is limited potential for further reductions in average 

household size to increase current household formation rates significantly – and there is no reason to think 

that earlier household formations or increasing divorce rates will in the medium term affect household 

formation rates. While there are differences with the general population, a 1.25%-1.50% per annum Gypsy 

and Traveller population growth rate is likely to lead to a household growth rate of 1.25%-1.50% per annum 

 

Summary Conclusions 

19.  The best available evidence suggests that the net annual Gypsy and Traveller household growth rate is 1.50% 

per annum. Some local authorities might allow for a household growth rate of up to 2.50% per annum, to 

provide a ‘margin’ if their populations are relatively youthful; but in areas where on-site surveys indicate that 

there are fewer children in the Gypsy and Traveller population, lower estimates should be used. 

20. The outcomes of this Technical Note can be used to provide an estimate of local new household formation 

rates by adjusting the upper national growth rate of 1.50% based on local demographic characteristics. 

21.  In addition, in certain circumstances where the numbers of households and children are higher or lower than 

national data has identified, or the population age structure is skewed by certain age groups, it may not be 

appropriate to apply a percentage rate for new household formation. In these cases, a judgement should be 

made on likely new household formation based on the age and gender of the children identified in local 

household interviews. This should be based on the assumption that 50% of households likely to form will stay 

in any given area and that 50% will pair up and move to another area, while still considering the impact of 

dissolution. This is based on evidence from over 140 GTAAs that ORS have completed across England and 

Wales involving over 4,300 household interviews. 

Tudalen 113



Opinion Research Services | Gypsy and Traveller Household Formation and Growth Rates | June 2020 

Page 9 

 

 

 

Tudalen 114



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 115

Yn rhinwedd Paragraff(au) 13 Rhan 4, Atodlen 12A
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised
2023:
Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental and

cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 896

Brief description: The Council is required under the Housing Act (Wales) 2014 section 101, to

assess the accommodation needs of Gypsies, Roma and Travellers . The report provides an

assessment of need to meet this duty. The Council is required to update the GTAA every five years.

New assessments were originally required to be submitted to Welsh Government by Feb 2021 but

this was extended to Feb 2022 in the light of Covid restrictions which impact on the methodology

required to compete the assessment. Denbighshire's GTAA was submitted to Welsh Government in

December 2021. This assessment has now been reviewed and updated and the revised GTAA is

now in draft final form.

Date Completed: [TEXT HERE] Version: 0

Completed by: [TEXT HERE]

Responsible Service: Planning, Public Protection and Countryside Services

Localities affected by the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by the proposal? Members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community in

need of residential or transit accommodation. Residents of Denbighshire Elected Members.

Was this impact assessment completed as a group? Yes

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 1 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 119



Summary and Conclusion

Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider how

the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in a

manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability

of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

3 out of 4 stars

Actual score : 27 / 36.

Summary for each Sustainable Development principle

Long term

Project is limited to a needs assessment at this stage and only identifies need. It does not propose

mechanisms for meeting the identified need. Future stages will involve the consideration of physical

assets, climate change etc but at this stage the report only assesses existing and predicted future

growth.

Prevention

Through the identification of any housing needs for members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller

Community the Council can actively take steps to address any need. This project is limited to the

assessment of need. Any future actions to address the need will seek to ensure that the

accommodation needs of members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community are appropriately

met and seek to reduce the occurrence of unauthorised encampments which may be in ecologically

sensitive locations.

Integration

An up to date Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment is a required piece of evidence for

the progression of an LDP. Not having this assessment completed and approved by Council and

Welsh Government will prevent the replacement LDP from progressing to Deposit, Examination and

Adoption. This would leave the Council vulnerable to speculative development.

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 2 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 120



Collaboration

The assessment process has been progressed jointly with Conwy CBC to Welsh Government

Guidance to achieve benefits of collaboration. Denbighshire has received an individual needs

assessment report for the county area. The Council has a duty under the Housing Act (Wales) 2014

to carry out this work.

Involvement

The assessment is a factual price of work not subject to public consultation. There has been

consultation with members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community and with representative

organisations. Face to face interviews were offered as set out in WG Guidance. Criticism of previous

assessments included insufficient engagement with members of the GRT Community, additional

steps have been taken to increase involvement in this assessment. A Task and Finish Group has

overseen engagement with the GRT Community and that the study is compliant with the WG

methodology.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals Overall Impact

A prosperous Denbighshire Neutral

A resilient Denbighshire Positive

A healthier Denbighshire Positive

A more equal Denbighshire Positive

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Neutral

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language Positive

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 3 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 121



A globally responsible Denbighshire Positive

Well-being Goals Overall Impact

Main conclusions

The overall impact of carrying out and revising the Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment

(GTAA) is positive. The assessment is required by law and forms a key piece of evidence for the

replacement LDP. Gypsies and Travellers are a group often subject to discrimination and they have

protected characteristics recognised in law. The GTAA forms an assessment and identifies any

need for culturally appropriate accommodation for members of the Gypsy and Traveller community

currently residing within Denbighshire or travelling through the County. A project management

approach has been taken to progressing the study with regular briefings for elected members and

senior officers. A member led Task and Finish group was established to oversee the consultation

with members of the Gypsy and Traveller community to ensure that their views are understood and

taken into account. The GTAA establishes need for culturally appropriate accommodation but does

not make recommendations on site specific locations to address that need.

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 4 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 122



The likely impact on Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for impact

The project was limited to an assessment of the accommodation needs of members of the Gypsy,

Roma and Traveller community. The assessment identifies any accommodation needs but the

strategy for meeting any needs will form a separate piece of work. Having a clear picture of

accommodation needs will be beneficial as having stable and suitable accommodation provides a

secure base from which to learn, seek employment and access health care.

Further actions required

Awareness raising must be carefully managed to ensure that consistent messages are used across

Council services and in dealing with comments from the public. The Council should take a clear

stance on how it will respond to racist comments and take appropriate action. The benefits of having

a clear picture of accommodation needs needs to be communicated to all groups.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society

In conducting telephone, rather than face to face interviews there have been carbon savings.

Although all households were offered the opportunity to have a face to face interview, preference for

telephone interviews were given in all cases.

Quality communications, infrastructure and transport

Having a clear and agreed assessment of accommodation needs of members of the Gypsy, Roma

and Traveller Community for Denbighshire will enable the Council to plan effectively.

Economic development

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 5 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 123



Members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community may be at greater socio-economic

disadvantage when compared to the general population. having a clear and agreed assessment of

their needs may assist in reducing this inequality.

Quality skills for the long term

Conducting the assessment and progressing it through approval by the Council and Welsh

Government may provide opportunities for awareness raising and training both across the Council

and the wider public.

There has been considerable experience gained in the project management of a sensitive study

which must be delivered to a limited timescale.

Quality jobs for the long term

The assessment required project management support which has generated income for this service

that is reliant on fees.

Childcare

There are no anticipated impacts on childcare arising from the assessment.

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society

No known impacts identified.

Quality communications, infrastructure and transport

No known impacts identified.

Economic development

No known impacts identified.

Quality skills for the long term

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 6 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 124



The assessment interviews were carried out by consultants who are experienced in this type of work.

There were limited opportunities for shared learning around the technical side of the assessment but

there was learning around the management of a sensitive project.

Awareness raising can generate negative comments linked to stereotypes of people with protected

characteristics.

Quality jobs for the long term

No known impacts identified.

Childcare

There are no anticipated impacts on childcare arising from the assessment.

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

The GTAA is a report that identifies the accommodation needs of Gypsy, Roma and Traveller

Families in Denbighshire. The GTAA only identifies the quantum of any need, it does not propose

sites to address any identified need. The GTAA identifies need and indicates broadly where within

the County the need exists. The identification of any sites to meet this need will form a separate

piece of work. Completion of a GTAA is a requirement under the Housing Act (Wales) 2014. The

GTAA is also a required part of the evidence base for the replacement LDP and must be completed

and approved before the replacement LDP can be progressed to Examination and adoption. A new

LDP is required to provide an up to date development framework that contributes to a more resilient

Denbighshire.

Further actions required

The GTAA is a report that identifies the accommodation needs of Gypsy, Roma and Traveller

Families in Denbighshire. The GTAA only identifies the quantum of any need, it does not propose

sites to address any identified need. A project management approach is being used to try to ensure

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 7 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 125



that the progression and approval of the GTAA is completed in a timely fashion. Elected members

and senior officers have been regularly briefed and updated on the project prior to it starting and this

has continued throughout it's development.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the natural environment

The GTAA is a required part of the evidence base for the replacement LDP. Having an up to date

and approved GTAA will enable the replacement LDP to progress towards adoption. This will ensure

that development happens in a planned manner on sites where the impacts on biodiversity and the

natural environment are minimised. The replacement LDP will also contain up to date policies that

will seek to protect the natural environment.

Biodiversity in the built environment

The GTAA is a required part of the evidence base for the replacement LDP. Having an up to date

and approved GTAA will enable the replacement LDP to progress towards adoption. This will ensure

that development happens in a planned manner on sites where the impacts on the built environment

are minimised. The replacement LDP will also contain up to date policies that will seek to protect the

built environment.

Reducing waste, reusing and recycling

The GTAA is a required part of the evidence base for the replacement LDP. Having an up to date

and approved GTAA will enable the replacement LDP to progress towards adoption. The

replacement LDP will contain up to date policies that will seek to reduce and manage waste.

Reduced energy/fuel consumption

The GTAA is a required part of the evidence base for the replacement LDP. Having an up to date

and approved GTAA will enable the replacement LDP to progress towards adoption. The

replacement LDP will contain up to date policies that will seek to reduce energy consumption through

increased use of renewable technologies, requirements for the installation of renewable technology

in new developments and the drive towards being a net zero carbon Council.

People’s awareness of the environment and biodiversity

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 8 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 126



No known impacts identified.

Flood risk management

The GTAA is a required part of the evidence base for the replacement LDP. Having an up to date

and approved GTAA will enable the replacement LDP to progress towards adoption. The

replacement LDP will reflect the latest flood risk policies and mapping to ensure that any

developments are not subject to flood risk and that the impacts of climate change are fully

considered.

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the natural environment

Any delay in approving the GTAA will impact on the progress of the replacement LDP as it is a

required part of the evidence base. Denbighshire may be subject to speculative development on non

allocated sites due to not having an up to date LDP and an identified land supply for housing,

employment, retail etc.

Biodiversity in the built environment

Any delay in approving the GTAA will impact on the progress of the replacement LDP as it is a

required part of the evidence base. Denbighshire may be subject to speculative development on non

allocated sites due to not having an up to date LDP and an identified land supply for housing,

employment, retail etc.

Reducing waste, reusing and recycling

Any delay in approving the GTAA will impact on the progress of the replacement LDP as it is a

required part of the evidence base. If there is no up to date LDP then the Council will be reliant on old

policies that do not fully reflect the aspiration for carbon reduction and addressing the environmental

emergency declared.

Reduced energy/fuel consumption

No known impacts identified.

People’s awareness of the environment and biodiversity

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 9 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 127



No known impacts identified.

Flood risk management

Any delay in approving the GTAA will impact on the progress of the replacement LDP as it is a

required part of the evidence base. If there is no up to date LDP then the Council will be reliant on old

policies that do not fully reflect the latest position regarding flood risk policy and mapping.

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

Members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community have protected characteristics and need

culturally appropriate accommodation to support their emotional and mental well-being. Completing

a GTAA identifies families in need. Establishing contact with Gypsy, Roma and Traveller families

may enable other support services to build improved relationships and improve the health outcomes

for members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community.

Further actions required

Throughout the GTAA process the scope of the assessment has been made clear in that it relates to

an assessment of need and that the study will not make any recommendations on sites. This can help

to manage the expectations of members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community.

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical environment that encourage and support health and well-being

The identification of Gypsy, Roma and Traveller families in need of culturally appropriate

accommodation in Denbighshire may assist other services in better engaging with families to

support their health and well-being. As a highly marginalised group in society with protected

characteristics, improved engagement may enable services to be better delivered through improved

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 10 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 128



communication and the building of relationships.

Access to good quality, healthy food

No known impacts identified

People’s emotional and mental well-being

The GTAA is restricted to the identification of housing need for Gypsy, Roma and Traveller families.

In carrying out the assessment the Council is acknowledging that people with protected

characteristics may have different accommodation needs that are culturally appropriate to them. The

acknowledgement of this need may improve the well-being of Gypsy, Roma and Traveller families if

they feel that their needs are better understood.

Access to healthcare

The identification of Gypsy, Roma and Traveller families in need of culturally appropriate

accommodation in Denbighshire may assist other services in better engaging with families to

support their health and well-being. As a highly marginalised group in society with protected

characteristics, improved engagement may enable services to be better delivered through improved

communication and the building of relationships.

Participation in leisure opportunities

No known impacts identified

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical environment that encourage and support health and well-being

No known impacts identified.

Access to good quality, healthy food

No known impacts identified

People’s emotional and mental well-being

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 11 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 129



Approving the GTAA will raise the profile of the issue and may increase concern amongst both the

settled and Gypsy, Roma and Traveller communities about future stages.

Access to healthcare

No known impacts identified.

Participation in leisure opportunities

No known impacts identified

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

Members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community have protected characteristics under the

Equalities Act and frequently suffer from discrimination. Completing and approving the GTAA which

will identify any accommodation needs is a step towards reducing the inequality in housing

opportunity suffered by members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community. Improved health and

education outcomes might also be a positive impact in the longer term.

Further actions required

Regular briefings for elected members to pass on to their communities to dispel common

misconceptions and reduce discrimination should it arise. Emphasise that the GTAA does not make

recommendations on sites to meet the need identified. The Council can ensure that the project aligns

with its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equalities Act (2010).

Positive impacts identified:

Improving the well-being of people with protected characteristics. The nine protected
characteristics are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage or civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 12 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 130



Members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community have protected characteristics under the

Equalities Act. Completing and approving the GTAA which will identify any accommodation needs is

a step towards reducing the inequality in housing opportunity suffered by members of the Gypsy,

Roma and Traveller Community.

People who suffer discrimination or disadvantage

Members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community have protected characteristics under the

Equalities Act and frequently suffer from discrimination. Completing and approving the GTAA which

will identify any accommodation needs is a step towards reducing the inequality in housing

opportunity suffered by members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community.

People affected by socio-economic disadvantage and unequal outcomes

Members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community have protected characteristics under the

Equalities Act and frequently suffer from discrimination and socio-economic disadvantage.

Completing and approving the GTAA which will identify any accommodation needs is a step towards

reducing the inequality in housing opportunity suffered by members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller

community.

Areas affected by socio-economic disadvantage

The GTAA identifies families in need of culturally appropriate accommodation. The GTAA does not

make any recommendations as to sites but the Council will have information on the location of

families in any need. This can be mapped against areas of known socio-economic disadvantage.

Negative impacts identified:

Improving the well-being of people with protected characteristics. The nine protected
characteristics are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage or civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation

Carrying out the GTAA may raise the profile of members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller

community currently resident in Denbighshire which may increase their vulnerability as a group with

protected characteristics.

People who suffer discrimination or disadvantage

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 13 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 131



Approving the GTAA may raise the profile of members of the Gypsy and Traveller community

currently resident in Denbighshire which may increase their vulnerability as a group with protected

characteristics.

People affected by socio-economic disadvantage and unequal outcomes

Approving the GTAA may raise the profile of members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community

currently resident in Denbighshire which may increase their vulnerability as a group with protected

characteristics who are also subject to socio-economic disadvantage..

Areas affected by socio-economic disadvantage

No known impacts identified.

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact

Neutral

Justification for impact

The impact is considered to be neutral as there are positive impacts in terms of increased

consultation with a group with protected characteristics but that raising the profile of members of the

Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community may lead to division. Lack of consultation with the Gypsy,

Roma and Traveller Community was highlighted by Scrutiny Committee as a weakness in the current

GTAA. This has been addressed via a Task & Finish group of elected members who have overseen

and approved all of the engagement for the assessment.

Further actions required

Individual families have been interviewed as part of the preparation and consultation of the

assessment. Their identities and address details will not be disclosed although general geographical

area(s) of need are highlighted in the report . A Task and finish group was established to ensure that

the consultation and engagement was robust. A detailed communication and engagement strategy

was developed to ensure there was early engagement with key stakeholders to raise awareness of

the project. Officers will continue to support understanding through reviewing good practice and

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 14 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 132



lessons learnt from across the UK.

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities and individuals

Members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community currently living in culturally inappropriate

accommodation may be subject to discrimination

Community participation and resilience

The Welsh Government methodology for preparing the GTAA which must be followed includes a

requirement for face to face interviews with members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community.

This ensures that members of the community who may not normally be reached by consultations have

an opportunity to input into the assessment which directly concerns them. All households identified

through extensive engagement expressed a preference for a telephone interview where they agreed

to participate in the assessment.

The attractiveness of the area

The GTAA itself only assesses housing need and has no impact on the physical environment at this

stage. The GTAA is a required part of the evidence base for the LDP and without it, the LDP cannot

progress. The replacement LDP will contain policies for environmental protection and enhancement,

and safeguard green space.

Connected communities

No known impacts identified

Rural resilience

No known impacts identified

Negative impacts identified:

Safe communities and individuals

Approving the revised GTAA may raise awareness within wider communities that members of the

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 15 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 133



Gypsy and Traveller community are resident within an area. This may lead to an increase in

discrimination and the perception that a particular group in society are receiving more assistance

than others.

Community participation and resilience

This Needs Assessment is targeting a traditionally hard to reach group which even with additional

efforts taken to engage may not wish to participate in this process.

The attractiveness of the area

The GTAA itself only assesses housing need and will have no impact on the physical environment at

this stage. The GTAA is a required part of the evidence base for the LDP and without it, the LDP

cannot progress. With no replacement LDP there will be no up to date policies for environmental

protection and enhancement, and the safeguarding of green space.

Connected communities

No known impacts identified

Rural resilience

No known impacts identified

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

The GTAA assesses the need for culturally appropriate accommodation of members of the Gypsy,

Roma and Traveller community. This is a vital aspect of Gypsy, Roma and Traveller culture and the

assessment will inform the Council of the needs of the community in order to sustain their heritage

and culture. The GTAA is also a required piece of evidence for the replacement LDP. Having an up

to date LDP will ensure that the latest policies to protect and enhance the Welsh language and our

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 16 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 134



cultural heritage will be in force.

Further actions required

A project management approach was taken to the GTAA to ensure that it was completed in a timely

fashion. There are regular briefings for elected Members and senior officers to ensure that there is

clarity over the requirement to produce a GTAA; the methodology that must be followed and the

reporting and approval process. The need to have the GTAA in place in order to progress the LDP is

also being clearly communicated.

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Some members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community will be Welsh speakers. The GTAA is

a required part of the evidence base for the replacement LDP and must be completed and approved

before the replacement LDP can be progressed to Examination and adoption. Having an up to date

LDP will ensure that appropriate policies for the protection and enhancement of the Welsh language

are included in the plan.

Promoting the Welsh language

Some members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community will be Welsh speakers. The GTAA is

a required part of the evidence base for the replacement LDP and must be completed and approved

before the replacement LDP can be progressed to Examination and adoption. Having an up to date

LDP will ensure that appropriate policies for the protection and enhancement of the Welsh language

are included in the plan.

Culture and heritage

Some members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community have protected characteristics linked

to their cultural identity. The GTAA will assess the needs of members of this community in terms of

culturally appropriate accommodation.

Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 17 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 135



Any delay to the completion and approval of the GTAA will impact on the LDP preparation. The

replacement LDP cannot be approved without an up to date GTAA. If the replacement LDP is not

progressed then the policies used to determine planning proposals will be increasingly out of date

and opportunities may be lost to encourage the use of the Welsh language.

Promoting the Welsh language

Any delay to the completion and approval of the GTAA will impact on the LDP preparation. The

replacement LDP cannot be approved without an up to date GTAA. If the replacement LDP is not

progressed then the policies used to determine planning proposals will be increasingly out of date

and opportunities may be lost to promote the use of the Welsh language.

Culture and heritage

No known impacts identified

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact

Positive

Justification for impact

A jointly commissioned study has reduced costs and the need to travel to conduct interviews.

Improved communication and links between members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community

and service providers may lead to improved outcomes in terms of health and education.

Further actions required

No known negative impacts have been identified at this stage.

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national, international supply chains

The study has been jointly commissioned with Conwy CBC to reduce the impact of travel for

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 18 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 136



interviews and consultations. Each authority has received its own detailed report and evidence of

need.

Human rights

Members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community have protected characteristics under the

Equalities Act. The GTAA is a requirement under the Housing Act (Wales) 2014 to make an

assessment of the need for culturally appropriate accommodation for members of the Gypsy, Roma

and Traveller community in Denbighshire.

Broader service provision in the local area or the region

The GTAA requires interviews and consultation with members of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller

community. Establishing links with families currently resident in the County or passing through may

assist other services concerned with health, education etc to build relationships with the families to

better deliver services and improve outcomes across a range of partner organisations.

Reducing climate change

No known impacts identified

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national, international supply chains

No known impacts identified

Human rights

No known impacts identified

Broader service provision in the local area or the region

No known impacts identified

Reducing climate change

No known impacts identified

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 19 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 137



Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023

Page 20 of 20 Printed on 03/10/2023Tudalen 138



 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau 

Dyddiad y cyfarfod 19 Hydref 2023 

Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol   Y Cyng. Barry Mellor (Aelod Arweiniol Priffyrdd a’r 

Amgylchedd) / Tony Ward (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol yr 

Amgylchedd a’r Economi) 

Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Paul Jackson 

Awdur yr adroddiad Simon Lammond, Rheolwr Gwastraff ac Ailgylchu / Lowri 

Roberts, Rheolwr Prosiect 

Teitl Y Wybodaeth Ddiweddaraf am Brosiect Ailfodelu’r 

Gwasanaeth Gwastraff 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1. Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn rhoi diweddariad i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau ynghylch y 

newid arfaethedig i wasanaethau casglu gwastraff yn Sir Ddinbych.  

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1. Mae'r adroddiad i roi gwybod i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau am gynnydd presennol 

y prosiect ac i amlygu'r risg o ran cymeradwyo'r drwydded weithredol sydd ei 

hangen ar gyfer Gorsaf Trosglwyddo Gwastraff newydd Dinbych yn amserol.  

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

3.1. Bod Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau yn trafod cynnwys yr adroddiad ac yn rhoi 

sylwadau ar yr elfennau hyn. 

3.2. Bod y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau yn cadarnhau ei fod wedi darllen, deall ac 

ystyried yr Asesiad o Effaith ar Les diweddar (Atodiad 1) fel rhan o’i ystyriaethau.  

Tudalen 139

Eitem Agenda 7



 
 

4. Manylion yr adroddiad 

4.1. Ym mis Rhagfyr 2018 cytunodd y Cabinet y byddai model casglu gwastraff Sir 

Ddinbych yn newid o fodel ailgylchu cymysg i system didoli ymyl y ffordd newydd. 

Mae hyn yn cynnwys newidiadau eraill i wasanaethau megis cyflwyno gwasanaeth 

Cynhyrchion Hylendid Amsugnol newydd a newid casgliadau na ellir eu hailgylchu i 

4 wythnos. 

4.2. Mae angen sawl elfen i gefnogi'r newid i'r gwasanaeth, a'r buddsoddiad allweddol 

yw Gorsaf Trosglwyddo Gwastraff (GTG) newydd addas i'r diben yn Ninbych. Bydd 

yr orsaf newydd yn cael ei chwblhau ym mis Rhagfyr 2023. Er mwyn i'r orsaf 

newydd ddod yn weithredol, rhaid i Gyfoeth Naturiol Cymru gymeradwyo trwydded. 

Mae hyn er mwyn sicrhau bod yr orsaf newydd yn bodloni'r holl ofynion rheoleiddiol 

a nodir gan CNC. 

4.3. Ym mis Ionawr 2023 cyflwynodd Sir Ddinbych y cais am drwydded ar gyfer yr orsaf 

trosglwyddo gwastraff newydd yn Ninbych. Bu oedi sylweddol gan CNC wrth 

‘wneud y cais yn briodol’ oherwydd swm sylweddol o waith. Ym mis Gorffennaf 

2023 hysbyswyd CSDd bod swyddog wedi'i ddyrannu i'r cais. Cafodd y cais ei 

‘wneud yn briodol’ ar 04/09/2023.  

4.4. Yn dilyn y statws wedi’i wneud yn briodol, cynhelir cyfnod o asesiad technegol. 

Bydd CNC yn cyhoeddi Hysbysiad Atodlen 5 os oes angen unrhyw wybodaeth 

bellach arnynt. Bydd CNC yn anelu at gwblhau’r broses o fewn cyfnod o 4 mis, ond 

mae’r 4 mis hwn yn ymwneud ag amser CNC yn unig. Pan wneir ceisiadau am 

wybodaeth i CSDd bydd y cloc yn stopio, gall hyn ymestyn yr amserlen 4 mis yn 

sylweddol yn dibynnu ar natur y wybodaeth y gofynnir amdani.   

4.5. Mae'n ofynnol i'r gwasanaeth gwastraff gynnal ymarfer recriwtio sylweddol er mwyn 

sicrhau bod gan y gwasanaeth yr adnoddau llawn i gyflawni gweithrediad y 

gwasanaeth. Yn dilyn trafodaeth gyda CNC ym mis Medi, ac adolygiad o’r 

gweithgareddau cynllunio allweddol ar gyfer cyflwyno’r gwasanaeth newydd, rydym 

yn cynllunio i’r gwasanaeth newydd gael ei roi ar waith o fis Mehefin 2024.  

Cyflwyno’r Gwasanaeth Cynnyrch Hylendid Amsugnol  

4.6. Mae'r gwasanaeth Cynnyrch Hylendid Amsugnol newydd wedi mynd yn fyw ar 25 

Medi. Mae hwn ar hyn o bryd yn wasanaeth peilot ar gyfer ardaloedd cod post 

Tudalen 140



 
 

LL16 / LL17. Mae’r ardal hon yn cynnwys Llanelwy, Dinbych, Bodfari, Llandyrnog, 

Llanrhaeadr, Henllan, Nantglyn, y Grîn, Trefnant, Allt Goch, Rhuallt a 

Thremeirchion.  

4.7. Mae tua 600 o aelwydydd wedi cofrestru ar gyfer y gwasanaeth hwn, roedd y nifer 

hwn o fewn yr ystod ddisgwyliedig oherwydd cyfansoddiad demograffig y ddwy 

ardal. Mae 8,890 o aelwydydd o fewn y ddwy ardal beilot, yn seiliedig ar ganran 

gofrestru gyfartalog o tua 8%, y disgwyl oedd y byddai tua 711 o aelwydydd yn 

gymwys. Mae'n bwysig nodi bod cyfraddau cofrestru ledled Cymru yn amrywio'n 

sylweddol, yn ôl pob tebyg oherwydd demograffeg. 

4.8. Bydd swyddogion gorfodi yn gwasanaethu’r ardal hon fel rhan o’r prosiect peilot i 

gynghori trigolion ac i fonitro’r gostyngiad yn y cynnyrch hylendid amsugnol yn y 

ffrwd gwastraff gweddilliol.  Mae’r dull hwn yn caniatáu gwell monitro a rheolaeth o’r 

peilot gan fod yr ardal a dargedir yn fwy effeithlon yn weithredol ac yn darparu 

cysylltiadau trafnidiaeth hygyrch i Barc Adfer a fydd yn prosesu’r gwastraff nes i’r 

gwasanaeth newydd gael ei lansio.  

Aelwydydd Gwasanaethau Ansafonol  

4.9. Mae'r gwasanaeth Gwastraff yn darparu gwasanaeth safonol ar draws y sir, ond nid 

yw pob eiddo yn addas ar gyfer y gwasanaeth safonol oherwydd problemau storio, 

er enghraifft aelwydydd cymunol. Mae'r gwasanaeth yn darparu gwasanaeth 

ansafonol ar gyfer yr aelwydydd hyn, sy'n wasanaeth sach yn bennaf. Ar draws Sir 

Ddinbych ar hyn o bryd mae 5,203 o eiddo ansafonol. 

4.10. Mae'r gwasanaeth wedi cynnal arolwg o'r aelwydydd ansafonol hyn cyn rhoi'r 

gwasanaeth newydd ar waith. Bydd angen atebion newydd ar gyfer rhai cartrefi gan 

y bydd angen casglu ailgylchu sych wrth wahanu yn y ffynhonnell. Mae’r 5,203 o 

eiddo ansafonol wedi’u dyrannu i gategorïau, sef: 

 Gwyrdd (3,398 eiddo) 

 Oren (915 eiddo) 

 Coch (890 eiddo) 

4.11. Yn dilyn yr arolwg, penderfynwyd y bydd yr aelwydydd ‘gwyrdd’ yn gallu cael 

trolibocs (y gwasanaeth safonol) yn eu heiddo. Dyma'r mwyafrif o aelwydydd 

Tudalen 141



 
 

ansafonol ar hyn o bryd. Bydd angen 'plymio'n ddwfn' ymhellach ar gyfer eiddo 

Oren a disgwylir y gallai rhai o'r rhain fod â trolibocs, byddai gan y gweddill ateb 

cymunol megis cynwysyddion 240 litr wedi'u gwahanu yn y ffynhonnell yn lle'r 

biniau 1,100 litr cymysg, a byddai gan rai eiddo wasanaeth sach. Byddai angen 

gwasanaeth sachau ar bob eiddo coch o hyd.  

5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Themâu 
Corfforaethol? 

5.1. Mae gweithredu’r gwasanaeth gwastraff newydd yn gysylltiedig â’r flaenoriaeth 

gorfforaethol ‘Sir Ddinbych Mwy Gwyrdd’. Mae hyn yn ymwneud yn uniongyrchol â’r 

thema i wella cyfraddau ailgylchu a lleihau gwastraff drwy gyflwyno’r system 

ailgylchu ymyl y ffordd newydd o 2024. Bydd hyn yn sail i ymrwymiad Sir Ddinbych i 

ddod yn sefydliad Di-Garbon Net erbyn 2030. 

6. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar 
wasanaethau eraill? 

6.1. Cwmpesir costau gweithredu’r newidiadau newydd i’r gwasanaeth o ddyraniadau’r 

gyllideb ar gyfer paratoi a chynwysyddion o fewn cyllideb gyffredinol y prosiect.   

6.2. Bydd gweithredu’n gwasanaeth newydd yn effeithio ar amryw o wasanaethau’r 

cyngor, gan gynnwys Gwasanaethau i Gwsmeriaid a’r Tîm Cyfathrebu, ac mae 

cynrychiolwyr o’r meysydd gwasanaeth hyn wedi eu cynnwys yn y timau prosiect 

perthnasol ar gyfer ffrydiau gwaith paratoi.  

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les? 

7.1. Mae canlyniad terfynol yr Asesiad o Effaith ar Les yn gadarnhaol – gweler Atodiad 1 

i gael rhagor o fanylion.   

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau sydd wedi’u cynnal gyda Chraffu ac 
eraill? 

8.1. Cafodd yr egwyddor o weithredu model gwastraff newydd, sy’n dilyn glasbrint 

Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer gwasanaethau gwastraff, ei gymeradwyo’n wreiddiol 

gan y Grŵp Buddsoddi Strategol a’r Cabinet ym mis Rhagfyr 2018.  Cyflwynwyd 

Achos Busnes wedi ei ddiweddaru hefyd i’r Cabinet ym mis Ebrill 2022, a’i 

gymeradwyo.  

Tudalen 142



 
 

8.2. Ym mis Rhagfyr 2021 darparwyd y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor Craffu 

Cymunedau, ac yr oedd yr adroddiad hwn hefyd yn cynnwys Polisi Casgliadau 

Gwastraff wedi ei ddiweddaru.   

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 

9.1. Er nad oes unrhyw oblygiadau ariannol uniongyrchol yn deillio o’r adroddiad hwn, 

mae’r achos busnes dros fuddsoddiad cyfalaf mawr ym maes gwastraff dros y 

blynyddoedd diwethaf wedi ei seilio ar oblygiadau’r model a ddisgrifir yn yr 

adroddiad hwn o ran refeniw.  

10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud 
i’w lleihau? 

10.1. Y mae tair risg allweddol yn ymwneud â gweithredu’r model gwasanaeth newydd 

erbyn mis Mawrth 2024. Y rhain yw: 

 Cymeradwyo Trwydded: Mae gweithrediadau yn yr orsaf newydd yn amodol 

ar gymeradwyo trwydded bwrpasol, a gyflwynwyd ym mis Ionawr 2023 i 

Gyfoeth Naturiol Cymru. Mae’n rhaid cymeradwyo’r drwydded hon cyn gallu 

newid y gwasanaeth. Gall y broses hon gymryd tua 12 mis, ond yr ydym yn 

ymgysylltu â Chyfoeth Naturiol Cymru ar lefel weithredol a strategol ynglŷn â’r 

mater hwn. 

 Parodrwydd yr Orsaf Trosglwyddo Gwastraff: Mae’r orsaf i fod i gael ei 

chwblhau ym mis Rhagfyr 2023. Mae hyn ar y trywydd iawn ar hyn o bryd, a 

ddylai ganiatáu i'r orsaf fod yn barod ar gyfer cydosod a dosbarthu 

cynwysyddion yn barod i'w cyflwyno i breswylwyr. Mae'r cynnydd at gwblhau'r 

orsaf yn cael ei reoli a'i fonitro gan y Tîm Prosiect a'r Bwrdd. 

 Argaeledd Staff: Er bod cynlluniau ar waith i recriwtio'r staff sydd eu hangen i 

redeg y gwasanaeth newydd, mae risg na chaiff y cwota llawn o swyddi ei 

lenwi. Mae'r gwasanaeth yn gweithio'n agos gydag AD i gynllunio'r ymarfer 

recriwtio mwyaf priodol ar gyfer y mathau hyn o rolau a bydd hefyd yn gweithio 

gyda Sir Ddinbych yn Gweithio ar recriwtio staff a lleoliadau gwaith.  

11. Pŵer i wneud y penderfyniad 

11.1. Adran 21 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 

Tudalen 143



 
 

11.2. Adran 7 Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor  

Tudalen 144



OPTION 5 (Preferred) -
Weekly Kerbside Sort
(including food waste), 4-
weekly residual, AHP service
Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 407

Brief description:

This assessment is required as the Council needs to fundamentally
change the way we collect household waste to further improve recycling
in the County as part of strategy to meet Welsh Government 70%
recycling target by 2024/25 and to address on-going budget pressure
expected to rise to £900,000 by 2019/20 due to the current cost of
sending our mixed blue bin recycling for further separation at a Materials
recovery Facility. In Option 5 (preferred) the comingled blue recycling
240l bin would be replaced with a TrolliBocs System, where residents
present sorted waste into separate stackable containers. The Trollibocs
and the existing food waste caddy would be collected weekly on the
same vehicle, resulting in resource revenue savings from the provision
of higher quality, pre-sorted recycling. . Residual waste would be
collected every 4 weeks in a 240l black bin (as opposed to fortnightly in
a 140/180l bin) which is projected to reduce the amount of waste that
could have been recycled going in the black bin (currently 51% of items
in the black bin could have been recycled on our other kerbside
services). An optional human hygiene waste service would be offered to
remove "smelly waste" from the residual bin where required. New
recycling waste streams would be targeted, including batteries, small
electrical, electronic equipment (WEEE) and textiles and collected on the
same day as the recycling, but every fortnight. Currently residents put
paper, card, wax cartons, plastic containers/bottles, can and glass
bottles/jars altogether in a 240litre blue bin which is collected
fortnightly.

Date Completed: 19/10/2018 08:29:46 Version: 4Page 43Tudalen 145



Completed by: Tara Dumas

Responsible Service: Highways & Environmental Services

Localities affected by
the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by
the proposal?

All Residents / Households in Denbighshire; Operational Waste Team as
new model rolled out

Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

Yes

Page 44Tudalen 146



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

 ( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 27 / 30.

Implications of the score

Implementing the preferred option will align DCC to the Welsh Government waste collection
blueprint, meaning that we are operating to a consistent approach to other Welsh LA's in order to
maximise the quantity and quality of recyclable household waste we collect. The preferred option
seeks to restrict residual capacity further than the blueprint by The Welsh Government have carried
out relevant sustainability and economic appraisals on their blue print (Independently reviewed in
March 2016 by Eunomia) to determine it to be the most economically and environmentally practical
approach to managing household waste.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive

A resilient Denbighshire Positive

A healthier Denbighshire Neutral

A more equal Denbighshire Neutral

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Neutral

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language Neutral

A globally responsible Denbighshire Positive

Main conclusions

Overall the proposed project to Remodel the Waste Service Collection should have positive impacts
in terms of a prosperous and resilient and a globally responsible Denbighshire as the new service will
increase recycling performance by at least 3%. The higher quality recyclable stream will support the
adoption of EU Circular Economy measures and the Welsh Economic Action Plan. The model is also
the most cost efficient of all options considered, bringing in a new income stream that protects other
council services from further resource reductions. There is a neutral impact on equality due to the
introduction of a new service to deal with hygiene waste sometimes produced by young families and
the elderly. We have reviewed (currently in draft) our waste policies to ensure exemptions can be
awarded to households that struggle to participate fully in the recycling service for genuine physical
or metal health reasons. There are no health implications for the new service. Residual waste will be
collected less frequently but smelly waste such as nappies and food waste will be collected weekly.
There is a neutral impact on vibrant culture and welsh language as all communications will be
available in Welsh and English. There will be a significant focus on community engagement
throughout and post implementation, encouraging intergenerational learning (young people as
ambassadors) and motivational communications material. There is a neutral impact on cohesivePage 45Tudalen 147



communities as the new waste model supports and strengthens a social enterprise operating model
for the collection and re-use of textiles, and the service changes are supported through a new (draft)
household waste collection policy, to support the regulation of the new operating model.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

 We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

 We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

 We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 46Tudalen 148



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

The new waste service will secure the long term future of the service and
associated jobs and importantly contribute to increasing recycling rates in
the County which will minimise residual waste generated by the County's
residents. There is an overall reduction in the Council's carbon footprint
through enhanced capture of recycling, especially food waste. Materials
recycled are of higher quality which will help stimulate growth in the
manufacturing industry within the UK.

Further actions
required

Maximising the positive impacts from higher recycling rates will be
dependant on undertaking a comprehensive communication campaign and
ongoing education strategy that provides both instructional and
motivational information to encourage people to take the extra effort to
recycle more and separate their household waste items into various
containers. A YouGov Survey stated that 70% of people want to know
what happens to their rubbish and 32% would be more likely to separate
their materials if they knew what happened to them. the Viridor Recycling
Index 2017 (consumer survey) showed that only a quarter of people
believed their waste was properly recycled and showed a clear need for
better education, with seven in ten (69%) people feeling frustrated about
not having enough education materials on recycling. There is an
opportunity to re-engage with Denbighshire citizens to provide the
information that will inform and influence pro-environmental behaviours.
Consideration to reducing manual handling concerns will be given when
specifying the new kerbside recycling vehicles, including consultation with
Unions and the workforce. W and R team to investigate introduction of a
"ready for work" programme to train up new operatives (workforce
succession planning) and career pathways opportunities for existing
employees to upskill.

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Application of the waste hierarchy, enhanced opportunity for closed loop
recycling, greater quantities of waste recycled, less vehicle passes to each
households over a 4 week period, vehicle haulage movements as
recycling is bailed locally - so overall greater environmental benefits.
Increased in recycling performance of 3.1% projected. There is a wide
evidence base to show that Kerbside Sort yields a lower carbon footprint
than co-mingled collections. The carbon impacts of different methods of
collection and post collection sorting were shown by the ADAS report for
London Borough of Camden which stated that: “The carbon footprint of the
whole process for the co-mingled collection, transfer and MRF is 77%
greater than for the kerbside sorted recyclate collection system.” 
High quality materials are more likely to be used in closed loop recycling
where glass bottles and jars are recycled into similar products, paper into
paper and so on. The carbon benefits of the closed loop recycling of glass
were demonstrated in a 2006 paper "The impact of the carbon agenda on
the waste management business", Grant Thornton, Oakdene Hollins.
The reduced carbon impact of kerbside sort vehicles compared to large
Refuse Collection Vehicles currently used to collect recycling in DCC are
considerably lower, as supported by the following paper "Kerbside
Recycling in Wales: Environmental Costs, Waste and Resources action
Programme (WRAP), March 2009.Page 47Tudalen 149



Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

All new waste collection rounds will undertake route optimisation analysis
to reduce unnecessary mileage and optimise efficiency, as well as round
risk assessments to avoid traffic congestion where practical. The changes
will be supported by a communications plan, to include face to face public
engagement, a schools education package, and revised instructional
material. Option 5 will result in significant capital investment in local
authority depots (North Wales) and new waste containers. There may be
an opportunity to combine the provision of salt barns with the depot
bulking facilities at one of the sites, improving the way we manage winter
maintenance resources.

Economic
development

Collected recycling will be of adequate quality to be reprocessed in the UK
(as opposed to being shipped oversees), encouraging home grown
manufacturing industries to develop/expand. Collecting high quality
recycling through source segregation is a priority for Welsh Government
as they recognise the opportunities the EU "Circular Economy" package
brings to helping Wales grow its own economy, and in a more sustainable
way (www.gov.wales news article "Wales leading the way towards
becoming a circular economy" 28th June 2018. Positive impacts of the
circular economy on economic growth are also recognised in the Welsh
Government's Economic Action Plan.
The paper by the Resources Association "Putting quality recycling at the
heart of a circular economy" August 2015 concludes that mandatory
source separation of recyclables, including biowaste, would reduce
recycling contamination and create new economic opportunity. By
example, an article by Simon Weston (LetsRecycle.com 17th July 2017)
director of raw materials (Confederation of Paper Industries) states
"Recent work conducted by the Confederation of Paper Industries (CPI)
estimates that an increase of one percentage point in contamination would
increase costs by about £8 million per annum across the entire UK mill
system. For a large paper reprocessor this could equate to as much as
£1.25 million per percentage point increase for each 100,000 tonnes of
raw material procured. These sorts of additional costs undermine the
viability of domestic re-processors when compared with foreign
competitors using other material streams, and could lead to plant closures
and job losses."
Kerbside Sort systems yield very low contamination rates (1% Friends of
the Earth, compared to Commingled recycling schemes that rarely
achieve contamination rates below 5% and often in excess of 10%. 
Hygiene waste will be collected separately in the Option. It is possible that
this waste stream can be recycled and future discussions with Welsh
Government are anticipated over the opportunity for this waste to be re-
processed in Denbighshire. This would created further jobs through the
construction and operation of a new facility.

Quality skills for the
long term

Waste operatives will require enhanced manual handling training. In
addition, the service will be modernised to closely monitor recycling habits
of individuals through enhanced data capture of weight based information.
Team members will be trained to use route optimisation software. DCC's
waste technical team will be trained to collate and report on a wider range
of performance data. The team will be required to deliver behaviour
change messages to a wide range of audiences, including to school groups
and private/social landlords. Increased procurement skills and experience
will also be required. The service change would be supported through the
adoption of an environmental enforcement policy which the team will be
required to adopt. Whilst the existing enforcement team have all existing
knowledge and skills, wider adoption by the rest of the team will be
required.

Page 48Tudalen 150



Quality jobs for the
long term

All waste operatives will be required to become "recycling ambassadors"
as their acceptance/rejection of presented material will be fundamental to
providing weekly feedback to the residents about what can and can not be
collected on the kerbside sort scheme. Expected that Waste team jobs will
be secured, may be need for additional Waste Team members depending
on future operational model - to be confirmed as part of further
development of Business Case. The baseline is unaffordable and jobs
across other council service are at risk should we not change the way we
deliver our services.
This option will secure at least 9 full time jobs in a local Social Enterprise,
and support at least 18 people with learning disabilities, through the
collection, sorting , cleaning and resale of textiles.

Childcare There are no known increased benefits arising from changing from the
baseline to Option 5. Working hours are not modelled to change.

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society

approx. 35,000 Blue recycling bins and 30,000 grey residual bins will
become redundant but recovered bins will be collected and sent for
recycling. Recovered plastic is often recycled into new waste containers.
procurement of new containers will specify some recycled content (whilst
maintaining strength / life expectancy of the container).

Option 4 and 5 include the option to direct deliver recycling from the North
of the County to a Conwy facility (additional 6-8 miles round
trip)increasing the distance travelled by affected vehicles. This is yet to be
decided.

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Option 4 and 5 include the option to direct deliver recycling from the North
of the County to a Conwy facility (additional 6-8 miles round
trip)increasing the distance travelled by affected vehicles.

Economic
development

None - the current receiver of comingled recycling would prefer source
segregated material, due to higher quality of paper.

Quality skills for the
long term

It is envisaged that the increased manual handling requirements on the
kerbside sort option will lead to a number of operatives seeking
redeployment or retirement. This will produce a knowledge gap in the
service for which we must prepare over the next 2 years.

Quality jobs for the
long term

The manual handling implications of the kerbside sort system may present
as a barrier to older operatives or operatives with pre-existing conditions
that limit repetitive lifting operations. A key HR work stream has been set
up to identify redeployment opportunities for staff who may not be able to
carry out the new duties and jobs will be re-evaluated to reflect the
change in operations. The Service has already identified the Council's
Career Pathways programme as a strategy to deliver succession planning
and develop skills of existing employees. They are also proactively
engaged in promoting career opportunities externally, such as attending
job fairs.

Childcare There are no known increased implications arising from changing from the
baseline to Option 5.

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Page 49Tudalen 151



Justification for
impact

Overall, despite potential for negative consequences due to potential
increase in collection vehicle mileage and possible negative behaviour
reactions by disgruntled residents who may take against recycling agenda
as a consequence overall it is felt the overall message will raise
awareness of the importance of recycling and the new model will support
the capacity to further increase domestic recycling rates

Further actions
required

Negative behaviour issues will be tackled through targeted
communications on the benefits of the change to collection model to try to
get all residents on board. As far as is possible new collection vehicles will
be the most fuel efficient models affordable to reduce fuel consumption
and emissions as far as practical to mitigate this issue.

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

This option enables the reprocessing industry to operate closed loop
recycling solutions, saving the need to use virgin materials extracted fro
the natural environment across the world. More recycling will be
recovered than the baseline option. Evidence suggest that people adopting
pro-recycling behaviours on a kerbside sort system become more
supportive of wider environmental issues.

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Currently around 10,000 households are receiving a sack collection for
residual/recyclable waste. Sacks are ripped open by scavenging animals
(seagulls, rats and foxes) providing an unnatural source of food, leading to
unhealthy increases in populations of some species that may displace
other species. This option will seek to reduce the number of households on
a sack collection and provide a more regulated system that will prohibit
residents placing food waste into sacks. The Trollibocs system does help
contain litter as it must be presented lidded but will require enforcement
to ensure boxes are not presented off the trolley and without lids.

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Option will improve and increase domestic recycling performance and
produce cleaner material more suitable for closed loop recycling.

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

Food waste is co-collected on the same recycling vehicle as dry material
and the number of residual collection passes per month are reduced.
Overall this results is less vehicle movements.

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

New collection model will further raise awareness of need to and issues
around recycling. A communications Strategy has been developed and
includes and Education Campaign to promote pro-recycling behaviours in
young people, and encourage them to take home important messages.

Flood risk
management

Any changes in use to the Lon Parcwr depot to receive waste will require
enhanced flood mitigation due to proximity of river. This option is still
being considered and will be revisited if this depot will be used.

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Any development at the Lon Parcwr Depot could have an adverse effect
on the local environment (Salmon River adjacent) and therefore
consultation with NRW and Planning will inform depot options appraisal.
As a result of the service change around 35,000 blue wheeled bins and up
to 30,000 black wheeled bins will become redundant. These will be
collected for recycling into new bins. To partially offset the environmental
impact, new containers will contain the optimum recycled content whilst
maintaining durability. Residents will asked to request a larger black bin
only if they need it, in order to reduce wastage and cost.

Page 50Tudalen 152



Biodiversity in the
built environment

Development of a waste transfer facility could impact, depending on
location, yet to be determined.

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

May encourage negative behaviour from disgruntled Residents who take
against new arrangements and deliberately reduce recycling efforts. Many
local authorities have restricted residual waste capacity and reduced
collections to 3 weekly. there is no evidence to suggest an increase in fly
tipping in these authorities. However, it is necessary to support these
service changes with fair but firm household waste collection policy and
resource enforcement activities adequately to ensure that dumping of
rubbish and deliberately cross contaminating waste streams is
appropriately regulated.

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

New collection model may generate additional distance travelled that may
increase fuel consumption - to be confirmed once new collection model
analysed in detail and location of tipping facilities are confirmed. Initially,
households may take extra journeys to the household recycling parcs to
dispose of excess waste. Overall, capacity for their waste will be increased
by 57litres each week. Therefore as long as waste is segregated it should
be able to be managed kerbside. The household waste collection policy
will specify that households will qualify for additional capacity as long as
they can demonstrate they recycle all they can, and capacity is a regular
issue. Residents taking "black bag" type waste to the Recycling Parcs will
be asked to segregate recyclables or the bags will be rejected. Therefore
encouraging the correct behaviours at home, negating the need for
additional journeys.

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

May encourage negative behaviour from disgruntled Residents who take
against new arrangements and deliberately reduce recycling

Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

Neutral overall as few relevant impacts, where potential impacts do exist
they are likely to me minimal

Further actions
required

Positives on engaging people in a positive way will be stressed and
highlighted as part of communications during/post implementation

Positive impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

This option requires the householder to do more to manage their waste
responsibly. More support will be offered to residents to comply and a
sustained and focussed environmental campaign will offer opportunities
for social norming and intergenerational learning, where schools and their
pupils encourage their communities to recycle more.

Access to good
quality, healthy food NONE

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Engaging people further in the need and activity of increasing recycling
will engage them in a positive activity that can improve their sense of
participation and doing good. There is evidence that people using a
kerbside sort system are more "bought into" recycling as they believe
more strongly the material is going to be made into new products. There
is also evidence to suggest engaged recyclers are more likely to engage
or be supportive of wider environmental initiatives.Page 51Tudalen 153



Access to healthcare NONE

Participation in
leisure opportunities NONE

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

There is a risk that those residents who do not currently engage with
DCC's waste collection system will find the new system more challenging.
therefore incidents of alleyway dumping may increase if not managed.
DCC will introduce a new enforcement policy and increased
communications programme to mitigate these risks.

Access to good
quality, healthy food NONE

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Possible issues with the change upsetting residents and affecting their well
being due to change and the need to adapt to new arrangements which
they may feel antagonism towards, or be fearful they will not be able to
cope with the new system.

Access to healthcare NONE

Participation in
leisure opportunities NONE

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

Most protected groups should be unaffected by the new waste model as
households already present and segregate their rubbish. There may be a
negative impact on residents with disability or who are elderly/infirm but
variants to the main system will be put in place to recognise and manage
this.

Further actions
required

Recycling rates in areas with poor economic circumstances is often lower
than in other areas. More targeted communications, such as roadshows,
School visits and door to door support will be required to ensure residents
in these areas fully understand the new system and take care to store
their waste and recycling containers on their own properties so they are
not abused or stolen.

Positive impacts identified:

Page 52Tudalen 154



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

The new Service will include a free separate collection of
nappy/incontinence waste upon request, helping households with young
children, or residents with medical needs cope better with the Waste
Collection Service. This is an improvement to the existing service. Where
possible discreet but accessible collection points from inside the household
property boundary may be requested for those requiring the services due
to medical conditions.

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

NONE

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

All trollibocs and new waste containers will be provided free of charge
during the service change, even though the Council has a right to charge
for them. 

W and R department will liaise with the Council's troubled families team
and other appropriate outreach workers to ensure that waste
requirements are understood and passed on to households, should waste
issues or questions arise.

A schools Education programme will be launched to support the new waste
model, and priority focus will be given to schools in derived areas.
The new waste model will increase the opportunities for employment and
"ready to work" schemes.

People in poverty
People in poverty often produce more waste - especially food waste and
packaging waste. The new model provides greater capacity overall, on a 4
weekly basis to manage and contain waste.

Negative impacts identified:

Page 53Tudalen 155



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People with some disabilities may find the new way of presenting waste
more challenging, due to the need to separate waste into more
containers, and due to the fact that they may need a larger residual bin,
which could be heavier to manoeuvre. Consultation with disability user
group representatives has also identified that the new Trollibocs system
requires more "bending" that could prevent or put off some infirm
residents from using the service. For this reason a range of container
options will be offered to infirm or disabled residents and the Trolliboc
design will take account of feedback received through consultations. DCC
operate an assisted collection service so if a household find their residual
bin too heavy due to size can either be given a smaller bin (subject to
having capacity) two smaller bins, or may apply to be on the assist list
where we collect the bin from the curtilage of their property.
The new DCC waste enforcement policy will allow for households to be
listed as exempt from recycling some or all materials if a disability and/or
lack of support genuinely prevents them from doing so (e.g. sheltered
accommodation with occupants with dementia). 
Trollibocs can be provided with braille stickers where needed and all
associated instructional material will be provided in appropriate mediums
for sight impaired occupants.

Opportunities for upskilling and redeployment will be provided to
employees who are unable to manage the new manual handling
requirements of the collection service

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

If a household has suffered discrimination from sections of their
community in the past, they are more likely to be reported to us if they
struggle to comply with the new system. 
The DCC enforcement policy will always include an initial educational step
before enforcement action is taken to help residents to adjust to the new
requirements.

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

Recycling rates in areas with poor economic circumstances is often lower
than in other areas.

People in poverty

The Council has the right to issue a fixed penalty to residential occupants
for failing to recycle, or dumping black bag waste. In order fo rthe new
scheme to work longer term, it will be necessary to monitor activities of
non-compling households more rigorously, that could lead to FPN's being
issued. However, the revised Council enforcement procedure will ensure
that every household will be given the opportunity to correct behaviours
In addition, an early payment option with a reduced fine level can also be
included.

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Neutral

Page 54Tudalen 156



Justification for
impact

Overall positive impact as new collection model offers opportunities to
raise awareness of need to and increase ability to recycle for residents
and benefit this may bring to engagement and reducing littering but is
small risk it may also lead to feeling that change being done to residents
and an associated problem of littering and fly tipping may result however
this is thought to be low risk. The new system will be better regulated to
identify non-compliance quickly and target behaviour change processes
efficiently. There will be less (no) abandoned contaminated bins on the
streets in the future preffered model.
The Recycle More Waste Less Survey showed that households are
currently more likely to have space in their residual black bin on collection
day than their recycling bins, evidencing that the new model, to increase
recycling capacity by 57litres per week and reducing residual capacity by
10litres per week is manageable. This, combined with the fact that on
average 51% of the waste in the black bins could be recycled on our
existing services supports a move to shift the focus and resources to
collecting more recyclable waste.

Further actions
required

There is a perception that a reduced residual collection frequency could
attract pests. The new model will offer a weekly opt-in service for human
hygiene waste and the weekly food waste service will continue and be
expanded to all houses, meaning waste most likely to attract pests and
vermin should not be in the residual bin. Households remaining on a sack
collection will be provided with gull-proof sacks to contain their disposal
pink sacks. This will keep waste and odours contained and enable the
Council to regulate the capacity given to sack customers so that recycling
behaviours are still incentivised.

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

All wheeled bins and Trollibocs will be assigned to individual properties,
encouraging ownership so they are not left out on the highway where they
pose a fire risk. Currently there are excessive numbers of abandoned blue
recycling bins on the public highway due to them becoming contaminated.
This will not be an issue in the new model.

Community
participation and
resilience

All residents have had the opportunity to be surveyed about the changes
and will have the opportunity to raise concerns they may have already
that can be addressed via the proposed changes or concerns they may
have in relation to the new change that can influence its design e.g.
frequency of nappy collections. 
A sustained schools education programme will result in a significant
number of young people becoming recycling ambassadors, and offering
learning /recycling opportunities within their communities.

The attractiveness of
the area

With improved recycling it may be that this leads to a reduction in litter /
waste as more recyclable material is captured via the new collection
arrangements. Sack collections and on street solutions (currently abused)
will be phased out wherever possible. Enhanced consultation with HMOs
and private landlors will seek to ensure adequate and appropriate
provision is made for tenanted properties.

Connected
communities

Intention to use social norming as a way to promote pro-recycling
behaviours and identify recycling champions.

Negative impacts identified:

Page 55Tudalen 157



Safe communities
and individuals

Residents who fail to comply with the new system and dump their waste
will lower the environmental quality where they live - leading to the
broken windows effect. The new waste model, however, will have boosted
resources to target those individuals with appropriate education and
enforcement action. It is not envisaged, however that these issues will
increase in number from the baseline model. Areas causing issues now
will be visited to ensure the optimal system is put in place to prevent
waste escaping into the environment.

Community
participation and
resilience

Many residents will not have actively engaged during the proposal phase
and provide resistance as the service is rolled out.

The attractiveness of
the area

Residents who fail to comply with the new system and dump their waste
will lower the environmental quality where they live - leading to the
broken windows effect. The new waste model, however, will have boosted
resources to target those individuals with appropriate education and
enforcement action. It is not envisaged, however that these issues will
increase in number from the baseline model. Areas causing issues now
will be visited to ensure the optimal system is put in place to prevent
waste escaping into the environment.
There is a perception that a reduced residual collection frequency could
attract pests.

Connected
communities

Initially some recyclers may disengage with the new service if they
disagree with the proposals. Mitigate with regular and targeted coms
using the Waste Recycling Action Programme's (WRAP's) segmentation
research. New scheme must be flexible to address individual needs where
appropriate.

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

There will be a lot of communications material produced to provide
instructional and motivational information to target audiences and the
public in general. Every opportunity to promote the Welsh Language and
cultures will be taken during the development of our campaigns.

Further actions
required There are no identified negatives.

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh

The proposed waste collection system is more aligned to those in the
other Welsh authorities. This consistency will assist in general
understanding in any language as families and friends communicate
beyond County boundaries. All communications, including the survey,
media releases and instructional information will be produced in Welsh as
well as English.

Promoting the Welsh
language

There is an opportunity to display bi-lingual advertisements with simple
messages/ catch phrases

Culture and heritage

In the longer term, once kerbside capture of materials is maximised,
there is an opportunity to promote re-use of kerbside materials and carry
out campaigns to extend the life of items through repair. This will
encourage people to learn traditional skills, such as sewing. There is also
an oppotrtunity to appeal to target audiences through tying together
traditional activities and recycling/re-use behaviours (e.g. A rugby player
recycling his old shirt, a sheep farmer recycling his working dogs' food
packaging etc...) Page 56Tudalen 158



Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh NONE

Promoting the Welsh
language NONE

Culture and heritage NONE

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

Positive overall as aligns with other North Wales LA's - developing
common resident experience and producing higher quality resources that
can stimulate local and national manufacturing opportunities.

Further actions
required

As part of design and communications around collections model change
Denbighshire will learn from experience at Conwy CBC and from all
previous service changes in Wales and wider afield, through data held by
WRAP (Waste Resources Action Programme)

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

The baseline waste model produces low quality recycling which has limited
markets, often oversees. This option produces source segregated material
which can be used by local and national manufacturing companies.

Human rights NONE

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

By making the proposed changes the waste collection model in
Denbighshire will more closely align with others across North Wales,
including specifically Conwy CBC therefore making any option for Service
of Council mergers in future a simpler task

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Initially there will be a drop in the volume of some non-target plastic that
is currently being marketed but the benefits of producing cleaner material
far outweigh this.

Human rights

To support the introduction of the new scheme, the Council will be
reviewing its waste enforcement policies to ensure the scheme is
regulated. The Council will, in all cases act in accordance with the
Regulators Code (2014).

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

NONE

Page 57Tudalen 159



This page is intentionally left blank

Tudalen 160



 

Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau 

Dyddiad y cyfarfod 19 Hydref 2023 

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Catrin Roberts, Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Cymorth 

Corfforaethol: Pobl  

Awdur yr adroddiad Karen Evans, Cydlynydd Craffu 

Teitl Rhaglen Waith Craffu   

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

1.1 Mae’r adroddiad yn gofyn i’r Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau adolygu ei raglen 

gwaith i’r dyfodol (gweler y drafft yn Atodiad 1).  Wrth wneud hynny gofynnir i’r 

Pwyllgor fyfyrio ynghylch sut y gall Craffu gyfrannu at gyflawni Cynllun 

Corfforaethol y Cyngor a’i nod o ddod yn ddi-garbon net ac yn ecolegol 

gadarnhaol erbyn 2030, gan hefyd roi blaenoriaeth i’r materion hynny y mae’r 

Pwyllgor o’r farn ei bod yn bwysig craffu arnynt. 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

2.1 Gofyn i’r Pwyllgor adolygu a chytuno ar ei raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol, a rhoi’r 

wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i aelodau ar faterion perthnasol. 

3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 

Bod y Pwyllgor yn:  

3.1  ystyried y wybodaeth a ddarparwyd ac yn cymeradwyo ei raglen gwaith i’r 

dyfodol, ei diwygio neu’i newid fel y gwêl yn briodol;  

3.2 penodi cynrychiolydd i wasanaethu ar y Grŵp Her Gwasanaeth ar gyfer y 

Gwasanaethau Cynllunio, Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a Chefn Gwlad; ac 

3.3  penderfynu a ddylid rhoi cyhoeddusrwydd i unrhyw negeseuon neu themâu 

allweddol o’r cyfarfod cyfredol yn y wasg a/neu’r cyfryngau cymdeithasol. 

  

Tudalen 161

Eitem Agenda 8



 
 

4. Manylion yr adroddiad  

 

4.1 Mae Erthygl 7 o Gyfansoddiad Cyngor Sir Ddinbych yn pennu cylch gorchwyl, 

swyddogaethau ac aelodaeth pob Pwyllgor Craffu, yn ogystal â rheolau 

gweithdrefnau a thrafodaethau.    

 

4.2 Yn ôl y Cyfansoddiad mae’n rhaid i bob un o bwyllgorau craffu’r Cyngor bennu 

rhaglen ar gyfer ei waith i’r dyfodol a’i hadolygu’n rheolaidd.  Trwy adolygu a 

blaenoriaethu materion, gall aelodau sicrhau bod y rhaglen waith yn cyflwyno 

agenda a arweinir gan yr aelodau. 

 

4.3 Ers rhai blynyddoedd bellach mae’n arfer yn Sir Ddinbych nad yw pwyllgorau 

craffu’n ystyried mwy na phedwar o adroddiadau mewn unrhyw gyfarfod, yn 

ogystal ag adroddiad ar raglen waith y Pwyllgor ei hun.  Diben hynny yw 

hwyluso trafodaeth fanwl ac effeithiol ar bob pwnc. 

 

4.4 Mewn blynyddoedd diweddar mae Llywodraeth Cymru ac Archwilio Cymru wedi 

tynnu sylw at yr angen i gryfhau’r swyddogaeth craffu mewn llywodraeth leol a 

gwasanaethau cyhoeddus yng Nghymru, gan gynnwys defnyddio craffu fel 

modd o ymgysylltu â phreswylwyr a defnyddwyr gwasanaethau.  O hyn allan, 

disgwylir i graffu ymgysylltu'n well ac yn amlach â'r cyhoedd gyda’r nod o 

sicrhau penderfyniadau gwell a fydd yn y pen draw yn arwain at well 

canlyniadau i ddinasyddion.  Bydd Archwilio Cymru yn mesur effeithiolrwydd 

craffu wrth gyflawni'r disgwyliadau hyn. 

 

4.5 Gan ystyried y weledigaeth genedlaethol ar gyfer craffu a chanolbwyntio ar yr 

un pryd ar flaenoriaethau lleol, argymhellodd y Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-

gadeiryddion Craffu yn ddiweddar y dylai pwyllgorau archwilio’r Cyngor 

ganolbwyntio ar y meysydd allweddol canlynol wrth bennu eu rhaglenni gwaith: 

 arbedion ar y gyllideb; 

 cyflawni amcanion y Cynllun Corfforaethol (gyda phwyslais arbennig ar y 

modd o’u cyflawni yn ystod cyfnod o galedi ariannol);  

 unrhyw eitemau eraill y mae’r Pwyllgor Craffu (neu’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac 

Is-gadeiryddion Craffu) yn cytuno i roi blaenoriaeth uchel iddynt (yn seiliedig 

Tudalen 162



 
 

ar y meini prawf PAPER - gweler ochr gefn y ‘Ffurflen Cynnig gan Aelodau’ 

yn Atodiad 2); 

 materion brys, annisgwyl neu â blaenoriaeth uchel; 

 cefnogi gwaith adfer y Cyngor yn sgil effeithiau’r argyfwng COVID-19 ar 

wasanaethau’r Cyngor, yr economi leol a chymunedau’r sir. 

 

4.6 Ffurflenni Cynnig ar gyfer Craffu 

 Fel y crybwyllwyd ym mharagraff 4.2 uchod, mae Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor yn 

gofyn i bwyllgorau craffu baratoi rhaglenni ar gyfer eu gwaith i’r dyfodol a’u 

hadolygu.  Er mwyn cynorthwyo’r broses o flaenoriaethu adroddiadau, os yw’r 

swyddogion o’r farn fod pwnc yn deilwng o’r amser i’w drafod ar raglen fusnes y 

Pwyllgor, mae’n rhaid iddynt wneud cais ffurfiol i’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-

gadeiryddion Craffu i ystyried derbyn adroddiad ar y pwnc hwnnw.  Gwneir hyn 

trwy gyflwyno ‘ffurflen gynnig’ sy’n egluro pwrpas craffu ar y pynciau a 

awgrymir, pwysigrwydd hynny a’r canlyniadau posibl. 

 

4.7 Er mwyn defnyddio amser craffu’n well drwy ganolbwyntio adnoddau pwyllgorau 

ar archwilio pynciau’n fanwl, gan ychwanegu gwerth drwy’r broses benderfynu a 

sicrhau gwell canlyniadau ar gyfer preswylwyr, penderfynodd y Grŵp 

Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion Craffu y dylai’r aelodau, yn ogystal â 

swyddogion, lenwi 'ffurflenni cynnig ar gyfer craffu’ yn egluro pam eu bod o’r 

farn y byddai’r pwnc yn elwa ar gyfraniad craffu.  Fel y soniwyd uchod mae copi 

o’r ‘ffurflen cynnig gan aelodau’ i’w weld yn Atodiad 2.  Ar gefn y ffurflen hon 

mae siart lif sy’n rhestru’r cwestiynau y dylai aelodau eu hystyried wrth gynnig 

eitem i graffu arnynt ac y dylai pwyllgorau eu gofyn wrth benderfynu a yw pwnc 

yn addas testun i’w gynnwys ar y rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol.  Os dilynir y broses 

hon a phenderfynu nad yw’r testun yn addas i bwyllgor craffu ei archwilio’n 

ffurfiol, yna gellir ystyried ffyrdd eraill o rannu’r wybodaeth neu archwilio’r mater, 

fel darparu ‘adroddiad gwybodaeth’, er enghraifft, neu os yw’r mater yn un lleol 

iawn gall y Grŵp Ardal Aelodau perthnasol graffu arno.  Ni chaiff unrhyw 

eitemau eu cynnwys ar raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol heb lenwi ‘ffurflen gynnig ar 

gyfer craffu’ a chael cymeradwyaeth y Pwyllgor neu’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-

gadeiryddion Craffu i’w cynnwys ar y rhaglen.  Mae’r Cydlynydd Craffu yn 

medru cynorthwyo â llenwi’r ffurflenni.   

  

Tudalen 163



 
 

   

 

 Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cabinet 

4.8 Wrth bennu eu rhaglenni gwaith i’r dyfodol mae’n fuddiol i’r pwyllgorau craffu 

ystyried amserlen waith y Cabinet.  At hynny, amgaeir copi o raglen gwaith i’r 

dyfodol y Cabinet yn Atodiad 3.  

5. Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion Craffu 

5.1 Dan drefniadau craffu’r Cyngor mae’r Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion 

Craffu yn gweithredu fel pwyllgor cydlynu.  Mae cyfarfod nesaf y Grŵp wedi'i 

drefnu ar gyfer 28 Tachwedd 2023. 

6. Cynrychioliaeth y Pwyllgor ar Fyrddau a Grwpiau'r Cyngor 

Grwpiau Her ar gyfer Gwasanaethau’r Cyngor 

6.1 O bryd i'w gilydd gofynnir i'r Pwyllgor benodi cynrychiolwyr i wasanaethu aramrywiol 

Fyrddau neu Grwpiau o fewn y Cyngor. Ar hyn o bryd mae angen i'r Pwyllgor 

benodi cynrychiolydd i wasanaethu ar y Grŵp Her ar gyfer y Gwasanaethau 

Cynllunio, Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a Chefn Gwlad. Gofynnir i'r Pwyllgor benodi 

cynrychiolydd i wasanaethu ar y Grŵp hwn er mwyn sicrhau rhestr gyflawn o 

gynrychiolwyr ar y grwpiau her ar gyfer y gwasanaethau. Mae’r rhestr gyfredol o 

gynrychiolwyr ar y Grwpiau Her Gwasanaeth i’w weld yn Atodiad 4. 

7. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at Gynllun 
Corfforaethol 2022 i 2027: y Sir Ddinbych a Garem? 

7.1 Bydd craffu effeithiol yn cynorthwyo’r Cyngor i gyflawni ei Gynllun Corfforaethol 

yn unol ag anghenion cymunedau a dymuniadau preswylwyr.   Bydd datblygu 

ac adolygu’r rhaglen waith gydlynol yn barhaus yn cynorthwyo’r Cyngor i 

gyflawni ei flaenoriaethau corfforaethol a gwella’r canlyniadau i breswylwyr wrth 

ddygymod hefyd â thoriadau llym yn y gyllideb a gwasgfeydd ar adnoddau. 

7.2 Er bod penderfynu ynghylch rhaglen gwaith i’r dyfodol y Pwyllgor ynddo’i hun yn 

gyfraniad niwtral at nod y Cyngor o ddod yn ddi-garbon net ac yn ecolegol 

Tudalen 164



 
 

gadarnhaol erbyn 2030, bydd craffu’n effeithiol ar yr holl faterion a ddaw 

gerbron y Pwyllgor yn helpu i gyflawni’r uchelgais honno. 

8. Faint fydd hyn yn ei gostio a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar 
wasanaethau eraill? 

8.1 Efallai y bydd yn rhaid i wasanaethau neilltuo amser swyddogion i gynorthwyo’r 

Pwyllgor â’r eitemau a nodir yn y rhaglen waith ac unrhyw gamau gweithredu yn 

sgil ystyried yr eitemau hynny.  

9. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Les? 

9.1 Ni chynhaliwyd Asesiad o Effaith ar Les ar gyfer yr adroddiad hwn na’i gynnwys.  

Bydd y Pwyllgor Archwilio, fodd bynnag, drwy ei waith yn archwilio darpariaeth 

gwasanaethau, polisïau, gweithdrefnau ac argymhellion, yn ystyried eu heffaith 

neu eu heffaith posib ar yr egwyddor datblygu cynaliadwy a’r amcanion llesiant 

a nodir yn Neddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015. 

10. Pa ymgyngoriadau sydd wedi’u cynnal gyda Chraffu ac 
eraill? 

10 Nid oedd yn ofynnol ymgynghori ynghylch yr adroddiad hwn.  Mae’r adroddiad 

ei hun, fodd bynnag, ac ystyriaeth y Pwyllgor ohono, yn gyfystyr ag ymgynghori 

â’r Pwyllgor ynghylch ei raglen waith. 

11. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 
lleihau? 

11.1 Ni chanfuwyd unrhyw risg ynglŷn â’r Pwyllgor yn ystyried ei raglen waith.  Drwy 

adolygu ei raglen gwaith i’r dyfodol yn rheolaidd, fodd bynnag, gall y Pwyllgor 

sicrhau ei fod yn ystyried ac archwilio unrhyw risgiau a ddaw i’r amlwg a 

gwneud argymhellion er mwyn ymdrin â’r risgiau hynny. 

12. Pŵer i wneud y penderfyniad 

12.1 Adran 21 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000. 

12.2 Yn ôl Adran 7.11 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor bydd y pwyllgorau craffu ac/neu’r 

Grŵp Cadeiryddion ac Is-gadeiryddion Craffu’n gyfrifol am bennu eu rhaglenni 

Tudalen 165



 
 

gwaith eu hunain gan ystyried dymuniadau’r Aelodau hynny o’r Pwyllgor nad 

ydynt yn Aelodau o'r grŵp gwleidyddol mwyaf ar y Cyngor. 

Tudalen 166



Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

Note: Items entered in italics have not been approved for submission by the Committee.  Such reports are listed here for information, pending 
formal approval. 
 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

        

        

        

19th 
October 

Cllr. Barry 
Mellor 

1. New Waste 
Service Model – 
Progress 
Report  
 
T.B.C. 

To examine the 
progress in relation 
to the activities 
associated with 
rollout of the new 
Service (incl.  

 An update on 
the 
implementation 
of the main 
service change 

 update on the 
implementation 
of the AHP 
Service 

 

Identification of actions or resolutions 
to any gaps or obstacles encountered 
to date with the rollout process with a 
view to addressing them in time to 
secure a seamless rollout of the new 
Service and ensure residents’ buy-in 
and compliance with the new waste 
and recycling service which will 
support the Council’s ambition in 
relation to carbon reduction. 

Tony Ward/ 
Andy Clark/ 
Simon 
Lammond/ 
Russell 
Vaughan 
 
(Peter Clayton 
to be invited to 
Committee) 

By SCVCG 
March 2023 

 Cllr. Win 
Mullen-James 
 
Extend invite to 
Cllr Peter Scott 
(Chair of T&F 
Group) 

2 GTAA 
 
 

To review the 
revised 
assessment prior 
to its being 
submitted to Welsh 
Government 

Members’ views and observations are 
sought on the detail of the work 
carried out and the revision of the 
previously submitted GTAA. 

Kimberley 
Mason 

23/05/23 
(rescheduled 
July 2023) 

(Members 
have 
asked also 
to see the 

Cllr. Barry 
Mellor 

3. Review of car 
park tariffs 

To examine 
proposed changes 
to the Council’s car 
park tariffs policy 

Pre-decision scrutiny of proposed 
changes to car park policies, tariffs 
etc. and their impact on residents, 
businesses across the county will 

Emlyn 
Jones/Mike 
Jones 

By SCVCG 
July 2023 

T
udalen 167



Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

latest 
position 
with 
regards to 
delivering 
the current 
Car Park 
Manageme
nt Plan)  

and associated 
tariff structures, 
including charging 
hours, blanket 
charging policy etc. 
(along with the 
draft county Car 
Park Masterplan 
and proposed 
return on 
investment 
associated with the 
new proposals) 

enable Scrutiny to formulate 
recommendations in relation to the 
proposals to aid better decision-
making.  This will support the 
Corporate Themes of realising a 
prosperous and better connected 
Denbighshire 

        

7 
December 

Cllr. Win 
Mullen-James 

1. Second Homes 
and Short-term 
Holiday lets  
and their impact 
have been fully 
assessed) 
 
(timing tbc – 
once the full 
details of the 
WG proposals 
are known (incl. 
Licensing 
Scheme 
proposals) 
 
 

To report the 
findings and 
conclusions of the 
Welsh 
Government’s 
study in relation to 
addressing the 
impact of second 
home ownership in 
Wales, including its 
proposals for 
reviewing the 
regulatory 
framework and 
system as they 
apply to holiday 
accommodation, 
along with national 
and local taxation 

(i) An assessment of the proposals’ 
anticipated impact on 
Denbighshire County Council, 
residents, businesses and local 
economy 

(ii) Formulation of recommendations 
with a view to realising maximum 
benefits for the Council, residents 
businesses and the economy, or 
for mitigating the impact of any 
risks that may arise from any 
proposals 

Emlyn 
Jones/Angela 
Loftus/Lara 
Griffiths/Paul 
Barnes/Gareth 
Roberts 

June 2022 
(rescheduled 
November 
2022/ March 
2023) 

T
udalen 168



Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

systems (the WG’s 
“three-pronged 
approach to 
address [the] 
second homes 
crisis” 

(check if 
any WG 
reviews/leg
islation 
outstandin
g in 
relation to 
sustainabl
e transport 
at present) 

Cllr. Barry 
Mellor 

2. Draft 
Sustainable 
Transport Plan 

To consider the 
initial findings 
following the 
consultation of the 
draft plan 

Pre-decision scrutiny to enable the 
formulation of recommendations to 
Cabinet in relation to approving and 
adopting a Sustainable Transport 
Plan for the county that will support 
the delivery of the Corporate Plan 
themes of a better connected and 
greener Denbighshire, whilst also 
contributing to the Council’s ambition 
of becoming net carbon zero and 
ecologically positive by 2030 

Mike Jones By SCVCG 
July 2023 

 Cllr Rhys 
Thomas 

3 Housing Rent 
Increase and 
Budgets 2024 / 
25 

To consider the 
process for 
determining the 
recommendation 
on the level of 
weekly rent 
increase for 
Community 
Housing tenants. 

Pre-decision scrutiny to determine: 
I. has the increase being 

proposed adequately 
considered 

II. the impact on affordability for 
households and  

III. the impact of other options on 
Housing investment budgets. 

Liz Grieve / 
Geoff Davies 

By SC&VCG 
03/10/23 

 Leader 4 Rhyl 
Regeneration 
Programme and 
Governance 
 
 

To examine the 
effectiveness of the 
Programme 
Board’s work in 
delivering the 
regeneration 
programme to date 

Identification of any barriers or 
slippages and the formulation of 
recommendations to try and address 
them and sustain the delivery of the 
programme to secure the 
regeneration of Rhyl to benefit the 

Tony Ward June 2022 
 

T
udalen 169



Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

economy and the lives of the town’s 
residents and the county in general  

1 February 
2024 

       

        

14 March         

        

9 May Cllr. Barry 
Mellor 

1. Tree 
Maintenance & 
Management  
 
(tbc) 

To examine the 
Council’s 
policy(ies) relating 
to tree 
maintenance and 
management along 
with the resources 
allocated for tree 
maintenance and 
management work 
across 
Denbighshire  

An evaluation of the effectiveness of 
the Council’s current work in relation 
to tree management and 
maintenance with a view to securing 
sufficient resources to ensure the 
delivery the Council’s Corporate Plan 
themes of a greener, and a fairer, 
safe and more equal Denbighshire 
whilst also supporting the ambition of 
becoming an ecologically positive and 
net carbon zero authority by 2030. 

Andrew 
Cutts/Joel 
Walley/Emlyn 
Jones 

By SCVCG 
July 2023 

        

27 June        

        

5 
September 

       

        

24 October        

        

12 
December 

       

        

2025 

Feb 2025 
(date tbc) 

       

T
udalen 170



Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date Entered 

        

March/ 
April 
(date tbc) 

Leader/Cllr. 
Barry Mellor 

1. Rhyl 
Promenade 
Masterplan 

To examine the 
proposals 
contained in the 
Rhyl Promenade 
Masterplan to be 
implemented 
following the 
completion of the 
coastal flood 
defence schemes 

Consideration of the draft masterplan 
and the public’s views on its contents 
will enable the Committee to 
formulate recommendations with 
respect of the final masterplan that 
will support the Council, business 
community and residents’ aspirations 
to realise the sustainable economic 
regeneration of Rhyl and 
Denbighshire by linking the 
beach/promenade to the town.  
Delivering a prosperous and better 
connected Denbighshire 

Tony Ward  By SCVCG 
July 2023 (in 
response to a 
Notice of 
Motion to 
County 
Council) 

 
 
Future Issues 
 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

 Update on the Draft Tourism signage 
Strategy 

To provide an update on progress 
in regard to brown tourist direction 
sign projects within Denbighshire 

Mike Jones/Peter 
McDermot 

09/05/23 

     

     

 
For future years 
 

 
 

    

  

T
udalen 171



Communities Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan 

Information/Consultation Reports 
 

Information / 
Consultation 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Author(s) Date Entered 

INFORMATION 
(for circulation early 
autumn 2023 once 

work has been 
undertaken) 

Community Impact Assessment 
on the communities of Rhewl 
and Llanynys 

To present the findings of the community 
impact assessment undertaken following 
the closure of Ysgol Rhewl as agreed as 
part of the modernising education 
programme 

Geraint Davies/James Curran December 
2020 

 
Note for officers – Committee Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

19 October 2023 5th October 7th December 23 November 1st February 2024 18th January 

 
03/10/23 KE 

T
udalen 172



 

 

Member Proposal Form for Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 
 

 
NAME OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 

 
TIMESCALE FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

 

 
TOPIC 
 

 

 
What needs to be scrutinised (and why)? 
 

 
 
 

 
Is the matter one of concern to 
residents/local businesses? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Can Scrutiny influence and change 
things?  
(if ‘yes’ please state how you think scrutiny 
can influence or change things) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

 
Does the matter relate to an 
underperforming service or area? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Does the matter affect a large number of 
residents or a large geographical area of 
the County  
(if ‘yes’ please give an indication of the size 
of the affected group or area) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

Is the matter linked to the Council’s 
Corporate themes? 
(if ‘yes’ please state which theme(s)) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

To your knowledge is anyone else 
looking at this matter? 
(If ‘yes’, please say who is looking at it) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

If the topic is accepted for scrutiny who 
would you want to invite to attend e.g. 
Lead Member, officers, external experts, 
service-users? 

 

 
Name of Councillor/Co-opted Member 
 

 

 
Date 

 

Tudalen 173



 

Consideration of a topic’s suitability for scrutiny 

 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 

 

 

 

 

NO  (no further action or information report) 

 

 

Proposal Form/Request received 

(careful consideration given to reasons for request) 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 Public interest – is the matter of concern to residents? 

 Ability to have an impact – can Scrutiny influence and change 

things? 

 Performance – is it an underperforming area or service? 

 Extent – does it affect a large number of residents or a large 

geographic area? 

 Replication – is anyone else looking at it? 

 

No further action required by 

scrutiny committee.  Refer 

elsewhere or request 

information report?   

 Determine the desired outcome(s) 

 Decide on the scope and extent of the scrutiny work required and the most 

appropriate method to undertake it (i.e. committee report, task and finish group 

inquiry, or link member etc.) 

 If task and finish route chosen, determine the timescale for any inquiry, who will 

be involved, research requirements, expert advice and witnesses required, 

reporting arrangements etc. 

YES 

NO 

Tudalen 174



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

24 October 1 North East Wales Archive 
project 

To provide Cabinet with an 
update, to review the options 
appraisal and seek 
authorisation to submit a 
National Lottery Heritage 
Fund grant application, 
noting the required match 
funding contribution if 
successful 

Yes Cllr Emrys Wynne 
Lead Officer – Liz Grieve 
Report Author – Craig Berry / 
Sian Lloyd Price 

 2 Salt Barns (South) To seek Cabinet approval to 
progress the project to the 
procurement and tendering 
stage 

Yes Cllr Barry Mellor 
Lead Officer/Report Author – 
Andy Clark 

 3 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Head of Finance and Audit 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinator 

      

 

21 
November 

1 Library Savings Proposal To outline how savings could 
be achieved by reducing 
Library Services 

Yes Cllr Emrys Wynne 
Lead Officer/Report Author – 
Liz Grieve 

T
udalen 175



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 2 Gypsy and Traveller 
Accommodation Assessment 
(GTAA) 

To seek approval for re-
submission of the draft 
amended GTAA to the Welsh 
Government 

Yes Cllr Win Mullen-James 
Lead Officer – Tony Ward 
Report Author – Angela 
Loftus / Kimberley Mason 

 3 Council Performance Self-
Assessment Update – July to 
September 

To present an update on the 
council’s performance 
against its functions, 
including Corporate Plan and 
Strategic Equality objectives 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer – Nicola Kneale 
Report Author – Emma Horan 

 4 Re-tendering of Supported 
Living Contracts 

To request Cabinet approval 
for DCC to commence the re-
tendering of supported living 
contracts 

Yes Cllr Elen Heaton 
Lead Officer – Ann Lloyd 
Report Author – Charlotte 
Jones / Liana Duffy 

 5 Contract for Haulage, Sorting 
and Brokerage of Dry Mixed 
Recycling (DMR) 

To consider a contract 
variation/extension of DMR 

Yes Cllr Barry Mellor 
Lead Officer/Report Author – 
Simon Lammond 

 6 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Head of Finance and Audit 

 7 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

 

19 
December 

1 Care Home Fee Setting 
2024/25 

To brief Cabinet on the 
outcome of the Regional 

Yes Cllr Elen Heaton 
Lead Officer / Report Author – 

T
udalen 176



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

2024/25 Care Home Fee 
Setting process and seek 
approval for Denbighshire’s 
response to its 
recommendation 

Nicola Stubbins / Ann Lloyd 

 2 North Wales Construction 
Framework (NWCF) Phase 3 

To approve the NWCF 
following the procurement 
exercise 

Yes Cllr Julie Matthews 
Lead Officer – Lisa Jones 
Report Author – Karen Bellis 

 3 North Wales Velodrome 
Business Case 

To consider the business 
case for the North Wales 
Velodrome Project 

 Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Tony Ward / Jamie Groves 

 4 Housing Rent Setting & 
Housing Revenue and Capital 
Budgets 2024/25 

To seek approval for the 
proposed annual rent 
increase for council housing 
and to approve the Housing 
Revenue Account Capital 
and Revenue Budgets for 
2024/25 and Housing Stock 
Business Plan 

Yes Cllr Rhys Thomas 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Geoff Davies 

 5 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Head of Finance and Audit 

 6 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

T
udalen 177



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

      

 

23 January 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Head of Finance and Audit 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

      

 

20 February 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Head of Finance and Audit 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

      

 

19 March 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Gwyneth Ellis 
Lead Officer/Report Author 
Head of Finance and Audit 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Lead Officer – Scrutiny 
Coordinators 

      

T
udalen 178



Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

24 October 10 October 21 November 7 November 19 December 5 December 
 
Updated 04/10/2023 – KEJ 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 

T
udalen 179



M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag


	Rhaglen
	2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD
	4 COFNODION
	5 ADOLYGU TARIFFAU MEYSYDD PARCIO
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	WBIA Car Park Tariffs
	Car Park Tariff Review: Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	Summary and Conclusion
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Summary for each Sustainable Development principle
	Long term
	Prevention
	Integration
	Collaboration
	Involvement

	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions

	The likely impact on Denbighshire, Wales and the world.
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:





	6 ASESIAD O ANGHENION LLETY SIPSIWN A THEITHWYR
	App1 GTAA - T & F Group report FINAL
	App 2 Draft Final consultant’s GTAA report
	Appx 2 – Redacted pages draft final GTAA report Appendix D
	App 3 WBIA
	Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2021, revised 2023: Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	Summary and Conclusion
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Summary for each Sustainable Development principle
	Long term
	Prevention
	Integration
	Collaboration
	Involvement

	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions

	The likely impact on Denbighshire, Wales and the world.
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Overall Impact
	Justification for impact
	Further actions required
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:





	7 Y WYBODAETH DDIWEDDARAF AM BROSIECT AILFODELU’R GWASANAETH GWASTRAFF
	Appendix 1 WBIA
	5 PROPOSED NEW WASTE AND RECYCLING SERVICE DESIGN
	WASTE MODEL - Appendix II Well Being Impact Assesment New waste model
	OPTION 5 (Preferred) - Weekly Kerbside Sort (including food waste), 4-weekly residual, AHP service
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:







	8 RHAGLEN WAITH CRAFFU
	App 1 Communities FWP
	App 2 FWP Proposal Form
	App 3 Cabinet FWP


